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Results (for the year ended 30 June)
— Revenue

— Adjusted loss*

— Attributable loss

— Dividends

— Loss per share (in HK dollars)

Financial Position (as at 30 June)
— Cash and cash equivalents*

— Total assets

— (Deficit)/equity”

Financial Ratios (as at 30 June)
— Current assets/Current liabilities
— Assets/Equity”

— Sales/Assets

— Gearing ratio

Excluding overdrafts
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Excluding reversal of impairment and/or impairment

Attributable to owners of the Company
Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in October 2017
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Champion Technology
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively,
the “Group”) and the management of the Group, | would like to present the
2021 annual report of the Group.

The fiscal year 2020/2021 remained extremely challenging throughout the
world. During the year of 2021, the negative impact of COVID-19 was still not
yet resolved, and the delta variant, which was first detected in India last
October, has been found in more than 130 countries globally, according to
the World Health Organization and the Covid delta variant has not spared
countries with some of the highest vaccination rates globally. However, Hong
Kong’s situation has remained stable since May 2021, and therefore, to a
certain extent, the epidemic prevention measures has been relieved and this
helps accelerating the approval procedures of the electric companies for our
solar power projects. We have taken proactive measures to adapt to it, and
have strived to overcome all difficulties and adversities surrounding our
business!

With the gradual relaxation of social distancing restrictions, the Group has
been able to resume most of the business plans since June 2021 to increase
revenue, and to proceed with multi-directional expansion plan for our
business and asset restructuring and optimization.

For the past few years, the management of Company placed a lot of effort in
improving the Company’s financial position by debt reduction and deploying
more resources to develop its renewable energy businesses and system
products. Management considers that by preserving the financial strength of
the Group with low gearing ratio and sufficient liquidity are crucial to tide over
the negative economic impacts and challenges brought about by changes in
the deteriorating economic environment and the epidemic. The following two
corporate actions have been undertaken with the intention to bring the
Company to a debt free position, saving tens of millions of dollars in interest
expenses.

1. On 18 May 2021, the Board proposed to seek the approval of
Shareholders to raise gross proceeds of approximately HK$205 million
on the basis of three Rights Shares for every one existing share held by
issuing 2,051,492,544 rights shares at the subscription price of HK$0.1
per Rights Share.
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2. On 25 August 2021, the Offeror, the Company and Kantone jointly
announced that on 31 May 2021 , the Company as seller and the
Offeror as purchaser entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
pursuant to which the Offeror has conditionally agreed to acquire and
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell the Sale Shares, being
128,137,958 Kantone Shares, representing approximately 59.04% of
the entire issued share capital of Kantone. The consideration for the
Sale Shares is approximately HK$59,071,598.64, equivalent to
HK$0.461 per Sale Share. Completion shall take place on the fifth
business day after all conditions precedent are being fulfiled or waived (as
the case may be) or any date as agreed by the parties in writing. Upon
Completion, the Kantone Group will cease to be subsidiaries of the
Group.

With the funds obtained from above two corporate actions , we can (i)
early repay the loan due to Guangdong Finance Limited of
HK$185,000,000 which calls for an interest at 13% per annum; and (i)
the promissory note of HK$44,000,000. The remaining funds will be
reserved for enhancing its working capital to expand the renewable
energy business, the technology and oil trading business of the Group.
Our gearing ratio will be reduced to zero , meaning a saving in interest
cost of HK$24.5 million per annum.

In February 2021, the management decided to sell our only oil tanker and has
since temporarily suspended the shipping business since we are still
assessing the gasoil market and the oil tanker market so as to decide whether
and when it should acquire a replacement tanker. We are not going to cease
the shipping business, it was only a temporary and commercially justifiable
measure to deal with the sudden adverse impact to the industry by
COVID-19. The management would continue to watch for the market in an
attempt to seize the right moment to rekindle this line of business when the
negative impact of COVID-19 subsides or materially alleviates.

During the year under review, the management shared the same view with
the report from the Organisation of Economic Co-operation and Development
(“OECD”) that containment measures and economic disruptions related to
the COVID-19 outbreak led to a reduction in production and mobility
worldwide, resulting in a significant drop in global demand for oil. We
therefore decided to stay put by doing less gasoail trading so as to avoid
unexpected risk from the impact of COVID-19 which is beyond the control of
any company or country.
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Our renewable energy business should have entered into its harvesting period
during the year ended 30 June 2021 as many customers have responded
positively to our designs after studying our show cases. Our business models
have been properly structured to attract customers with our own elite design
enabling high efficiency in the transformation of solar photovoltaic power and
a wide variety of choices of project finance.

However, the social distancing requirement brought about by COVID-19 has
significantly and adversely impacted our renewable energy business since
January 2020. For this reason, CLP’s inspectors deferred their site inspection
schedules while on the other hand our landlord customers refrained from
meeting our engineers at site.

Since the easing of the social distancing restrictions in June 2021, our
management has decisively taken some adaptive and flexible strategies in
tackling these significant and adverse impacts, including redeploying our
resources towards large scale SPV projects on vacant lands, leading to new
substantial contracts and letters of intent, paving the way for the Group to
harvest in its renewable energy business in the coming months and years.
Several owners of other large pieces of land ranging from 600,000 sq. ft. to
more than 1,000,000 sq. ft. have also expressed strong desire in engaging
the Group to carry out large scale installation of SPV systems as well as
aquaponic systems.

The Group was also awarded a tender by a renowned property developer for
the supply and installation of SPV system in Sai Sha which spans over 680
sq. meters and consists of over 1,340 pieces of solar panels. This project has
just been completed and to the satisfaction of the customer who has formally
invited us to submit proposals for installation of solar panel systems at two of
their new sites. This is an endorsement of the quality of the Group’s applied
technology. This has further enhanced our market reputation.
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The interconnectivity of devices plays an increasingly important role in today’s
ecosystem of a “Smart City”. In appreciation of the Group’s achievement in
loT development, we were invited to join the Smart City Consortium in
December 2020 and have since then joined forces with other elite members
to bring Hong Kong towards a more connected and smart future.

Following the recruitment of technology and engineering specialists in 2018,
the Group started to build its own loT, critical messaging, aquaponic systems
and photovoltaic systems. All these research and development have been
successful, leading to the launch of the Group’s own products since 2019. At
the present moment, we are still recruiting capable [T and engineering
specialist.

With the effort of our Project Team, the Group invented at least 7 system
products and numerous modified solar energy transformation designs of its
own since FY2019 and started to sell its own Systems Products again since
FY2020.

Without the social unrest in 2019 and the COVID-19 pandemic since January
2020, the Group’s business should have been much more fruitful.

The following is a list of the Group’s self-developed key Systems Products:

i) TOF People Counting System

ii) Social Web Apps UX Design

i) Intelligent Construction Work-at-Height Safety Monitoring System
Simultaneous Massive Smart Body Temperature Detection System
Smart Remote Circuit Breaker Control — for PV System & Energy
Management

(vi)  Smart Water Quality Aquaponic Monitoring System

=

=

We are now formulating the plan to commercialize the above invention and
put them into the market in the coming future. Certainly, the Group will
continue to expand along the Technology business in the coming months and
years.
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Antique and cultural products are collectible objects that have an enhanced
value because of its considerable age. As in previous years, the Company
continues to adopt a cautious approach in handling the cultural products. We
have been acquiring new cultural products or antiques for resale while
keeping ourselves up-to-date with the market conditions in order to capture
the right moment for realizing some of the Group’s inventories of cultural
products at the right price. In addition, we have displayed our cultural
products which are also work of art in our Company’s website to enhance
public awareness of our cultural products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to our
customers, suppliers, business partners and the shareholders for their
continuous support during this difficult time, and give special thanks to all
employees of the Group for their devotion and successful achievements
despite the current challenging social and business environment. With the
strengthened financial structure of the Company after completion of the
current corporate actions, we remain fully confident about the future prospect
of the Company.

As always, we are committed to creating greater benefits and a better future
for our shareholders.

Ms. WONG Man Winny
Chairperson
Hong Kong

28 September 2021
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SR ERE &R

MANAG EMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) reported a total revenue for the year under review
of approximately HK$237 milion compared with approximately HK$411
million in 2020, representing a decrease of approximately 42 percent. This
was mainly owing to the decrease in the volume of trading business in gasoil
and charter income from oil tanker during the year.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

The loss for the year under review is approximately HK$57 million (2020:
approximately HK$38 million). Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company is approximately HK$60 million (2020: approximately HK$40
million). The loss for the year were mainly attributed to the increase in fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$15 million (2020: fair value gain of approximately HK$17
million), and the decrease in other income, gain and losses to approximately
HK$7 million (2020: HK$17 million). Loss per share for the year under review
is HK8.75 cents (2020: HK5.78 cents).

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year, the Group recognized other income of approximately HK$7
million (2020: approximately HK$17 million) which is mainly caused by the (i)
gain from extension of promissory note payable of approximately HK$8
million, (i) interest income of approximately HK$3 million and (i) impairment
loss on the Group’s vessel of approximately HK$7 million.

Distribution Costs

The Group’s distribution costs for the year were mainly attributed to our
principal subsidiary in United Kingdom — Multitone Electronics PLC (“Multitone
UK”) which recorded distribution costs for the year under review of
approximately HK$26 million as compared with approximately HK$27 million
in 2020.
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MANAG EMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continuedq)

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year under review decreased by
approximately 21 percent to approximately HK$78 million (2020:
approximately HK$99 million). The management of the Company has
continued to streamline our workforce and our strategy of pursuing a more
cost-efficient management of overheads The decrease was due to the
prudent cost control and savings in salaries as a result of unfilled vacant
positions partly due to difficulties in recruiting the right technical personnel in
both the UK and Germany.
administrative expenses was also due to no past service cost from retirement
benefit plan was recognised during the year ended 30 June 2021. During the
year ended 30 June 2020, past service cost of approximately HK$8 million
was recognised due to a landmark ruling of Guaranteed Minimum Pension
Equalisation in UK. Moreover, depreciation decreased from HK$12 million to
HK$9 million. It was mainly due to the disposal of the Vessel.

In addition, the decrease in general and

Fair Value (Loss)/Gain of Financial Assets at Fair
Value through Profit or Loss

During the year under review, the Group recognised fair value loss on the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$15
million (2020: fair value gain of approximately HK$17 million). As for the fair
value loss of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in current year,
the information is set out in the “Review of Operations” section below.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year decreased to approximately HK$33 million from
approximately HK$36 million as compared with the fiscal year 2020, which
was due to the decrease in interest paid on the other interest bearing
borrowing after early partial repayment of other interest bearing borrowing
during the year.
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During the year 2021, the management of the Company shared the same
view as stated by the Organisation of Economic Co-operation and
Development (“OECD”) that containment measures and economic disruptions
related to the COVID-19 outbreak led to a reduction in production and
mobility worldwide, resulting in a significant drop in global demand for gasoil.
Based on that, in February 2021, the Group’s management made the
commercially sensible decision to avoid incurring further losses due to the
impact of COVID-19 which is beyond the control of any company or country,
that is to dispose of its oil tanker. The proceeds on disposal of the oil tanker
was applied towards reducing the interest-bearing loan to save interest cost
of about HK$ 1,950,000 per annum. For detailed reason of the disposal of the
oil tanker, please refer to page 5 of the Company’s announcement dated 9
February 2021. An oil tanker can facilitate the gasoil trading business, but it is
not a must to have one. Even without a replacement oil tanker, the Group can
still engage in and works well in its gasoil trading business. The Company
disposed of such oil tanker after taking into consideration of the Company’s
cashflow need and the general demand for oil products, including gasoail,
which has dropped soon after the outbreak of COVID-19 and the foreseeable
escalating costs of maintaining an oil tanker of such age.

The Company considers that the business model of the gasoil trading
business is a cautious trading business and is not conducted in an indent
manner. Since the entry barrier of such business is high and the transaction
amounts involved are often huge, there is a relatively high expectation on oil
traders for timely delivery and excellent quality management while oil traders
like the Group also has to bear the risk of loss and damages should any
accident happen before the title of gasoil is properly transferred to its
customers given that gasoil is highly flammable, let alone the risk of fluctuation
in oil prices. The Group would hold its own inventory before it gives instruction
to the vessel master to execute transfer of the title of gasoil or unload the
gasoil to the buyer’s designated oil tanker. Therefore, the risk of holding the
gasoil inventory would be borne by the Group before such transfer of title is
executed.

As at 30 June 2021, an inventory of HK$5.8 million was recognized in the
Group’s balance sheet. In order to manage the risk of loss and damage, the
Group would only source gasoil from the suppliers after receiving requests
from customers, and the Group would usually minimise the risk exposure by
requiring the suppliers to deliver the gasoil to the Group within one week. The
Group also has in place valid and sufficient insurance coverage for the
Group’s gasoil inventory until the gasoil is transferred to customers.
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It is worth noting that the entry barrier of the gasoil trading market is high and
owing to the small circle of oil traders and its highly sophisticated nature. It is
evidenced by the industry norm that every oil trader would usually only have a
few suppliers and customers. The Company was able to break into the oil
trading industry due to the management’s business connections. Since then
the Company has been gradually gaining experience in building its reputation
in the oil trading industry in order to gain more access to major oil suppliers.
The management has been meeting major oil suppliers from time to time to
foster closer relationship with them with the aim of enlarging the Group’s oil
procurement capability. As such, the Company is of the view that the trading
business of the Group should be able to revive when COVID-19 is
substantially under control or herd immunity is achieved. Therefore, the
Company considers that the contribution from the trading business of the
Group would resume to its normal level when COVID-19 is resolved and such
business will form an integral part of the Group’s viable business. The
Company has continued to reassess the gasoil market and the oil tanker
market from time to time hoping to acquire a replacement tanker when the
opportunity arises. The suspension of the shipping business is only intended
to be temporary.

The trading business of the Group is cash dependent, that is, the Group
should be able to capture higher profit margin and turnover if it has a stronger
working capital. This is because the Group would be able to source gasoil in
larger quantities, which would give the Group a stronger bargaining power to
negotiate for a lower unit purchase cost from the suppliers and more
favorable credit terms. The Rights Issue and the Disposal exercises will
strengthen the cashflow of the Group upon completion in the near future so
as to enable it to expand its well-developed technology business and
revitalize its trading business.

As such, the management maintains the view that the gasoil market would
pick up again when the negative impact of COVID-19 subsides or materially
alleviates. The Group should therefore gather sufficient working capital to
catch such a wave since the trading business would be profitable if turnover
is high enough. The good thing about gasoil trading is that if more cash is
ready, more profits are available. Therefore, the Group’s management is
mindful of restructuring its financial position in order to make the best use of
fund raising opportunities to enhance its working capital strength. On this
basis, the Board considers that the gasoil trading business is a business
which has substance and is viable and sustainable.
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Climate changes in recent years have raised the awareness of the urgent
need for clean and renewable energy around the world. In line with the Paris
Agreement’s vision to reduce carbon footprint, China’s goal to be carbon
neutral by 2060, as well as the Hong Kong Government’s commitment to
carbon neutrality in the Clean Air Plan for Hong Kong 2035 and the Hong
Kong Climate Action Plan 2030+, the Group has been devoted to supporting
the call for the increased use of Renewable Energy (“
to combat climate change.

RE”) to replace fossil fuel

Since 2018, the Group has been investing substantially with its internal
resources in the research and development of Solar Photovoltaic (“SPV”)
technology products. Throughout these years, the Group had successfully
developed various cost-saving system designs and special semi-flexible solar
panels, which enabled the Group to win a lot of business, including tender
contracts for photovoltaic systems from one of the largest first-class property
developers in Hong Kong.

The Group’s SPV business model fully ties in with the Feed-in Tariff (“FiT”)
Scheme, one of the key foci in the current Scheme of Control Agreements
(“SCAs”) signed between the Hong Kong Government and the two respective
power companies, i.e. The Hongkong Electric Co. Ltd. (“HKE”) and CLP
Power Hong Kong Ltd. (“CLP”) in April 2017.

In order to capture business opportunities with a wider range of clientele, the
Group has been offering three modes of business, with variation in the
proportion of design and installation cost borne by the client and the Group,
to create a win-win business case with clients of different budgets. Depending
on the cost borne by the Group in each project, we would earn a variable
percentage of the FiT income generated, as well as revenue from the project
design and installation fees. In some cases, the Group would sell its projects
to other investors who seek a stable return of income.

With the increased collaboration with construction contractors, some of
whom also referred their customers to the Group for FiT projects since the
construction contractors lack the skills in designing SPV systems, the
procurement channels for reliable and economic solar panels and peripheral
equipment, the warehousing facilities, and an experienced team of
professionals in the FiT scheme application and operation procedures, which
were exactly the Group’s expertise and valuable assets that the Group had
built up over the past years. In these cases, the Group would earn the fees
for our professional services rendered and equipment supplied.
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With the Group’s effort in research and marketing over the past 3 years, our
Renewable Energy business should have entered its harvesting period during
the second half of 2020 as many customers had responded positively to our
designs after studying our show cases. However, the COVID-19 pandemic
had significantly impacted our renewable energy business since January 2020
as officers of the electricity utility companies who were responsible for
approving the FiT applications were unable to inspect the sites and approve
the installation due to the work-from-home and social-distancing
arrangement. Moreover, some landlords of village houses and incorporated
owners of buildings refused visitation of their premises for the inspection and
collection of data for fear of potential exposure to COVID-19 infection. This
has adversely affected our progress of solar power system promotion and
installation.

Despite the challenges and difficulties which arose due to COVID-19, the
Group successfully converted some major Letters of Intent of SPV projects to
formal contracts, which would generate reasonable profit to the Group. The
Group managed to keep installing solar panels on village houses every month
in the year under review. Moreover, the Group’s elite in-house technology and
engineering team developed a semi-flexible ultra-thin special solar panel and
a unique adhesive technology for fixing these solar panels to the troughs of a
metallic roof rather than the traditional intrusive method of driling and
screwing panels to the roof. Such unique solar panel design and installation
technology have earned us good brand mileage among warehouse owners
since such design has effectively reduced the risk of damage usually caused
to the metallic roofs of warehouses.

With the Group’s effort in research and development and expertise in
designing cost-effective and high efficiency SPV systems, the Group was
awarded a tender for the supply and installation of solar panel system by one
of the largest first-class property developers in Hong Kong. The SPV system
installed in Sai Sha spans over 680 sqg. meters and consists of over 1,340
pieces of solar panels. The project had been completed to the satisfaction of
the customer and thereafter they formally invited the Group to submit
proposals for installation of SPV systems at other sites. During the year under
review, the Group completed many other SPV projects and widely expanded
its client network. These clients with village houses and fish ponds opened up
a great referral network for the Group’s System Product line of business.
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The Group has been focusing its efforts in canvassing large projects on
vacant lands in the New Territories as well. These vacant lands have the
benefit of single ownership and several owners of large pieces of land had
been engaging the Group to carry out large scale installation of SPV systems.

The Group has recently constructed its unique photovoltaic system of 226kW
on a piece of vacant land of about 20,000 sqg. ft. and another one of 43kW on
another piece of vacant land of about 5,000 sq. ft. in the New Territories.
These show cases have enabled the Group to attract more businesses from
landowners and fishpond owners.

Revenue generated by Kantone and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Kantone
Group”) was approximately HK$139 million, as compared with approximately
HK$147 million of the previous year. Profit for the year was approximately
HK$5.7 million, as compared with the profit for the previous fiscal year of
approximately HK$3.9 million. During the year under review, the Kantone
Group’s growth in the European market within the healthcare, emergency
services and smart city communication sectors remained steady. In order to
maintain the competitiveness of our products and solutions, the Kantone
Group has continued to focus on optimizing its research and development
resources to provide customers with specific critical messaging and smart
city solutions.

The interconnectivity of devices plays an increasingly important role in today’s
ecosystem of a “Smart City”. Hong Kong being one of the cities with the
highest speed and access coverage of internet connectivity, it has the
advantage of having a head start in the development of “Smart City”. The
Group’s 30 plus years of experience in the technology and communication
sector has enabled it to lead the way in the race. Unlike many other industries
of which the sustainability relies, to a large extent, on their ability to maintain
continuity of business from their predecessors, technology business requires
continual innovation in order to survive and thrive. Therefore, the Group has
been relentlessly innovating to counter the negative impact of technological
obsolescence. In appreciation of the Group’s achievement in IoT
development, we were invited to join the Smart City Consortium in December
2020 and join forces with other elite members to bring Hong Kong towards a
more connected and smart future.
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In order to stay ahead of competition, the Group devoted ample resources
into the development of System Products and in the year under review and it
started to sell its own System Products again. Among these, the self-invented
Simultaneous Massive Smart Body Temperature Detection System (“Smart
Body Temperature Detection System”) was well received by our
customers. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, public facilities, for example
schools, hotels, and commercial buildings needed an effective solution to
check the body temperature of their visitors. The Group’s self-invented
Simultaneous Massive Smart Body Temperature Detection System could
check the temperature of a large group of people at the same time, thus
removing the traffic bottleneck of having to check each visitor's temperature
one by one. The System also uses Atrtificial Intelligence to visually recognize
visitors who did not put their face masks on and would remind them to put on
a mask in order to safeguard public health.

The System has been procured and deployed by various schools and
management offices of commercial buildings across Hong Kong. This system
has been installed in an iconic hotel in Tsim Sha Tsui and Hong Kong's
largest Cruise Terminal in Kai Tak. The Group also made a technology sharing
of the System with Kantone’s UK subsidiary in October 2020, enabling
Kantone’s subsidiary company in UK to open a new product line in UK that
has started generating revenue.

Besides the Smart Body Temperature Detection System, the Group has also
developed the Smart Remote Circuit Breaker Control (“Smart Circuit
Breaker”). This project is a natural extension from the Group’s Solar
Photovoltaic System line of business. Traditionally, a customer who has a
tripped circuit breaker would have to seek help from an electrician to
physically visit the site to reengage the circuit breaker. However, with the help
of the Smart Circuit Breaker, the customer can reengage their tripped circuit
breaker remotely just with a click of the finger on the mobile app. The product
has been very well received under the current pandemic situation because
customers would rather not have the technician visit their home for fear of
possible infection with COVID-19. The Smart Circuit Breaker significantly
reduces the downtime and manpower for maintaining the SPV systems,
which in turn increases the FiT income generated, both for the home owners
and the Group. During the year under review, the Smart Circuit Breaker was
deployed in many of the SPV projects and received much positive feedback
from customers.
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With the Group’s effort in research and development in the area of Radar and
Lidar sensors and Visual Analysis, the Group has successfully developed a
People Counting System with Time of Flight (“TOF”) technology. The TOF
technology significantly increased the accuracy of the system and reduced
the probability of miscounting. In the current world of Big Data, accurate
statistics have never been more important for making informed and financially
favorable business decisions. With the invention of the System, the Group
was invited to submit tenders for people traffic monitoring systems at public
restrooms and the Hong Kong Flower Show.

Social Web Apps UX Design — To fully utilize the Group’s experience in
designing of user interfaces and user experience in its wide range of system
products, the Group was engaged, in the reviewed year, by customers to
design mockup user interface for their social web apps. The mockup process
significantly reduces the lead time for making traditional wireframe design and
expedites the development lifecycle of the web app projects.

Intelligent Construction Work-at-Height Safety Monitoring System — The
system combined a range of proprietary sensor technologies and machine
learning for visual analysis for enhancing the check for safety compliance at
construction sites, especially for work-at-height workers. The system would
help to detect whether the safety harness is securely fastened and whether
the worker has put on all necessary safety equipment before they commence
working at height. A real-time positioning system has also been under
development to be incorporated into the Safety Monitoring System to prevent
workers from entering a hazardous area by mistake and to provide a prompt
alert to the safety officer of the site.

Smart Water Quality Aquaponic Monitoring System — The Group has set up
its own demonstration site in launching the business of Aquaponics after
more than a year of research and development. Aquaponics refers to a food
production system in a controlled environment that contains fish, vegetables,
and microorganisms. Microbial organisms in the system decompose fish
waste to provide nutrients for vegetables, which in turn filter the water source
for the fish. No pesticide and contamination would be involved. This line of
business fully ties in with the Hong Kong Government’s direction of the
Sustainable Agricultural Development Fund and The Sustainable Fisheries
Development Fund.
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During the year under review, the Group successfully constructed Phase 1 of
an aquaponic system for a customer in Yuen Long, which was delivered to
the satisfaction of the customer. We believed this successful case would
open the door for the Group as many landowners and fishpond owners learnt
about the news and made enquiries for building such a system for
themselves. The Group has infused the project with its expertise in loT as
well. Numerous sensors have been incorporated into the system for real time
monitoring of the water quality, e.g. oxygen level, temperature, pH level, etc.
With the real time data, owners of the system can be more promptly and
accurately informed about what can be done to enhance the growth and
quality of the fish and vegetables.

Cloud i-Message

The UK Government and many private companies continue to adopt cloud
solutions, with a cloud first strategy, to meet the need for critical and non-
critical communications, systems and services.

Multitone with the i-Message platform is one of a limited number of suppliers
who can offer the same solutions, and applications via a cloud first, cloud
hybrid platform or full on-premise solution.

This flexibility allows organisations working with Multitone to not only meet the
needs of their businesses today, but also the flexibility to scale and migrate as
their businesses continue to evolve.

Multitone i-Message offers a proven platform for critical and non-critical
integrated communications. It provides an ecosystem that enables
businesses to mobilize the siloed data sources within, to improve efficiencies
and response time significantly.

Multitone is able to offer a wide range of solutions through the Cloud i-Message
system, addressing the needs of not just the core markets of the UK Public
Sector, UK Emergency Service and the NHS, but also the requirements within
diverse organisations such as Power, Utilities, Estate Management, Logistics
and Warehousing facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Other self-developed System Products (continued)

EkoTek® Personal Security

Continuous investment in new product development by the introduction of
our ATEX variant to EkoSecure Pager has allowed its use under an
environment which is vulnerable to the risk of possible explosion. Our
EkoTek® staff and nurse call systems are further enhanced with EkoMS
management software. With EkoMS one can create live alarm maps of its
entire facility. So even new staff members know exactly where to go when
someone calls for help.

At the heart of every EkoTek® installation are one or more EkoTek® Hubs (aka
Controller). Development continues on a new generation of EkoTek® Hubs
which will be released in Q4 2021. The new hubs will increase the potential
size and capability of all EkoTek® installations by supporting an increased
number of devices.

During the year under review, even as the world-wide pandemic situation
remained difficult, our business remained stable, and the demand even
showed a modest growth.
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MANAG EMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Cultural Products

Antique and cultural products are collectible items that have an enhanced
value because of their considerable age. As in previous years, the Company
continues to adopt a cautious approach in handling the cultural products. We
have been acquiring new cultural products or antiques for resale while
keeping ourselves up-to-date with the market conditions in order to capture
the right moment for realizing some of the Group’s inventories of cultural
products at the right price. In addition, we have displayed some selected
cultural products of ours which are also works of art on our Company’s
website to enhance public awareness of our cultural products.

Since our cultural products are work of art that have enhanced value because
of their considerable age, they are not commodities, they should not be
perceived as having impairment issue even after keeping these inventories for
a long period of time.

Cultural products, including precious stones and artifacts, valued at
HK$12,758,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$11,583,000) have been held for
trading and resale in the ordinary course of business. They were included in
the inventories of the Group as at 30 June 2021.

All such cultural products, totalling 368 pieces, have been kept in a secured
warehouse run by a world-renowned security solution company, which is an
independent third party to the Group.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 July 2017,
regarding the disclosable transaction in relation to the acquisition of 51%
equity interest of a Hong Kong company that indirectly owns a hotel in
Dongguan through a PRC subsidiary (the “Acquisition”),
considered the Acquisition was in line with the Group’s business
diversification strategy. In addition, as disclosed in the Audited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities which was announced on 30
April 2018, we noted that the market condition in Dongguan had changed,
with the demand for hotel rooms in those areas, as expected, continued to
remain gloomy, and this aspect was considered when this project was
scrutinised. However, by virtue of the sub-contracting agreements, the
Company can on one hand benefit from the steady, guaranteed income,
while it may, on the other hand, take the initiative to terminate the agreements
with the hotel operator as and when we consider appropriate to enable the
Company to redevelop or to sell the property.

the Directors

The Group has invested in some Hong Kong listed securities, and the Group
conducted this short-term securities trading through the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Champnet Limited.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group recorded fair value loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“Financial Assets at
FVTPL”) of approximately HK$15 milion (2020: fair value gain of
approximately HK$17 million) which was attributable to the negative impact of
global markets’ tumble on rising fears of a worldwide economic recession
and other uncertainties and the tension between the USA and China. The
COVID-19 outbreak which had worsened since February 2020 posted
another significant negative impact to the investment market as a whole.

As at 30 June 2021, the fair value of the investments classified as “Financial
Assets at FVTPL” amounted to approximately HK$42 million (2020:
approximately HK$68 million). Such investment portfolio comprised 6 (2020:
10) equity securities listed in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and one unlisted security. The portfolio of listed securities
was composed of 3 (2020: 7) equity securities which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with the remaining 3 (2020: 3) equity securities
which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

XK OE@

Securities Investments (Continued) BHEEE @
The composition of the Group’s financial assets at fair value through profitor ARNEBEZ AL BET AESZ 2SR EEMAK
loss is given below: JNE
Percentage of
the issued Percentage of
Number of share capital Accumulated total
shares heldby  of the relevant Investment unrealised held-for-
the Group at company at cost at fair value  Fair value at trading
Company Name/Stock Code AALB/ BRORE Notes 30 June 2021 30 June 2021 30 June 2021 (loss)/gain 30 June 2021 investment
A&EE RIBZ-F
RZB=Z-% RA=ZtHZ
AA=TH HEEAR R-BZ-F REAER R-B=-% FEEE
BEZ BITREX NA=+HZ AAEE RSA=tHZz RELEZ
Wi ax R B E REZBDL RERER (BR)/ kWi AREE BAl
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
Financial assets at far value through B2 4 BEGTABZZEBEE
profit or loss
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited EARBERERAR
(Stock code: 8089) (B 5% - 8089) 1 3,259,800 0.77% 3,382,424 (3,274,850) 107,574 0.26%
Vinco Financial Group Limited BEtRERERLA
(Stock code: 8340) (Bt 1R 5% - 8340) 2 15,610,000 244% 12724659 (11,881,719 842,940 2.01%
China Fortune Financial Group Limited FEE %48 EEER QA
(Stock code: 290) (Bt A5+ 290) 3 1,931,400 0.21% 3,167,496 (2,626,704) 540,792 1.29%
Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd EROTERAT
(Stock code: 8292) (B (15 - 8292) 4 180,000 0.11% 2,286,000 (2,255,940) 30,060 0.07%
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited SAZBRERAA
(Stock code: 102) (B 5% - 102) 5 2,500,000 0.06% 2,434,500 (734,500) 1,700,000 4,06%
China Star Entertainment Limited FRESEBRAR
(Stock code: 326) (Bt R 5% - 326) 6 30,450,000 1.22% 24,758,000 13,913,500 38,671,500 92.31%
48,753,079 (6,860,213) 41,892,866 100%
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8089 Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited

Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Chinese Strategic Group”)
are principally engaged in property investments, securities trading, loan
financing, trading business and dealing in, advising on securities and
asset management.

Since Chinese Strategic engaged different business in various sectors,
we have made its property assets and rental income the key point in
our evaluation of its value to Champion’s investment purposes.

As stated in our interim report 2020 and annual report 2020, we
recommend to sell all our shareholding in Chinese Strategic, however,
the trading of Chinese Strategic’s shares are suspended since 17 July
2021, and in the Chinese Strategic’ s announcement dated 17 July
2021 that they continues to take appropriate steps to fulfill the
resumption condition and the China Strategic Group will continue to
review its existing businesses and its financial position from time to time
and is committed to improving the existing business operations and
identifying potential business to expand its source of income in order to
maximise the return to the Shareholders. However, as at the date of
this report, their trading of shares is remained suspend, and their
annual result 2020 was still not be able to published.

During the Year, the Group disposed 3,668,400 shares of Chinese
Strategic with a realised loss of HK$3,653,649 of such investment. As
at 30 June 2021, the Group held 3,259,800 shares in Chinese Strategic
and the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$3,274,850 in respect
of such investment during the Year.

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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8340 Vinco Financial Group Limited

Vinco Financial Group Limited (“Vinco Financial”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Vinco Group”) are principally engaged in
the provision of corporate finance advisory services in Hong Kong.

As the COVID-19 pandemic is yet to be resolved, the business and
operation environments of the Vinco Financial will remain challenging in
2021. Looking ahead, the operating environment is envisaged to
remain challenging as the coronavirus variant is causing a spike in
cases in some countries such as India, Philippines, U.K. and Japan
which imposes additional uncertainty on maintain and/or further tighten
the cross-boundary control social and economic activities. The mobility
of the Vinco’s staff and potential customers have been restricted and
the marketing activities will be slowdown and mainly limited to non-
face-to-face meeting. In light of these uncertainties, the Vinco Financial
expects these factors will temporarily affect our financial performance in
the rest of 2021 until the COVID-19 eases, the domestic and global
markets show signs of recovery as well as there are no travel
restrictions within Asia. In view of the uncertainties about the extent and
continuity of the epidemic, our directors of Vinco Financial will closely
monitor the economic change, maintain a prudent and stable strategy
and react proactively to the challenges and opportunities ahead. To
maintain our competitiveness in the market, the Vinco Financial will
continue to focus on the general advisory services as well as initial
public offerings related projects in Hong Kong. In the meantime, Vinco
Financial will continue to seek for business opportunities in other
financial related services so as to generate greater value for the
shareholders. As one of the active one-stop local corporate finance
advisory firms in Hong Kong, the management of the Vinco Financial is
of the opinion that the business of the Group is on the right track and
the business of the Group is viable and sustainable.

According to Vinco Financial’s interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2021, the Vinco Financial Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$3.75 million and total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$1.2 million.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group held 15,610,000 shares in Vinco

Financial and the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$11,881,719
in respect of such investment during the Year.

There was no disposal of the shares in Vinco Financial during the Year.
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290 China Fortune Financial Group Limited

China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “China Fortune Group”) are
principally engaged in securities and insurance brokerage and provision
of asset management, corporate finance, margin financing and money
lending services.

In its annual result 2021, they mentioned that, in the foreseeable future,
the global economy will inevitably be under the influence of the
development of the pandemic. Meanwhile, as the settling down of the
US election and the economic recovery of countries around the world
at different paces, the bargain between China and the US would
continue. Uncertainties would exist in the new international relationships
in a post-COVID-19 world. However, China Fortune still firmly believe
that we human beings will eventually overcome the virus, and the long-
term growth of China’s overall economy will continue. China Fortune
has strong confidence in the Chinese market and invest a lot in it.
Based in Hong Kong and possessing a global vision, they provide
services to Chinese enterprises and help more Chinese enterprises
enter the international capital market and meanwhile assist more
international investors to explore the long-term value of Chinese market.

As stated in our annual report 2020, China Fortune confronted with the
COVID-19’s challenges, and with China Fortune’ experience and
extensive coverage in corporate finance advisory services, and the fact
that Hong Kong is one of the largest capital markets in the world, when
all such positive factors have been taken into account, the Company
has assessed the status of portfolios, and will sell the stock at the
appropriate time and price level, this plan remained the same.

According to China Fortune’s annual result for the year ended 31
March 2021, China Fortune Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$132 milion and total comprehensive income of approximately
HK$800,000.

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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290 China Fortune Financial Group Limited (Continued)

During the Year, the Group disposed 392,200 shares of China Fortune
with a realised loss of HK$404,184 of such investment. As at 30 June
2021, the Group held1,931,400 shares in China Fortune and the Group
recorded an unrealised loss of HK$2,626,704 in respect of such
investment during the Year.

8292 Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd

Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd (“Worldgate”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Worldgate Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of comprehensive international freight
services, transportation services as well as warehousing services to
customers worldwide and trading of used mobile phones in Hong
Kong.

In our last year interim report 2020, we understood that Malaysia’s
unique geographic location makes it an important transshipment hub.
Port Klang, the major port of the country, is the most important
transshipment hub, with almost 70 percent of the volume being
transshipment. Malaysian freight and logistics market landscape is
fragmented with a large number of players. For instance, the trucking
industry of the country is made up of independent truckers and small
and medium- sized enterprises, who account for more than 70 percent
of the market. However, the industry is expected to transform into a
consolidated state in the future. On the other hand, in Worldgate’s
interim report 2021, Worldgate mentioned that the revenue from the
trucking services which does not involve air freight or sea freight
accounted for approximately Malaysian Ringgit (‘RM”) 11.2 million and
RM11.5 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Revenue from such services mainly consists of delivery fee
for trucking services for both Hong Kong and Malaysia. Such revenue
is mainly driven by the volume of goods delivered, and the numbers of
trips and types of customers served, among other factors. Even these
factors remain unchanged, under the current market situation, we still
plan to sell the stock if price is right.

According to Worldgate’s interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2021, Worldgate Group recorded revenue of approximately RM21
million and total comprehensive loss of approximately RM2 million.
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8292 Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd (Continued)

As stated in our annual report 2020 and interim report 2020, our plan
to sell the stock has remained unchanged in view of its current
situation.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group held 180,000 shares in Worldgate and
the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$2,255,940 in respect of
such investment during the Year.

There was no disposal of the shares in Worldgate during the year.

102 Summit Ascent Holdings Limited

Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (“Summit Ascent”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Summit Ascent Group”)
conducted through its 60 percent equity interest in Oriental Regent
Limited (“Oriental Regent”) in the operation of gaming and hotel. The
Summit Ascent Group also received a management fee income
calculated at 3 percent of the total gaming revenue, net of rebates,
generated by G1 Entertainment Limited Liability Company, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Oriental Regent.

As stated in Summit Ascent’s interim report 2021, Macau’s leading
junket operator Suncity Group’s listed arm has a certain percentage
stake in Summit Ascent, and now it became 24.74 percent. In its 2018
annual report filed with the Stock Exchange, Summit Ascent wrote, “We
are optimistic about the potential collaboration with the Suncity Group.”
Regarding its major project of Tigre de Cristal, it is in the Primorsky Krai
Integrated Entertainment Zone outside Vladivostok. Vladivostok’s
geographical environment is unique, it attracts some particular players,
and is near to northeastern China, Korea and Japan. It has sea
beaches and is a good summer resort.

According to Summit Ascent’s interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2021, Summit Ascent Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$129 million and total comprehensive expense of
approximately HK$8 million, respectively. The Summit Ascent’s total
revenue was, 35% to HK$129.5 million in the 1H 2021 compared to
HK$96.0 million in the 1H 2020 when Tigre de Cristal suspended its
operations for about 3 months temporarily due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 in early 2020. Summit Ascent to focus on the local market in
the Russian Federation and recorded a positive Adjusted EBITDA of
HK$17.2 million in the 1H 2021, compared to a negative Adjusted
EBITDA of HK$22.1 million in the 1H 2020.
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102 Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Continued)

In view of the above, we expect the prospect of their business to go in
a positive direction, and that keeping it in our investment portfolio will in
turn benefit our Group when the current market regains stability

As at 30 June 2021, the Group held 2,500,000 shares in Summit
Ascent and recorded an unrealized loss of HK$734,500 in respect of
such investment during the Year.

There was no disposal of the shares in Summit Ascent during the Year.

326 China Star Entertainment Limited

China Star Entertainment Limited (“China Star Entertainment”), and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “China Star Entertainment
Group”) are principally engaged in investment, production, distribution
and licensing of films and television drama series, provision of artist
management services, properties development and investment
operations.

As stated in their own interim results 2021, China Star mentioned that
they did not distribute any new film, and the revenue arises from
distribution of films in film library. However, they find a way by making
investment in production of film which is co-financing with other
production companies and will shared revenue from the invested fim
according to the investment percentage in the relevant agreement. The
China Star takes a passive role in this kind of co-production
arrangement but needs to contribute less human resource. After the
outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) in early 2020, all
film productions have temporary suspended or slowed down. During
this difficult period, we concentrate to pre-production stage of fim
production such as preparation of story board. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
adjust its business strategy on our fim related business operations.
This shows their flexibilities in these complicated industries.
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326 China Star Entertainment Limited (Continued)

China Star’s another sector — property development sector also has
some progress. Project Tiffany House which is located adjacent to
Macao Polytechnic Institute and next to Golden Lotus Square, and is a
couple of blocks away from Macau Fisherman’s Wharf and Sands
Casino. Project Tiffany House has a gross floor area of (a) residential —
31,192 square meters, including approximately 1,900 square meters
for clubhouse, (b) commercial — 3,716 square meters and (c) parking
— 11,250 square meters and will provide 230 units in two towers, with
units ranging from studio flats to four-bedroom apartments as well as
special units. Project Tiffany House is expected to be launched for sale
in the fourth quarter of year 2021. Another one of their projects —
development of the Property C7 is expected to start after the
development of the Project Tiffany House.

We still expected the contribution from these will be significant after the
effects of COVID-19 outbreak start to fade.

According to China Star’s interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2021, China Star Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$1.2 milion and total comprehensive expense of approximately
HK$36 million.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group held 30,450,000 shares in China Star

Group and the Group recorded an unrealised gain of HK$38,671,500
in respect of such investment.

There was no disposal of the Shares in China Star during the Year.

The Company has gained experience of sufficient length and there is a need
to build a good reputation in order to gain more access to major oil suppliers.
The Group’s management has been meeting major oil suppliers from time to
time to foster closer relationship with them with the aim of enlarging the
Group’s oil procurement capability.
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The negative impact of COVID-19 is still not yet completely resolved, and the
delta variant, which was first detected in India last October, has been found in
more than 130 countries globally, according to the World Health Organization,
and it has not spared countries with some of the highest vaccination rates.
But according to a study in the U.K., where the delta variant is also fueling a
rise in infections, it found that two doses of Pfizer-BioNTech or the vaccine by
AstraZeneca-Oxford University were nearly as effective against delta as they
were against the alpha variant. As such, the management maintains the view
that the gasoil market would pick up again when the negative impact of
COVID-19 subsides or materially alleviates.

The Group should therefore gather sufficient working capital to catch such a
wave since the trading business would be profitable if turnover is high
enough. The good thing about oil trading is that if more cash is ready, more
profits are available. Therefore, the Group’s management is mindful of
restructuring its financial position in order to capitalize on fund raising
opportunities to enhance its working capital strength. On this basis, we
consider that the oil trading business is a business which has substance, is
viable and sustainable.

We expect that our current rights issue (“Rights Issue”) exercise would
enable the Company to raise about HK$205 million. Please refer to our
announcement dated 18 May 2021 for more details. As for the disposal of
our 59.04% stake in Kantone Holdings Limited, it would generate HK$56
million net for the Company. These two corporate actions required approval
by shareholders in special general meeting which is being arranged.
Assuming that both of these corporate actions could materialise and the
funds would be utilized to fully repay the loan of HK$185 million owing to
Guangdong Finance Limited and the promissory note with principal sum of
HK$44 million, the Company would be debt free and would be able to make
use of the remaining funds as working capital to strengthen the businesses of
gasoil trading, the renewable energy and the loT system sales.

With the forward vision of the management team years ago, the Group has
been able to grasp the best timing and opportunity to start developing its
proprietary techniques and equipment in designing an economic yet high-
performing Solar Photovoltaic System.
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With the Group’s outstanding achievement and reputation in the industry, we
have generated successful referrals from the existing customers and the
chain of targeted customers in the pipeline who are inviting us to submit
tenders or direct proposals leading to profitable projects. Further to similar
projects previously completed, the Group was invited again to submit
proposals for building the SPV system on other sites of one of the largest
property developers in Hong Kong. In addition, we have also received
invitations from a national inspection and testing company to build SPV
systems on the roof of their building covering over 5,400 sq. meters; and
invitation from the largest publishing company in Hong Kong to build an SPV
systems on the roof of their industrial building in Tai Po.

The Group will continue to explore opportunities in building SPV systems on
village houses and buildings, with an additional focus in developing the
market in vacant lands in the New Territories because of the extra benefits
discussed in the Review Section of this annual report. We believe the
development of client network of our SPV line of business will be mutually
beneficial to our System Products line of business since many clients who are
the owners of the vacant land and fishponds agree and share our vision in
building Aquaponic Systems to support sustainable farming and fishery. We
will also continue to invest in research and development for the latest
technology and techniques in building more efficient and cost-effective SPV
systems to gain an edge in the highly competitive scene of Hong Kong
Renewable Energy business!
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Energy Management System

Holistically speaking, with a growing network of SPV systems across Hong
Kong, the challenge of managing the individual sites increases exponentially,
including the monitoring of the operation of solar panels and the production
of energy, as well as the detection of any abnormality that may hinder the
production of solar power. To cope with the development of the Group’s
solar power network and to increase the efficiency of energy production and
in turn the FT income generated, the Group has been investing different
resources in the self development of a Total Intelligent Energy Management
System (“Energy Management System”). The System would provide a one-
stop portal for live energy generation data, as well as historical data for
analysis. The System would also be integrated with the Smart Remote Circuit
Breaker Control, so that the circuit breakers could be controlled from within
the system automatically. The system would also make use of machine
learning to detect if any solar panel malfunctions, so that our experienced
technicians can find out the problematic solar panels more easily and
efficiently and promptly repair the panels. The Group will continue to make
use of its technical expertise and synergize with the growing client base of
SPV to promote this line of business. In the long term, the aquaponic systems
and other IoT systems will also be integrated into the Total Intelligent loT
system to provide one-stop service for our customers.

The Group’s development of SPV technique has become more mature and
we have received enquiries from various clients who would like to retain the
solar power generated for their own use instead of feeding it into the power
grid. Considering the growing demand, the Group’s technical team is working
closely with rechargeable batteries suppliers and industry experts to develop
a solar rechargeable device with high safety standard and energy efficiency.
Thanks to the valuable network of suppliers with whom the Group has
accumulated over years of cooperation, we will continue to develop the
product with an edge of safety, performance, and value for money.
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With the advancement of artificial intelligence (“A.l.”) algorithms and the ever-
growing speed of Graphics Processing Units (“GPU”), the possibility of A.l.
applications is endless. Many models of enterprise grade server with high-end
GPU configuration have entered the market in response to the growth of ALl
applications. However, non-technical Small and Medium Enterprises (“SME”)
lack the technical know-how of configurating and integrating such high-
performance computers into their day-to-day operation. With the elite IT
expert team of the Group, we are creating a new line of business to provide
ready-to-use solutions with these high-performance technology stacks. On
the one hand this helps SMEs to grasp the benefit of using high-performance
computers in their businesses for quicker and more accurate forecasting and
making informed business decisions with the aid of A.l. and machine learning;
while on the other generating revenue for the Group from the design of the
hardware stack, distribution of the software licenses and professional
consultation for design and on-going support and maintenance of the
hardware and software platform.

As stated in the interim report 2021, the trading of cultural products used to
be another business of the Group, and the 3 pure gold ornaments kept by an
independent third party renowned jewelry retailer under the consignment for
sale were sold. In addition, we have displayed our cultural products which are
also work of art in our Company’s website to enhance public awareness of
our cultural products. We have been acquiring new cultural products or
antiques for resale while keeping ourselves up-to-date with the market
conditions in order to capture the right moment for realizing some of the
Group’s inventories of cultural products at the right price.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 July 2017,
regarding the disclosable transaction in relation to the acquisition of 51%
equity interest of a Hong Kong company that indirectly owns a hotel in
Dongguan through a PRC subsidiary (the “Acquisition”), the Directors
considered the Acquisition was in line with the Group’s business
diversification strategy. In addition, as disclosed in our interim report 2021,
we noted that the market condition in Dongguan had changed. As expected,
demand for hotel rooms in those areas continues to be depressed, and this
factor was considered when this project was reviewed. By virtue of the
subcontracting agreements, the Company can, on one hand, benefit from the
steady, guaranteed income, while it may, on the other hand, take the initiative
to terminate the agreements with the hotel operator when we consider it
appropriate. If the sub-contracting agreements are terminated, we may
redevelop the subject properties (together with the vacant and unused
portions of land adjacent thereto) afresh into a brand new residential
commercial complex project, whereby unlocking the true and inherent value
of the land. We believe that the Company would be able to realize such
hidden potential in this project in the foreseeable future.

While working on the redevelopment plan, the Company would actively
negotiate with property developers who are looking for residential-sites in the
Greater Bay Area to provide the Company with a wider choice of selling this
project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Financial Position and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remained positive.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had approximately HK$136 million (2020:
approximately HK$107 million) liquid assets made up of deposits, bank
balances and cash. Current assets were approximately HK$284 million (2020:
approximately HK$310 million) and current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$100 million (2020: approximately HK$133 million). With net
current assets of approximately HK$184 million (2020: approximately HK$177
million), the Group maintained a healthy level of financial liquidity. Gearing ratio
at 30 June 2021 is not available as the Group had deficit attributable to
owners of the Company (2020: 14.8).

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s total borrowings comprised other borrowing
of HK$185 million (2020: HK$210 million) and promissory note payable of
approximately HK$38 million (2020: approximately HK$41 million), and there
was no borrowing which required to be repaid within one year (2020:
approximately HK$51 million) and HK$223 million would be repayable in the
following year (2020: HK$200 million). Finance costs for the year were
approximately HK$33 million (2020: approximately HK$36 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(Continued)

A. Fund Raising Activities

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group completed a fund
raising exercise to strengthen its financial position and raised total gross
proceeds of approximately HK$86.7 million, with the net proceeds
therefrom having been applied as follows:
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30 May 2018 Rights issue on the Approximately For partial repayment of ~ HK$50.0 million was utilized for partial repayment of the loan
(Note) basis of one rights HK$86.7 million loan due to owing to Guangdong Finance Limited and approximately
—E-N\F share for every two 786,700,000/ 7T Guangdong Finance HK$20.0 million was utilized for administrative expenses and
FA=1+AH existing shares Limited under a facility operation expenses and payment of interest on borrowings,
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date at HK$0.40 into between the business; and approximately HK$12.1 million respectively
per rights share Company and was utilized and the remaining amount of approximately
EEREREKR Guangdong Finance HK$2.9 million were still kept for our working capital on
0.407 JTU M 30 8% Limited and for internet communication projects of the Group. The board of
FHERAEMQ investment in internet directors expected that the remaining balance of
IR 3R MR 10 1 communication approximately HK$2.9 million will be fully utilised during the
—(RERER R projects of the Group fiscal year of 2022,
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HK$20.0 million as administrative and operation expenses
and payment of interest on borrowings:
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Use of proceeds Amount

FERERRE k-]
(HK$000)
(F#T)

Loan interest 7,400

BRFE

Cash flow for the trading business 8,300

BEBRERE

General operating expenses 300

—REERT

Legal and professional fee 400

ERREEER

Rent, management fee & government rates 1,000

e EREAREM

Staff salaries 2,600

I

Total: 20,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(Continued)

A.

38

Fund Raising Activities (Continued)

Note:

On 10 July 2018, 54 valid acceptances in respect of a total of 133,666,176

rights shares provisionally allotted and 60 valid applications for a total of
18,140,286 excess rights shares under the rights issue were received. In
aggregate, acceptance of and applications for a total of 151,806,462 rights
shares were received. Based on the acceptance and application results, the
rights issue was undersubscribed. Pursuant to the terms of the underwriting
agreement, the underwriters (Get Nice Securities Limited and Head &
Shoulders Securities Limited) eventually took up the 76,137,154

undersubscribed shares.

Fund Raising Activities of a subsidiary —

Kantone

During the year ended 30 June 2020, Kantone completed a fund-
raising exercise to strengthen its financial position and raised total gross
proceeds of approximately HK$6.3 million, with the net proceeds

therefrom having been applied as follows:
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Set out below is a further breakdown of the use of
approximately HK$3,900,000 as administrative expenses
and operation expenses:

TREF43,900,000B TTHAZ REERST 2 HEH
i

Use of proceeds Amount

FEXERR 8
(HK$'000)
(F&T)

Directors’ remuneration 604

EEkn

Purchase of consignment goods 3,136

BETEED

Legal and professional fees 139

EEREXEER

General expenses 21

—REERX

Total: 3,900
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In order to accommodate to the growth of the Group and to provide
the Company with greater flexibility to raise funds by the Rights Issue,
the Board proposes to seek the approval by way of ordinary resolution
by shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting (“SGM”)
for an increase in its authorised share capital from HK$150,000,000
divided into 1,500,000,000 Shares to HK$1,600,000,000 divided into
16,000,000,000 Shares by creating an additional 14,500,000,000
unissued Shares (“Authorised Share Capital”). The Board believes the
Increase in Authorised Share Capital are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole. Up to the
date of this report, proposed increase in Authorised Share Capital has
not yet been completed. Further details of this transaction are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 18 May 2021.

Conditional upon the increase in Authorised Share Capital as mentioned
above becoming effective and the approval by the independent
shareholders at the SGM, the Board proposed to raise gross proceeds
of approximately HK$205 million on the basis of three (3) Rights Shares
for every one (1) existing Share held on the Record Date by issuing
2,051,492,544 Rights Shares at the Subscription Price of HK$0.1 per
Rights Share (assuming no further issue of new Share(s) and no
repurchase of Share(s) by the Company on or before the record date
as announced by the Company from time to time subject to the
approval of Stock Exchange (“Record Date”)). The Rights Issue (“Rights
Issue”) is only available to the Qualifying Shareholders and will not be
extended to the Excluded Shareholders. The estimated net proceeds (after
the deduction of the costs and expenses which the Company will incur
in the Rights Issue) will be approximately HK$198 million (assuming no
further issue of new Share(s) and no repurchase of Share(s) by the
Company on or before the Record Date). The Company intends to
apply the net proceeds from the Rights Issue for partial repayment of
its indebtedness and to enhance its working capital to expand the
renewable energy business as well as the technology and oil trading
business of the Group. Up to the date of this report, the proposed
Rights Issue has not yet been completed. Further details of this
transaction are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
18 May 2021, 22 June 2021 and 15 September 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(Continued)

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to manage its financial resources prudently and to
maintain a positive liquid financial position with reasonable gearing. The
Group finances its operation and business development by a combination of
internally generated resources, capital market instruments and banking
facilities. All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the Company in the
form of fixed loans, margin loans and promissory notes. As all the Group’s
borrowings were denominated in their local currencies, the currency risk
exposure associated with them was insignificant. The Group does not engage
in any speculative derivatives or structured product transactions, interest rate
or foreign exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to manage
foreign exchange risk through matching foreign exchange income with
expenses and, where significant exposure to foreign exchange is anticipated,
appropriate hedging instruments may be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s did not have any material capital
commitments (2020: approximately HKS$ Nil).

Charges

As at 30 June 2021, the other interest bearing borrowing of the Group of
HK$185 million was secured by personal guarantee provided by Ms. Wong
Man Winny (an executive Director and chairperson of the Board) (“Existing
Guarantor”) and the 128,137,958 shares of Kantone owned by the Company
which represents 59.04% of the issued share capital of Kantone. As disclosed
in announcement dated 4 November 2020, in view of the fact that the
lender’s security interest in the shares of Kantone has been diluted as a result
of the placing of shares of Kantone (as announced by the Company on 6 May
2020 and 18 May 2020) and that the lender agreed to extend the repayment
date to 7 October 2021, the lender requested the Company to provide
additional collaterals to the lender.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(Continued)

Charges (Continued)

Accordingly, on 4 November 2020, the Company, the Existing Guarantor and
the lender entered into a second supplemental deed (the “Second
Supplemental Deed”) pursuant to which the Company shall provide
additional collaterals to the lender, including the following share charges
(collectively, the “Share Charges”) in respect of the shares of certain
subsidiaries of the Group which were executed on the same day by the
Group in favour of the lender:

(1) the share charge in respect of all issued shares in Champion Luck
International Limited, which is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the
property situated at Room 703, 1188 Shangchuan Road, Shanghai,
PRC valued at approximately HK$3.9 million as at 30 June 2020;

(2)  the share charge in respect of all issued shares in Champion Million
Industries Limited, which is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the
property situated at Room 702, 1188 Shangchuan Road, Shanghai,
PRC valued at approximately HK$3.8 million as at 30 June 2020; and

(8)  the share charge in respect of all issued shares in Champion Pacific
Investment Limited, which is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the
property situated at Room 8A, Tianji Building F4.8, Tianan
Chegongmiao Industrial Zone, Futian District, Shenzhen, PRC valued at
approximately HK$33 million as at 30 June 2020.

Besides, certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with the
aggregate carrying amounts of approximately HK$11 milion have been
pledged as collaterals for the defined benefit retirement scheme of certain
subsidiaries operated in UK.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2020:
Nil).
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On 9 February 2021, Lucky Global Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which is principally engaged
in the business of investment holding (the “Vendor”), entered into the
agreement with Grandway International Marine Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is
principally engaged in the business of trading in gasoil (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Vendor would sell and the Purchaser would
purchase the entire issued share capital of the Champion Energy
Logistics Co Ltd (the “Target”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and is principally engaged in the
business of investing in and holding the Vessel. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the Sale Shares were sold for a consideration of
HK$20,180,000. The principal asset of the Target was the vessel which
was a Panamanian flag oil tanker named “Distinction 01” (“Vessel”).
The Vessel was delivered to the Purchaser upon completion. The
completion took place on 26 February 2021. Further details of this
transaction are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 9
February 2021 and 26 February 2021.

On 31 May 2021, the Company as seller and Innovative City Investment
Limited as purchaser entered into the sale and purchase agreement
(“SPA”), pursuant to which Innovative City has conditionally agreed to
acquire and the Company has conditionally agreed to sell the Shares,
being 128,137,958 shares of the Company entire shareholdings in
Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”), representing approximately
59.04% of the entire issued share capital of Kantone (“Kantone
Share”) (the “Disposal”). As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as
defined under the Listing Rules) in respect of the Disposal is above
75%, the Disposal constitutes a very substantial disposal for Champion
and is therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. A SGM will be convened and held by the Company for the
Company’s Shareholders to consider and, if thought fit, to approve,
among other things, the Disposal. However, upon the completion of the
disposal, Kantone will not be a subsidiary company of the Group. Up to
the date of this report, the Disposal has not yet been completed.
Further details of this transaction are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 25 August 2021 and 15 September 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(Continued)

Significant investments held, material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, and future plans for material investments
or capital assets (continued)

C. As at the date of this report, Multitone UK, a subsidiary of the
Company, has been negotiating with the owners of an office building
located right next to its existing office for acquisition of such property at
around GBP600,000 (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The Proposed
Acquisition, if materialized, would constitute a discloseable transaction
of the Company. Other than the Proposed Acquisition, there is no plan
for other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the
date of this report.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments held,
no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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Ms. WONG Man Winny, aged 47, has been an executive Director and the
Chairperson of the Board since October 2017. She is currently an executive
director and the Chairperson of the board of directors of Kantone, which is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and a director of Multitone
UK. Ms. Wong served as the licensed representative of Business Securities
Limited from 2003 to 2004. She has over 10 years of experience in corporate
management and investment. Ms. Wong is the sole director of Worldwide
Peace Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company which falls
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. LIU Ka Lim, aged 65, has been re-designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from October 2020 and continue to serve as an
authorised representative of the Company. He was an executive Director from
October 2016 to October 2020. He has over 30 years of professional
experience in the field of finance and accounting. He is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Liu is currently a
non-executive director of Kantone, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He was an executive Director of Kantone from October
2016 to October 2020. He is also a director of serval subsidiaries of the
Group. From March 2004 to August 2006, Mr. Liu was the chairman of
Galileo Capital Group Limited (now known as Sun International Group
Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. From October
2003 to March 2006, Mr. Liu was the chairman of Wonderful World Holdings
Limited (now known as Good Resources Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From January 2011 to June 2013,
Mr. Liu was a non-executive director of United Pacific Industries Limited (now
known as Superactive Group Company Limited), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica, aged 41, has been a non-executive Director
since July 2017. Ms. To is currently a Barrister-at-Law. Ms. To holds a
postgraduate certificate in laws from University of Hong Kong and a graduate
diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester Metropolitan
University. Ms. To was admitted as a barrister of the High Court of HKSAR in
2009. Ms. To has more than 10 years of experience in the legal field. Ms. To
is currently a non-executive director of Kantone, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and a director of Multitone UK.
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Mr. LEUNG Man Fai, aged 57, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since June 2017. Mr. Leung has extensive
experience in accounting and finance. Mr. Leung received a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of Kantone (stock
code: 1059), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Leung served as a financial controller and company secretary
of a private company during 2003 to 2006. From 1996 to 2003, he served
various roles including financial controller, company secretary and finance
manager in several listed companies within the ITC Corporation Limited (now
known as PT International Development Corporation Limited) (stock code:
372), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He also worked as a senior accountant from 1992 to 1996 in Hopewell
Holdings Limited, which was de-listed from the Stock Exchange on 3 May
2019. Mr. Leung was also an independent non-executive director of China
Aluminum Cans Holdings Limited (stock code: 6898), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period from June
2013 to June 2016. Currently, Mr. Leung is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Da Ming International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1090), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei, aged 31, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since June 2017. Mr. Chan graduated from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2011 with a bachelor’s degree
in Electronic & Computer Engineering. Mr. Chan is a young inventor and
entrepreneur in Hong Kong. In 2004, he won the Second Award in
Engineering Category in the 55th Intel International Science and Engineering
Fair in the United States of America for his invention of a smart security robot.
An asteroid no. 20780 was named after him. In 2006, Mr. Chan’s
autobiography “Chan Yik Hei, The Young Man Who Grabbed The Star* (1 £
VEEBR 5 %) was published, and became one of the bestsellers on the
Hong Kong Book Fair. He was also the torchbearer of the 54th Olympic torch
relay in Hong Kong and a member of the management committee of The
Church of Christ in China Tam Lee Lai Fun Memorial Secondary School. In
2016, he was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government.
Mr. Chan is one of the founding shareholders of Bull.B Technology Limited,
which provides (i) online platform and development services; and (i) mobile
application development services, including FinTech platform development
and educational apps.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
Dl RECTO RS (Continued)

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand, aged 65, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since March 2018. From January 2004 to
August 2006, Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of Galileo
Capital Group Limited (now known as Sun International Group Limited) (stock
code: 8029), the shares of which are traded on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
British Columbia. Formerly a foreign correspondent, he held various key
communications roles in government agencies, the Hong Kong Jockey Club,
a major international charity, and tertiary academic institutions. He is currently
responsible for public relations and communications at an educational
institution.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 52, has been the company secretary of the Company
since October 2016, and he is also the chief financial officer and an
authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Chan has 29 years of
experience in accounting and financial management. Mr. Chan holds a
master degree in Professional Accounting awarded by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Chan is currently the chief financial officer, company secretary and an
authorised representative of Kantone and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company.
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Mr. Edward Paterson, aged 49, is the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of
Multitone UK. As CEO, he is responsible for managing the overall operations
and resources of the group. He is also a director of several of the Group’s
subsidiaries. He has a strong IT and technical background, is a member of
the British Computer Society and a member of the Institute of Directors. He is
prioritising the development of new technologies and solutions into the
Multitone UK product portfolio to allow the group to realise the potential of
opportunities in new marketplaces. He joined the group in 2000 in an IT role
and has held positions within the IT and Operations Management and more
recently as Operations Director before becoming CEO on 1st January 2020.

Mr. Frank ROTTHOFF, aged 58, is the managing director of German
operations and head of international market. He was also a director of
Multitone UK. He joined the Group in 2008 and has extensive experience in
sales and marketing management in the electronics industry. His earlier
career covered international sales of industrial machinery and process
technology before entering the semiconductor sector in 1989. He was
responsible for the sales and marketing of a leading European distributor of
electronic components before joining the Group.
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The Directors would like to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the trading and transportation of gasoil and trading of cultural
products, system sales including renewable energy systems and the related
engineering work, software development and licensing and customisation,
leasing of system products and strategic investment.

A review of the Group’s business, an indication of its likely future development
and an analysis as well as particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the year ended 30 June 2021 are
discussed in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management Discuss and
Analysis”, sections from pages 5 to 43. On the other hand, a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 64 to 88. The above discussions
form part of this report.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection and energy
conservation to enhance the capacity of sustainable development and
undertake relative social responsibility. Through the establishment of an ever-
improving management system, energy conservation and environmental
protection were strongly promoted, leading to the remarkable achievement of
environmental management.

Pursuant to Rule 13.91 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the Company will publish an
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report no later than five
months after the end of the financial year in compliance with the provision set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELATED LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws,
rules and regulations, in particular, those of which may have a significant
impact on the Group. Save as otherwise disclosed and as far as the Board
and management are aware, the Group has complied with all related laws
and regulations in all material aspects which may have significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group during the year under review.

RELATIONSHIP OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Company believes that employees, customers and business partners are
the key to maintain continuous sustainable development. The Company is
committed to be people-oriented and build up good relationship with its
employees. The Group provides on-the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression. Through different
trainings, staff’s professional knowledge in corporate operations, occupational
and management skills are enhanced. The Group also values the health and
well-being of its staff. In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance benefits. The Group also works
together with its business partners to provide high quality products and
services to achieve the goal of sustainable development and contribution to
the society.

There was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
distributors and/or customers during the year under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 98 to 99 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil). Capital will be reserved for the
expansion of the Group’s business and to capture investment opportunities
arising in the future. There is no arrangement that any shareholder of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.
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Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The board of directors of the Company established a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) in December 2018, pursuant to which the Company may
declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take into account,
among other things, the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group, retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, cash flow, working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans of the Group, the
liquidity position of the Group, general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group’s business, future prospects and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company and any other relevant factors that the Board may
consider relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of Bermuda and the
Company’s Bye-laws. The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy
from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
under review are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 102 and note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

Details of the distributable reserve of the Company as at 30 June 2021 are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 239 to 240.

INTEREST BEARING OTHER BORROWING

Particulars of interest bearing other borrowing of the group as at 30 June
2021 are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Company during the year ended 30 June
2021 amounted to HK$29,000 (2020: HK$11,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 15 to 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Director

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Ka Lim (re-designated on 23 October 2020)
Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai (retired on 17 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai
Mr. CHAN Yik Hei
Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), one-third of the Directors for the time being, (or if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation so that each Director shall be subject to retirement at

least once every three years.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation) as at the date of this report.

52 Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

EERBRBEY

AEERBERAREAHL EF5:

HBITES

H Lt (ER)

FHUTEES
EPERAER-_E-2F+A-+ZABM

P 2+
MEEAER-_F_FTF+-_A+EREME)

BAUFHITES

RXBEEE
BR5 %kt
HE XL

RBARQBARARR (2B A E87(1) 5
ER =N 2EF(IMEFAHLIF=
ZEE AREAEBTIR=Z02 -2 N80
BWMERET UWHSEFAZLE=FRME

_/A°

RABREHH HEEFTLEMNAKEED
ER—FRNBEELHECEEMERIN M
RIEZRIEEHL -



EETHRG
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there is no other change in
the Directors’ information required to be disclosed during the year under
review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company and its subsidiary, Kantone, has a share option scheme
under which eligible persons, including directors of the Company, Kantone or
any of their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares of the Company and Kantone respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and Kantone are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the share option
schemes of the Company and Kantone.

Other than the share option schemes described in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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As at
chief

30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying share and

debentures of the Company or any of their spouses or children under
eighteen years of age or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set forth
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RESTA(RESFR] RAARE RB MR
TEHZBHN BEFERARATEITRAR
FEHEBIXAB T/ \RZFRERRARE
ERABBEE(EERLZFSF LA BRI EXV
)z RO REFTER 2 EE N

under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows: KB
Approximate
percentage*
Number of of the issued
Name of Director Capacity shares share capital
HEBITREZ
EEnR g7 R4 & E BAE D
Ms. Wong Man Winny Interest of controlled corporation 442,359,000(L) (Note 1) (Fi#E1) 64.69%
|mH AL REHDEEER
Mr. Liu Ka Lim Beneficial owner 498,000(L) 0.07%
BEREE EmEE A
Notes: B 3T -
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As at 30 June 2021, these shares of the Company were held by Worldwide Peace
Limited, which is wholly- owned by Ms. Wong Man Winny, the current chairperson and
executive director of the Company. Ms. Wong Man Winny is deemed to be interested
in 110,589,750 shares of the Company, representing approximately 16.17% of the
issued share of the Company held by Worldwide Peace Limited. On 18 May 2021, the
Company, Get Nice Securities Limited and Kingston Securities Limited entered into the
underwriting agreement. Pursuant to the shareholder irrevocable undertakings,
Worldwide Peace Limited has provided irrevocable and unconditional undertakings to
the Company, Get Nice Securities Limited and Kingston Securities Limited to, among
other things, (i) accept the provisional allotment of an aggregate of 331,769,250 Rights
Shares; and (i) not to sell or transfer the Shares held by them in any manner before the
completion or lapse of the Rights Issue. As at the date of this report, the proposed
Rights Issue has not yet been completed.

The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in the shares of the Company.

The percentage represents the number of shares involved divided by the number of
the Company’s issued shares as at 30 June 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of
the SFO) as at 30 June 2021 as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions” below,
no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries, holding company
and any of their subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions” below,
no contract of significance has been entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Group did not conduct any non-exempt
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group had entered into certain
transactions with parties which were regarded as “Related Parties” under the
applicable accounting principles. Details of those related party transactions
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. The
transactions which are considered as connected transactions under the
Listing Rules are further disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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As at 30 June 2021, the following person (other than the interests of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ interests and short positions in securities” above) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO:

RZZE-—FRNA=1+H REZFLHE
GO FE336IEREARRBIATIRFZERRMAT
8 THAL(EXEFTZESFED LA
BI—BARBEARAESHATRER 2R
BROMNRARE Z Befn RARBR O P A a

RAR -

Name

=E

Worldwide Peace Limited
BEFEARAA

Get Nice Securities Limited

BHESBRAA

Get Nice Incorporated

Get Nice Financial Group Limited
HiremEEARAF

Get Nice Holdings Limited
BEHERAR AT

Honeylink Agents Limited

Hung Hon Man
HEX

Kingston Securities Limited
EMEBHFBERAA

Capacity

4%

Beneficial owner

BHEBEAA

Underwriter

BIHE

Interest of controlled corporation
EEGEEER

Interest of controlled corporation
REDEEE R

Interest of controlled corporation
EESEEE R

Interest of controlled corporation
REHEEE R

Interest of controlled corporation

AR A B A i

Beneficial owner

BEHmEA A

Underwriter

BIHE

Number of
shares

gk 4=

442,359,000(L)

1,019,795,913(L)

1,019,795,913(L)

1,019,795,913(L)

1,019,795,913(L)

1,019,795,913(L)

1,019,795,913(L)

455(1)

700,000,000(L)

BEMREEERLF

(Note 1) (B 5£1)

(Notes 2 and 3) (Fff 72 5.3)

(Notes 2 and 3)(Fff3F2 %3)

(Notes 2 and 3)(Fff 72 %.3)

(Notes 2 and 3)(Fff3F2 %3)

(Notes 2 and 3)(Fff 72 %.3)

(Notes 2 and 3)(Fff3F2 %3)

(Notes 2 and 4)(Fff 332 % 4)

(Notes 2 and 4)(Fff sE2%.4)

S

Approximate
percentage*

of the issued

share capital

HEBITHREAZ
BB D

64.69%

37.28%

37.28%

37.28%

37.28%

37.28%

37.28%

25.59%
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Approximate

percentage*
Number of of the issued
Name Capacity shares share capital
HERITRAZ
=L &t (V&g 4= ESEER
Galaxy Sky Investments Limited  Interest of controlled corporation 700,000,455(L) (Notes 2 and 4)(KfE2%4) 25.59%
REHEEES
Kingston Capital Asia Limited Interest of controlled corporation 700,000,455(L) (Notes 2 and 4)(fff 72 1.4) 25.59%
REHAEER
Kingston Financial Group Limited  Interest of controlled corporation 700,000,455(L) (Notes 2 and 4)(HfE2%4) 25.59%
SHETHMEERRAT REHAEES
Active Dynamic Limited Interest of controlled corporation 700,000,455(L) (Notes 2 and 4)(fff 72 1.4) 25.59%
REHAEER
Chu Yuet Wah Interest of controlled corporation 700,000,455(L) (Notes 2 and 4)(fE2%4) 25.59%
FRE REHEEES
Notes: M SE
1. As at 30 June 2021, Worldwide Peace Limited holds 110,589,750 Shares of the 1, R-ZE-——EFEXA=+H BEERAFBEN
Company, representing approximately 16.17% of the issued share of the Company. A A]110,589,750 0 IR 15 4 25+ B A AR B B
On 18 May 2021, the Company, Get Nice Securities Limited and Kingston Securities THA1617T% R _E-—FHA+N\H - z]s//;\
Limited entered into the underwriting agreement. Pursuant to the shareholder Al FEAAR AT HES FLE gi}ﬁ BA
irrevocable undertakings, Worldwide Peace Limited has provided irrevocable and T B BIERE A DA & E ﬁ
unconditional undertakings to the Company, Get Nice Securities Limited and Kingston BRARIAARNT  SiIBE5ERAT RS FLE
Securities Limited to, among other things, (i) accept the provisional allotment of an EERABEE AT EE R EEFEERS  Ehg
aggregate of 331,769,250 Rights Shares; and (i) not to sell or transfer the Shares held () B 40 B B D 3% & $£331,769,250 % it IR A 15
by them in any manner before the completion or lapse of the Rights Issue. As at the T (i) 7R & A A% 52 AR 3k 8 AT BAE T 7 SR & sk
date of this report, the proposed Rights Issue has not yet been completed. B SRS VR o A AR E HE 23

HR - AR ©

2. On 18 May 2021, the Company, Get Nice Securities Limited and Kingston Securities 2. HNR-_ZEE—-——FFHA + NB KNRAF - EFE

Limited entered into the underwriting agreement. Pursuant to the underwriting ER AR ES R EZES ﬁ BB ARIZE] T B
agreement, Get Nice Securities Limited and Kingston Securities Limited have ME - BEAOHGSE SHBEFEERATIRSE
conditionally agreed to underwrite 1,019,795,913 rights shares and 700,000,000 rights FlessmgRAac a8 ﬂ% iR = o Bl
shares, in particular the fulfilment of the conditions precedent contained therein, 1,019,795,913 f% 4 A% A% {5 % 700,000,000 A& £t A% i%
respectively. As at the date of this report, the proposed Rights Issue has not yet been B EEEERFRAHERIEEEENERT - &
completed. IEARREBE  EFEER - MARTK -
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According to the disclosure of interests forms of substantial shareholders filed on 20
May 2021, Get Nice Securities Limited is owned as to 100% by Get Nice Incorporated,
and it is owned as to 100% by Get Nice Financial Group Limited, and it is owned as to
72.99% by Get Nice Holdings Limited, and it is owned as to 61.32% by Honeylink
Agents Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Hung Hon Man.

According to the disclosure of interests forms of substantial shareholders filed on 21
May 2021, Kingston Securities Limited is owned as to 100% by Galaxy Sky
Investments Limited, and it is owned as to 100% by Kingston Capital Asia Limited, and
it is owned as to 100% by Kingston Financial Group Limited, and it is owned as to
74.60% by Active Dynamic Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Chu Yuet Wah.

The letter “L” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares of the Company.

The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company involved divided by
the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 30 June 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, according to the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO,
there was no person who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights as at 30 June 2021.

3. BEFERER-_Z-_—FHA-THRRK
W W E R &S B R D A B Get Nice
Incorporated # 5 100% * Get Nice Incorporated F 4%
FeBmEEBRAREARI00%  EiFeaEE
ERABIHBEFERABERDAEGT299% * #
47 12 % A BR A 7] F1 Honeylink Agents Limited ## A&
61.32% * il Honeylink Agents Limited g3 it % X 2 &
%A -

4, BREFERRA-_T-_—FREA-_+—A8RE
THERBRBERE eFNEEFFARLAA
Galaxy Sky Investments Limited # 5 100% * Galaxy Sky
Investments Limited 3 Kingston Capital Asia Limited
# 55 100% - Kingston Capital Asia Limited g1 % 71| £
CREEBRAFEFIO% S LEmER
A BR A &) £ Active Dynamic Limited & 74.60% *
Active Dynamic Limited i 2= B =2 & A »
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers, some of whom act as its
distributors, and purchases materials and components from suppliers, some
of whom act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers, on individual entity basis, accounted for approximately 48.2% of
the total revenue for the year and sales to the largest customer, on individual
entity basis, included therein amounted to approximately 36.8%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers, on individual entity basis, accounted
for approximately 74.3% of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier, on individual entity basis, included therein amounted
to approximately 68.0%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any interest in the share capital of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2021, the Group employed about 190 full-time and part-time
staff around the globe. Staff costs for the year ended 30 June 2021 were
approximately HK$92 million (2020: approximately HK$94 million).

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with reference
to market terms and the performance, qualifications and experience of the
individual employee.

Emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee of the Company after considering factors such
as the Company’s operating results, individual capabilities, performance,
salaries paid by comparable companies, and time commitment and
responsibilities of the position.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme that may serve as an
incentive to Directors, eligible employees and consultants where appropriate.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or
trusts, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors. Such permitted
indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors was in force during the
year and remained in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has taken out a directors’ liability insurance to cover Directors’
liabilities to third parties. During the year ended 30 June 2021, no claims were
made against the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in this report, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares, or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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EETHRG
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the Directors of the
Company and senior management of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2021 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed, no significant event affecting the Group occurred
subsequent to 30 June 2021.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board

Ms. WONG MAN WINNY
CHAIRPERSON

Hong Kong
28 September 2021
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The Board and the senior management of the Company are committed to
establishing good corporate governance practices and procedures. The
maintenance of high standard of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Group’s goals. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management, successful business growth and a healthy corporate
culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders. By applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency will be improved
thereby instilling confidence to shareholders and the public. The Company
has been conducting its business according to the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the year ended 30 June 2021.

Throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2021, the Group has complied
with the code provisions in the CG Code save for the deviation of code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, details of which will be explained in the
relevant paragraphs in this report. The Board will review its corporate
governance practice annually and make necessary changes if necessary.
Meetings were held throughout the year under review and where appropriate,
circulars and other guidance notes were issued to Directors and senior
management of the Group to ensure that they were aware of issues regarding
corporate governance practices.
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The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and performances and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes responsibility
for decision making in all major matters of the Company including the
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives, annual
budgets and overall strategies, the entering into material transactions,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior executives and the management. Their
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions made by the Board,
the co-ordination and direction of day-to- day operation and management of
the Company in accordance with the management strategies and plans
approved by the Board. The Board receives full support from senior
executives to discharge its responsibility. Prior approval has to be obtained
from the Board before entering into any significant transactions. The
statement of the auditors of the Company in relation to their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 89 to 97 of this report.

The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of this report
was as follows:

Executive Director
Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Ka Lim (re-designated on 23 October 2020)
Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica

Mr. CHAN Sung Waii (retired on 17 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Man Fai

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand
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One of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate accounting
and financial management expertise. The number of independent non-
executive Directors is more than one-third of the Board. Biographical details
of the other Directors are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors and
senior management profile” on pages 44 to 47 of this report.

The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is considered by
the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive Directors and non-
executive Directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance can
provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and of the Group. The independent non-executive Directors
provide to the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience so that
independent judgement can be exercised effectively. They have also
participated in Board meetings and general meetings, dealt with potential
conflicts of interest, served on audit committee, human resources and
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company and
scrutinized the Group’s performance and reporting. Through their active
participation, the management process of the Company can be critically
reviewed and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise, and
have exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics and
integrity. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs. The Board believes that the ratio among executive
Director, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors is
reasonable and adequate to perform check and balance function over the
Board in the decision-making process.

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new Director and nomination
for re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company.
Under the Bye-laws, the Board may from time to time appoint a new Director
either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office until the next annual general meeting after his/her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
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Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairperson
and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

The role of Chairperson is being performed by Ms. Wong Man Winny, who is
also being an executive Director, and she is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and development of the Group and the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board.

The Company has no such title as the Chief Executive Officer and therefore
the daily operation and management of the Company has been monitored by
the executive Director and assisted by the non-executive Directors as well as
the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no Chief Executive Officer, the
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board,
which comprises experienced individuals and who meet from time to time to
look after the operations of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and each of them has declared fulfiment of all the
guidelines for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. In addition, there is
no material relationship between Board members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEVIATION FROM THE CG CODE

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company complied with the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save and except the
following deviation:

Term of appointment of non-executive Directors

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re- election. Whilst one of
the non-executive Director, Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica is not appointed for a
specific term, however, the term of office for non-executive Directors is
subject to retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for re-election in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation so that each Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. As such, the
Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the underlying
objectives of CG Code.

BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year to determine the overall strategic
direction, objectives and to approve interim results, annual results or other
significant matters. Draft notice and agenda for regular meetings are provided
to all Directors for comments and inclusion of any matters for deliberation at
the meetings. Apart from holding regular meetings, senior management from
time to time provides to the Directors information on activities and
development of the business of the Group. The company secretary assists
the Chairperson in preparing agenda for the meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations in connection with the meetings are observed
and complied with. Except for ad hoc Board meetings to deal with urgent
issues, the agenda and Board papers are then sent to all Directors at least 3
days prior to the meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed
minutes, keeps records of matters discussed and decision resolved at the
meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEET'NGS (Continued)

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the meetings of the
Board, audit committee, human resources and remuneration committee,
nomination committee and investment committee held during the year are set
out below:

Audit

Board Committee

Meeting Meeting

attended/ attended/

Eligible Eligible

Name of Directors to attend to attend

BHR/ BHiR/
RERMEZ ARERHLEZ
Exps EZ883 BNZEgEd

EEEEZIRRBRRERARE W

/

REERABTZERAREREEE BERZ
BEg ANEREFMEZEES REZESN
FIREZEGRRZESTHEBREAINMT

Human

Resources and
Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
to attend to attend to attend to attend

Bt/
RERLREZ B/ BiiE/ BHE/

ANERR AEREREz RERERZ SEKHEZ
FHZEEEE REZEEEE REZEEEE RRBEFAE

Executive Director

HITEE

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson) 6/6 -
BT (ER)
Non-executive Directors

FUTES

Mr. LIU Ka Lim (re- designated on 23 October 2020) 6/6 -
BEREER-_F-FF+A-1=ZHHF)

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica 6/6 -
st
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai (retired on 17 December 2020) 212 -

REBEE (R -F-FF+ A +LARE)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUXHTES

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai 6/6 2/2
RNEEE
Mr. CHAN Yik Hei 6/6 22
B5%EKE

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand 6/6 2/2
BRENXEHE

- - 212 11
_ - - 11
- - - 11
212 2/2 212 11
212 2/2 - 0N
212 2/2 - 01
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Group, monitor financial performances, review the
annual and interim results, and make decisions on significant matters. The
execution of daily operational matters is delegated to the senior executives of
the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in
detail by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions resolved by the
Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any).
Draft Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comment and approval
as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time upon request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information at all times and
they may make further enquiries if it is necessary to do so.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the
company secretary, who is held responsible for providing Directors with
Board papers and other related materials. The company secretary also
ensures that proper Board procedures are followed and that all applicable
laws and regulations are complied with. If the Directors consider necessary
and appropriate, they may retain the service of independent professional
advisers at the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest arises involving a substantial shareholder
or a Director, such matter will be resolved in a physical meeting instead of
passing written resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at meetings to deal with such conflict
issues.

The Board committees, including the audit committee, the human resources
and remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the investment
committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in
Board meetings.

The annual general meeting and other special general meetings of the
Company are the primary forum for communication with its shareholders and
for shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings on
their behalf if they are unable to attend.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company held its annual general
meeting on 17 December 2020. Details of major items discussed in that
general meetings are set out in the circulars of the Company dated 17
November 2020.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as
Directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the Group provides a
comprehensive and formal introduction to each newly appointed Director
upon his/her appointment. Briefings and orientations are provided so as to
ensure that new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their legal
and other duties as a Director as well as the business and governance
practices of the Group. Such programmes are tailor made for each Director
taking into account their background and expertise.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30 June 2021 and up to the date of this report, all Directors engaged
in business activities in their respective fields as continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to
ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant,
and they participated in the following training:

EREZ(ERHINTEERBILIFATE
B BEENEREEREZTZARAEEUR
REBZER At AEBREBRHERE
WEFEZERHeRRER‘EZERERX
A WERHEEN G RDHNE - AR
EEATESTS2AE REEREFZE
REREMBE UARAEBZEBREARR
B ZEdaREERESTZAESRER
MBI AWREE S BIE -

ARBHAREBESTIHBEIRERTH
BENBILRHEEAKLE - RBEE_F—
—FAA=ZTHELEFERARBEARRE A H
b 2REFERSZEANEBIDEE A
SHERBBEEXER NMMBERILEHENZ
R#ge BHREGCEBEABHZTEARIE
WHEFSHFEHER RESLEZFIMT

Type of Training (Notes)

Name of Directors EERR AR (P EE)
Executive Director BITES
Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson) BEHZE(EE) A B
Non-executive Directors HITES
Mr. LIU Ka Lim BRI E
(re-designated on 23 October 2020) (R=ZF=ZFF+HA=+=HHFE) AB
Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica MYzt A B
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai BREAE A&
(retired on 17 December 2020) (R—ZFE-—ZFF+-A++HRE) AB
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. LEUNG Man Fai RNERE A B
Mr. CHAN Yik Hei BR% &4 A B
Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand HE XL A B
Notes: B 5 -
A Attending seminars, briefing sessions, conference and/or forums. A tEHHge BNEe - eBRARE-
B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy and/or general B: BHERMKER S —REEZHFAZHRE 5

business etc.

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a yearly
basis, disclose to the Group the number and nature of offices held by such
Director in public companies and organizations and other significant
commitments.

HIREHER -

REERRNEEREZERBEREFRAE
EHRBEENDOBRABNABIETZBULR
BRME  UAREMEREE -
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The human resources and remuneration committee was established with
specific written terms of reference which was revised and adopted on 19
March 2012. As at 30 June 2021, the human resources and remuneration
committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Leung Man Fai (Chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik Hei and Mr. Wong Yuk Man
Edmand.

The human resources and remuneration committee is responsible for, among
other things, making recommendations to the Board regarding the overall
remuneration policy, remuneration of Directors and senior management of the
Group, share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other
compensation-related issues. This committee consults with the Chairperson
and/or other Board members on its proposals and recommendations and has
access to professional advice, if necessary. The human resources and
remuneration committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the human resources and remuneration
committee is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year under review, the human resources and remuneration

committee held two meeting to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
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The nomination committee was established with specific written terms of
reference which was revised and adopted on 23 September 2014. As at 30
June 2021, the nomination committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Man Fai (Chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik
Hei and Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand.

The main duties of the nomination committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board annually, making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board, selecting individuals nominated for directorships, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re- appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairperson
and other executive director. The nomination committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee is posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The nomination
committee shall meet at least once a year.

During the year under review, the nomination committee held two meeting to
review the composition and diversity of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and considered
the appointments of Directors.
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The Company established an audit committee with specific written terms of
reference which was revised and adopted on 1 January 2016. The main
duties of the audit committee include, among other things, the following:

(@ to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function or external auditor
before submission to the Board.

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the
work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor.

(c)  to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

The audit committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge and
perform its duties.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific terms of
reference which is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The audit committee shall meet at least twice a year.

As at 30 June 2021, the audit committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Man Fai (Chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik
Hei and Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand. No member of the audit committee is a
former partner of the existing audit firm of the Company within two years from
the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial interest in the
auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and
financial reporting matters with the management team of the Company.
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During the year under review, the audit committee held two meetings to
review, among other things, the Company’s interim report for the six months
ended 31 December 2020 and annual report for the year ended 30 June
2020. The audit committee has also reviewed the financial reporting and
compliance procedures, report on the Company’s internal control and risk
management review and processes as well as the re-appointment of the
external auditor. There is no material uncertainty relating to events and
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. There is no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

The accounts for the year were audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited,
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The audit committee has recommended to the Board that Moore Stephens
CPA Limited be nominated for re-appointment as the auditor of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee meetings. In
line with practices consistent with Board meetings and other committee
meetings, draft and final version of audit committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the audit committee for comments, approval and
record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The investment committee was established with specific written terms of
reference which was adopted on 15 August 2017. As at 30 June 2021, the
investment committee consists of one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu
Ka Lim (Chairperson), one independent non-executive Director, namely, Mr.
Leung Man Fai and two executive staffs of the Company. The investment
committee is responsible for, among other things, to review investment
performance and to advise the Company on their investment of cash, cash
equivalents, financial assets, margin deposits, cash collateral taking account
of the necessary constraints on the deployment of the various sources and
purposes of the funds to enhance the Company’s investment returns.

The specific terms of reference of the investment committee is posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The investment
committee meets at least twice a year.

During the year under review, the investment committee held two meetings to
consider and review the possible securities investments of the Group.
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The Company has adopted the director nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) on 28 December 2018 which sets out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company. This Nomination
Policy ensures that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensures Board continuity
and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy contains a number of factors in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate, which include his or her ability to devote
sufficient effort to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of
the Board as well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the
responsibilities.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance
with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider whether he
or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or related management
expertise for filing the office of an independent non-executive Director with
such qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

This Policy also lays down the nomination procedures on appointment or re-
appointment of directors. The Nomination Committee will conduct the
relevant selection process (coupled with the relevant selection criteria) against
the nominated candidate for new directorship or director offering for re-
election and make recommendations to the Board for consideration. Where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed election and re-
election of director at the general meeting.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to
achieve diversity within the Board. The Company considered that diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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ExREB®E
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued) EEERESTIEEREw

The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of the selected candidates HREILKEHREAE Z EE RO AEE o
and their contribution to the Board. REEBAE L RE ©

As at the date of this annual report, the current Board composition under RAFEHRBE ZotBEMNRFEE <A

diversified perspectives is set out as follows: REH T
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the fee for the Company’s external auditor
for audit services was approximately HK$3,778,000 (2020: approximately
HK$3,050,000) and that for non-audit services mainly relating to taxation
matters was approximately HK$26,500 (2020: approximately HK$26,500).

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors, who have
confirmed that, during the year ended 30 June 2021, each of them has
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
auditor is responsible to form an independent opinion on the audited financial
statements and report the same to the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions including but
not limited to developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for making decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors have formal
letters of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment. Due to the diversity and volume of the Group’s business,
responsibility in relation to the daily operations and execution of the strategic
business plans are delegated to the management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the human resources and
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the investment
committee, have specific terms of reference setting out the authorities and
responsibilities of the respective committees. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their decisions,
findings or recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek the
Board’s approval before taking any actions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board will review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to
different committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and
continue to be beneficial to the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability to
provide adequate cover, as determined by the Board, in respect of the
current Board members and senior management of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and
employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to its
shareholders. The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be reflected in various
aspects.

To maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the annual and special
general meetings provide an opportunities for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board.
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Ms. Wong Man Winny, the Chairperson and executive Director and Mr. Liu Ka
Lim, the non-executive Director attended the annual general meeting in 2020
(the “2020 Annual General Meeting”) so as to ensure that shareholders’
views were communicated to the Board. A separate resolution was proposed
by the Chairperson in respect of each separate issue at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time to
time to ensure that the Company conforms to the best corporate governance
practices. The circular in relation to the arrangement of annual general
meeting will be circulated to all shareholders at least twenty one (21) clear
days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting, in which it sets out
the details of each resolution proposed and other relevant information. At the
2020 Annual General Meeting, all resolutions were put to vote by poll. Tricor
Secretaries Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer agent, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure votes were properly
counted. The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll
on resolutions at general meeting are contained in the Bye-laws. An
explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll is provided to the
shareholders at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairperson and
other directors would respond to queries raised by the shareholders regarding
the voting procedures. The poll results are published in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to

convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the relevant provisions in the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a shareholder
should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/
her/its detailed contact information at Units 4213-14, 42nd Floor, Hong Kong
Plaza, 188 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong. The identity of the
shareholder will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office. Upon confirmation by the branch share registrar
and transfer office that the request is made by a shareholder and that if the
request is proper, the Board will include the Proposal in the agenda for the
general meeting. The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at the
general meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than twenty one (21) clear days and not less than
twenty (20) clear business days in writing if the Proposal requires
approval in an annual general meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than twenty one (21) clear days and not less than ten
(10) clear business days in writing if the Proposal requires approval by
way of a special resolution in a special general meeting;

(8)  Notice of not less than fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10)
clear business days in writing if the Proposal requires approval in a
special general meeting other than by way of a special resolution of the
Company.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual and
interim reports. The Directors, company secretary or other appropriate
members of senior management also respond promptly to inquiries from
shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time serve their enquiries to the Board in writing for
the attention of company secretary at Units 4213-14, 42nd Floor, Hong Kong
Plaza, 188 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Under Bermuda law, in addition to the right to requisition a special general
meeting, any number of shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth (1/20) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100) shareholders, shall (unless
otherwise resolved by the Company) at their own expense have the right by
written requisition:

(@  torequire notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at the next annual general meeting to be given to
shareholders entitled to receive notice of that meeting; and/or

(b)  to request for circulation to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than one thousand (1000)
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

A requisition referred to above must be signed by the requisitionists in a single
document or in separate copies prepared for the purpose which between
them contain signatures of all requisitionists. A copy of the signed requisition,
accompanied by a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses, must be deposited at the Company’s registered office in Bermuda:

(@  inthe case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than
six (B) weeks before the annual general meeting unless an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the copy
has been deposited, in which case the copy shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited though not deposited within the time required;
and

(o) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one (1) week before
the general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to shareholders and investors. The Company updates
shareholders on its latest business developments and financial performance
through its annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’s website (www.champion.hk) provides a
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

During the year under review, there had been no significant change made to
the Company’s constitutional documents.

The Bye-laws is available on both the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
functions and internal control systems of the Group and ensuring review of
the effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring
such systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the Board has complied with the risk management and
internal control code provisions of the CG Code by establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. Such review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls. Main features of the risk
management and internal control systems are described in the sections
below:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review process to
enable comprehensive identification and prioritization of all material risks
throughout the Group, escalation of material risks at the right managerial
level, effective risk dialogue among the management, and proper oversight of

EkEERASPERE@
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HECvERER EEEEZHEMER

risk mitigation efforts.

84

“Top-down”
Overseeing,
identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk at
corporate level

BRBR UTZELBRERRER

TheBoard E &
Has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management systems and
internal control systems;
BERAEAEEZEAREEHERAIEZEHE
Sets strategic objectives;
B E KBS B AZ

Reviews the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal control

e E T systems;
W EE BEZEREIRIE R AEBEIESE 2R
ﬁk\f i?i';ﬂl Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure to our major risks; and
L ERTEARHERFEASARESE R
AT {7 3 A B = B . o . .
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.
HEBREEX Lo EELRE T
Management & & [
Designs, implements, and monitors risk management and internal control
systems; and
BlIE BEREREARERRADELTHE K
. . Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.
Bottom-up . — A T S A A
T AT AR AR R B & 77 T 2 A B ROR R 1 B o
|dentification,
assessment and

mitigation of risk at
business unit level
and across
functional areas
(B TmL]
MREBEN
[E T Ko BB B
IS HA - TE
37 R B 2 f

Audit Committee BEZZEE S
Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and effectiveness of
the underlying risk management and internal control systems.
XEEFSERRRARIBE A RIEERRE R & A E S
E R -

Operational Level % i [ [
Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the business;
and
SR BRI - 7T AE IR R &
Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas.

IEBEERBERBEEAREEREF RAREE -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

Risk Management Framework (Continued)

The risk management framework adopted by the Group is embedded in our
strategy development, business planning and day-to-day operations. The
Group adopts a control and risk self-assessment methodology and
continuously assess and manages its risk profile on a regular basis. Risks that
are relevant to the Group’s business are identified, assessed and ranked
according to their likelihood and consequence on the Group. Risk owners are
required to submit risk alerts with risk response promptly to the Board and
Audit Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. Action plans were
formulated and implemented during the year to address the areas of concern
effectively.

Internal Control System and Continuous
Improvement

The Company has in place an internal control system which is based on the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”)
framework for internal controls and has five components, namely Control
Environment; Risk Assessment; Information and
Communication; and Monitoring. In developing our internal control system,

Control Activities;

we have taken into consideration our organizational structure and the nature
of our business activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and progressed to future
enhance our internal controls and risk management system. The phase of the
plan focused on adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-based)
approach to risk identification and assessment. This approach enriches our
ability to analyze risks and respond to opportunities as we pursue our
strategic objectives. Management reporting to the Audit Committee has also
been enhanced, including the presentation of special reports on selected risk
topics.
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In the current place, we still aim to integrate internal controls and risk
management into our business processes since the business development
keep developing, including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of
treating the COSO framework as a framework-update exercise, a holistic
approach has been adopted by us, taking into consideration the Company’s
circumstances, including its ongoing internal controls and risk management
improvement plan as well as other strategic initiatives (e.g. corporate social
responsibility strategy and reporting). All of these enhance our ultimate
objective to make our risk management system a “live” one that is practiced
on a day- to-day basis by operating units.

The Group also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of its public disclosures. The following measures have been taken
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in possession
of inside information are fully conversant with their obligations to
preserve confidentiality.

° Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

° The executive Director is the designated person who speak on behalf
of the Company when communicating with external parties such as the
media, analysts or investors.

The Group has engaged an external professional consultant to take the
primary role to perform the Internal Audit (“IA”) function, and professional staff
with relevant expertise of the Group are designated to provide assistance in
the IA function. The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control systems
by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the established
plan, review of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted annually and the results are reported to the Board via Audit
Committee afterwards.
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The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group. There
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below which
are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but could turn
out to be material in the future.

Trading Business

The risk exposure in oil trading is comparative limited as the Group adopted a
very conservative approach in selecting customers and stringent credit policy
in trading gas oil.

Technology Business — Renewable Energy

As a long-term investor-operator in the renewable energy sector, the Group is
subject to Hong Kong government supportive policies, climate, economy and
other execution risks. Although the Covid-19 pandemic has not subsided, the
Group is confident that it would accomplish the delayed projects in an orderly
manner.

Technology Business — System Products

Loss of market share and the uncertainties are the risks we are facing it, great
change is taking place with each passing day on the stage of the internet and
technology world. The Group needs to continue exploring opportunities in
technology innovation to broaden the market share and keep investing in
products research and development.

Property Market in Mainland China

The Group has interest in property investment in Mainland China and is
therefore subject to the risks associated with Mainland China’s property
market. The Group’s operations in Mainland China may also be exposed to
the risks of policy changes, currency fluctuation, interest rate changes,
demand- supply imbalance, changes in the overall economic conditions,
competition in the labour market, and availability of financing, which may pose
an adverse impact on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of
operations. However, by virtue of the sub-contracting agreements, the
Company can on one hand benefit from the steady, guaranteed income,
while it may, on the other hand, take the initiative to terminate the agreements
with the hotel operator as and when we consider appropriate.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(Continued)

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates its businesses in Hong Kong, USA and UK and
transactions are denominated in HKD, USD and Pound. The value of Pound
against HKD and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among
others, changes in the economic conditions and policies. However,
fluctuations in the exchange rates of Pound would have limited impact on the
Group’s operations because the portion of revenue from UK will be used and
refinanced in UK.

Legal Risk

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or
financial conditions of the Group. The Group has complied with the relevant
laws and regulations during the year.

Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Board, through its review and the
reviews made by IA function and Audit Committee, considered that the risk
management and internal control system were effective and adequate. No
significant areas of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance controls, and risk management functions of the Group has been
identified. During the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions, and their training and budget were
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is significant in
strengthening investor confidence and attracting investment. The
management will devote considerable effort to strengthening and improving
the standards of the corporate governance of the Group. Any views and
suggestions from the shareholders to promote and improve our transparency
are also welcome.
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K| MOORE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 98 to 238, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2021, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were HAREREBEIEERMOELHE  RA
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of ¥ AKHIGZ A E R RN EBERTAEENSE
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit TH- - ELZHEE AR PIB X EE S A M HH®
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our XEERHEAEEZRAHEFUERE - KT eHiE
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. LEFIIIREHER RMAEETUTEERS

Key audit matter

HEEnEHR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

P& W B 5 BR FX B IR E T A

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the estimation of impairment
losses entails a significant degree of subjective estimation and
assessment.
HREKRESRINERU G BRRERMN S EEEN
NEREGESRRRIEENTBEGFRAE ARMRBE
WEHEFRETHBEREIR-

As disclosed in the note 22 to the consolidated financial statements,
the trade receivables net of impairment amounted to HK$40,409,000
as at 30 June 2021. Impairment loss of HK$1,122,000 has been
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Wiz B M BHMRWF2MERE  RZE=—F - A=+H H
RO EREEZNERE SRR FFER40,409,000/8 7T - BLE —
T —FRNA=ZTHILLFE BABREEKRF1,122,000/8 T

Management performed periodic assessment on the recoverability of
the trade receivables and the sufficiency of provision for impairment
based on information including credit profile of different customers,
ageing of the trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances, and ongoing trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management also considered forward
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected credit
losses for the impairment assessment.
EBEERBEIARAEFPONEAMAL  BKREZERNEKR BT
RERE BERKERR EBRRSOW - AREEBESH
HEXIHIHRZENYREKE S RFA A KD R E R ®
WM ETEHFE ERBNEERARTETL MR
%%%%ﬂ%m%%ﬁﬂ'%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ#ﬁ
fhat e

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment of trade
receivables under the expected credit losses model involved the use
of significant management judgements and estimates.
HMPEILSEDARERESRIGEREREEEBEEENAM
EHRERNEBRESRNEREEEN A B MGG -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETERRUAEERREERSE

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
recoverability of trade receivables included:
BPANATHE S EKRFIAN AT EIE AR F B -

° Obtaining an understanding of how the expected
credit loss on trade receivables is estimated by the
management;
Tf%@@@ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%
518

° Testing the ageing of trade receivables, on a
sample basis, to the supporting documents and
the credit term granted;
BRI T E B E B IR AR IR B B X
HRERNEREREEYE

° Challenging the information used to determine the
expected credit losses by considering cash
collection performance against historical trends
and the level of credit loss charges over time;
ERNAAEEENENENCELHBED
BRBLEWNKRE AHETEHEEBE
BEIOREM:

° Reviewing the accuracy of managements
judgement by comparing against historical
managements actual write-offs;
LLEBEERMOMERSE  UBRREEEHEN
AN

o Discussing with the management on their
assessment based on the business relationship
with customers in relation to overdue trade
receivables with/without settlement; and
HEBENRHEEERNEZPNEBBERM
HREBHB/ REBHBEEKE 5 HIERT
(3

° Examining on sampling basis, evidence related to
post year end cash receipt.

mMERAFERNBRESDY -



Key audit matter

HREERSEHE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

FE WK & R B9 3R 1B T

We identified the impairment of loan receivables as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the estimation of impairment losses entails
a significant degree of subjective estimation and assessment.
HREREFRNEREGEVBRAEBMESEEN UK
BEGRESRERRAEENETEEARTET UEMARBRERE
FREEHREZEE -

As disclosed in the note 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
the loan receivables net of impairment amounted to HK$9,018,000 as
at 30 June 2021. No further allowance for credit loss has been
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2021.

MERE VM BEHRERMTBABEE RS _—FA=1TH" 10
REEREEOEKREFFFERIIB000E T HE_-_T-—
FRNAZTHLEFE UEBRE - TEEEHEREG-

Management assessment on the recoverability of the loan receivables
and sufficiency of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of the borrowers, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances. Management also considered
forward looking information that may impact the borrower’s ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

ERERBERANGAMRN BELHEIE RELENRR
RIEHER ¢ O W EE B 5 &R 8 R WS Ty rT e &R E &
HOTREHETHE - ERBTEERAETEERAEER
RERFERE MM ER U MEEREEBET AER LT -

We focus on this area due to the managements estimation of
impairment on loan receivables based on the expected credit losses
model involved the use of significant management judgements and
estimates.
HMEILESE AN EREEEMEUYRKERRREBEE
EBERA P ENRETERE S NERTIE BN H MG -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMETERRNNEEFRERSEE

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
recoverability of loan receivables include:
BPB AT EERERO AR EESIRFaE:

° Obtaining an understanding of how the expected
credit loss on loan receivables is estimated by the
management;
THMEBENMNGERUERNTEHEE
BiE

° Challenging the information used by the
management to determine the expected credit
losses by considering cash collection performance
against historical trends and the level of credit loss
charges over time;
ERAAAEEENGENENSELHBED
ARFEEMNEER KMETEHEEEE
BEREEH:

° Reviewing the accuracy of managements
judgement by comparing against historical
managements actual write-offs;

BB EEROMERRE  URREEEAED
RN

° Discussing with the management on their
assessment based on the business relationship
with borrowers in relation to loan receivables with/
without settlement; and
HERBENmEEREGRANEBBEERMER

EREREERETIE R

° Examining on sampling basis, evidence related to
post year ended cash receipt.

HMERAFERNBAESEY -
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Key audit matter

RREERSEHE

Impairment assessment of finance lease receivables

FE Wt B AR B R YR E AT A

We identified the impairment of finance lease receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the estimation of impairment
losses entails a significant degree of subjective estimation and
assessment.
HRERRERERNERECZAV B RREENEREE
B UEREMGESRRREEN B MG RAE  HEMR
REKREFFRESHRBEZEE -

As disclosed in the note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
the finance lease receivables net of impairment amounted to
HK$42,975,000 as at 30 June 2021. No allowance for credit loss has
been recognised for the year ended 30 June 2021.
MEEEVMBEREMF0MBEE RS -_—FA=1TH
R R 1B 4 1& 7 FE W B & TR B FR0F 5E &R 42,975,00008 TT o B &
TE—FRAZTHILEFE UERREESERE-

Management assessment on the recoverability of the finance lease
receivables and sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of the hotel operator, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding balances. Management also
considered forward looking information that may impact the hotel
operator’s ability to repay the outstanding balances in order to
estimate the expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.
EREERBBESERNEAMRL BELEELH RELE
AR K T8 BRER € B U & & K 4 jE U g & TH & Ry RT B R OR
BEREOTEIHETTH BEEBETEEZRTHRETENELE
FHEEREARTEEINABEER  EMYEREEBEED
&t e

We focus on this area due to the management’s estimation of
impairment on finance lease receivables based on the expected credit
losses model involved the use of significant management judgements
and estimates.

BME ISR THRNEREEEHEHRRBEHETIRRE
HEEBERAMENRENLEZY NEREEE M H E
&t e
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPETERRNMNEEEREREE

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
recoverability of finance lease receivables include:
BMANTHEKRGBERSERG A UE 8 REF
BIE

° Obtaining an understanding of how the expected
credit loss on finance lease receivables is estimated
by the management;
THREEBMAGERURERERNELE
EEE:

° Challenging the information used by the
management to determine the expected credit
losses by considering cash collection performance
against historical trends and the level of credit loss
charges over time;
ERNAAEGENENENACELHBED
ARBGEUNERR - HHEEEHREERBIE
BEEESEH:

. Reviewing the accuracy of managements
judgement by comparing against historical
managements actual write-offs;
LEEBEERMOMERSE  UBRREERE B
R

. Discussing with the management on their
assessment based on the business relationship
with hotel operator in relation to finance lease
receivable with/without settlement; and
HERENRBEEEESENNEBBERY
ERmMEEERETERERETHME: &



Key audit matter

HREERSEHE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the significant judgement and
estimation required by management in determining their fair values.
ERREMENBENERBEAMBREINEANE  REFTH
AREFTELHERAG LG BMABAREDELERBASR
B S

Investment properties of the Group mainly represent commercial
properties. As at 30 June 2021, the fair value of investment properties
amounted to HK$50,022,000, with the fair value gain of
HK$2,270,000 recognised in the profit or loss for the year then
ended.
EENREMEIEREIRAME - R-_ZE-_—FA=+8H"
BEYER AR ERS0,022000%8 T BEZAILFEDRIE
m MR A A B E W 52,270,000 7T ©

As disclosed in notes 4, 17 and 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the fair value of investment properties, the
Group engaged independent qualified external valuers to perform the
valuation and worked with the valuers to establish inputs to the
valuation.
MFEEMBMEMTLI ITRNAEE REAREVDEZR
REBER FEZERBIASEBRIIMNSGEMETHET EMGE
RV HRAE N @E R EMHEE -

In determining the fair value of investment properties, the management
and valuer had taken into account key inputs including price per
square feet/square metre, reversionary rate and monthly rent with
certain unobservable inputs that require significant management
judgement.

EREREVENRAABEN ERENLEMEZRT HEH
ABE BESTHRRFHAOER WEXNMARS &
PSR- EREBERINGABENEEZEEEELERA
Y

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMETERRNNEEFRERSEE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BB BRFREMELENEF B

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities, objectivity
and independence of the valuers;
HEEMNERE 8h FHMERBIMEEL
B

° With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, discussing with the management and
the external valuer their valuation methodology and
the key estimates and assumptions adopted in
their valuations;
ERMABEEEROHBE T - BEIEZEMI
B E AN AT R M PT 8 BT R R E R KRB
B B 8 (A ST AR AR

° Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
techniques and significant assumptions adopted
by the management and the valuers;
THREERRMGHEMRMANEERTRERKR

B

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
models and the judgements made by the
management and the valuers; and

AT Ah A E R S N E IR B B (B R AT VR &Y HI B =

Tk R
° Checking the reasonableness of significant

unobservable inputs used by the valuers in the
valuations, in particular, the adjusted unit sale
rates, on a sample basis, against market data such
as recent selling prices.

HRMSHEE QI HEE) MRS mEMR
HERMEANEATATEENB AEB(LE

ERAEENEE)REAE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the financial
highlights, corporate information, chairpersons statement, management
discussion and analysis, directors and senior management profile, directors
report and corporate governance report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors of the Company.

R EXRGESMBEHRER
BRENET
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BB E A
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied

with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pak Chi Yan
Practising Certificate Number: PO6923

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021
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mEEmRAtMEEKEXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-Z-—4XxA=184E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020
—E-— TE-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
o FE R FAET
Revenue Uy #= 6 237,473 410,668
Cost of sales & R AR (147,469) (318,054)
Gross profit EF 90,004 92,614
Other income, gains and losses Hag A~ Wk M8 7 7,462 16,998
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries EENB ARz (EE), W 11 (726) 5,342
Distribution costs 5 81 A AR (25,685) (27,172)
General and administrative expenses —REITEREH (77,840) (98,620)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) $t1F SRR EEE(EE)
recognised for inventories 62 (230)
Impairment losses recognised for trade and HEWE S K EMIRER
other receivables B & 18 (1,122 (2,767)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value 322 # EBEF A Z @B EE
through profit or loss RNAEEEBBR) W (14,576) 17,396
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties KEMEZ AR BAEKE
(E518) 17 2,270 (8,322)
Finance costs BA 7 AR 8 (32,602) (36,291)
Loss before taxation MREATER 9 (52,753) (41,052)
Income tax (expense)/credit B/ (Xd) e 12 (4,189) 3,328
Loss for the year EEEER (56,942) (37,724)
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mEEmRAEMEEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-Z-—4/XxA=18 4 E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F TE T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FHET FHET
Other comprehensive income/(expense): Ht2HEWB A (ZH) :
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit EresEm EEEGR Y
or loss: R :
Remeasurement of defined benefits pension FEHEWETE G ZRIK
plans & 33(b) 37,012 (20,922)
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently EgnEFoEziEgY
to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange difference arising on translation INETFMRMEEEZ
of foreign operations bE W = 21,293 (4,461)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AEEHMEEBA(ZH)
for the year 58,305 (25,383)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) REERERA(ZH)AE
for the year 1,363 (63,107)
Loss for the year attributable to: EBEXRFERE:
Owners of the Company ZNY/NEIE RSN (59,822) (39,521)
Non-controlling interests JE12E % A% BR A Z 2,880 1,797
(56,942) (87,724)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) forthe FE{LAEEZRZE A (ZH)
year attributable to: W
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7F SN (24,272) (55,372)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR R 2 25,635 (7,735)
1,363 (63,107)
Loss per share — Basic and diluted EREBE-EARLSHS 14 HK(8.75) cents  HK(5.78) cents

b= 1]

eyl

The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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—EF=-—%FXA=+H 30JUNE 2021

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Interest in an associate

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Finance lease receivable

Current assets
Inventories
Finance lease receivable
Trade and other receivables
Loan receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Warranty provision
Customers deposits
Amount due to a director
Tax payables
Interest bearing other borrowing
— amount due within one year
Promissory note payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

HRBEE

ME - BEIRB
EREERE
s8=E2ES

A NI 5o

BARBEFABSZ

TREE
J& U Bt & T B KR

RBEE
e
FE W R E R E IR

FE W B 5 Ko H i B 5K

U E K

BMAREBEFABREZ

EREE
& L A% R
RekBREEH

DEABIEHEZEE

REBAE

8 5 R AR

BHEE
HERE

RE R
BEPRE

BN —REFRRIE
J& A 5 3K
AHEEMEE
—R—FREH
FE A5 R K SR 4R

RBEERE

EERERRBAEE
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15
16
17
18

19
20

21
20
22
23

19

24

25

26
27
28
29

30

31
32

2021
—EBE-—F
HK$’000
THET

36,577
5,825
50,022

38,422

130,848

38,564
4,553
54,164
9,018

41,893
285
135,567

284,044

284,044

61,819
25,172
4,093
1,062
3,483
2,180
2,095

99,904

184,140

314,988

2020

T T4
HK$’000
T T

58,560
6,872
44,210
2

975
37,699

148,318

30,336

3,944
70,873
17,771

67,686
2,437
107,051

300,098
10,350

310,448

47,751
23,654
3,701
1,230
3,483
2,180
590

10,000
40,657

133,146

177,302

325,620
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—ZT=—F/xA=+H 30JUNE 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F TE TR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FERT FAT
Non-current liabilities IREBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 1,953 3,512
Interest bearing other borrowing REMEE
— amount due after one year —R—F &5 H 31 185,000 200,000
Promissory note payable FET A B iR 32 38,306 -
Retirement benefit obligations iR R AR B R 33(b) 16,018 50,740
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIE A E 34 9,616 8,644
250,893 262,896
Net assets EEFE 64,095 62,724
Capital and reserves BRARGHE
Share capital (e 35(p) 68,383 68,383
Deficit e 35(c) (75,350) (51,078)
(Deficit)/equity attributable to owners of the Company 78 X &% A A fE{h (E518),/
- Fi (6,967) 17,305
Non-controlling interests PR AR B A 71,062 45,419
Total equity EREE 64,095 62,724

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 238 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 September 2021 and
are signed on its behalf by:

WONG MAN WINNY
BEH
Chairperson

E

The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these consolidated financial
statements.

FBEBEMBZGAMBERREAES
R _E-_—FAAZ-+N\BHEREET

B oYHTHNEERREE:

LIU KA LIM
BER
Director

EE

F1052288E M 2 M RUFHES MK ]R

RZHERCER D

CBENEEEERAT —B-—FFRK
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SERTEZSFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_Z-—FXA=+HI-EE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAERARE
Capital Property Non-
Share Share  redemption ~ General Capital Merger  valuation  Translation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
-2 2] NEER FEHE  RAEE
Bx  RAEE B -REE EAEE  AHEE BE ERLRG 2EER &t i EL
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$00 HK$000  HK$'000
TET TiET THET FiET FiET FiET FiET FiET ThL THT ThL TET
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note
B B BE) B  BEY) B 3B
(HizE (Mt (i3t (i (i (G (R
B0 %eM %O %5en) BN B 350
At 1 July 2019 WZZ-NEtA-A 68383 2,221,869 50 1,366,003 846,860 8,358 86,652 4581 4,530,684) 72,072 51,163 123,235
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (39521)  (39,521) 1797 (37,724
Remeasurement of defined EERELEHZ
benefits pension plans RIKER - - - - - - - - (13484 (13,484) (7438 (20,922
Exchange difference arisngon ~ RES EHREFELZ
translation of foreign ELEE
operafions - - - - - - - 2:367) X 2094 (4461)
Total comprehensive expense  AEE2 AL HAE
forthe year - - - - - - - 2367) (53005)  (55372) 77%)  (63.107)
Acquistion of sheres froma I~ & EERBEHRH
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - - - (31) (31) 31 -
Capital contribution from XE-FHBAH
non-controling shareholders ERHIERENTE
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 5933 5,933
Deemed disposal of partial BELE-ZHBAAN
interest in a subsiolary BhExmiexs
without losing control e - - - - - - - 51 585 636 (636) -
Disposal of subsidiaries LEWBAT - - - - - - (785%) - 78,556 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling 71— FEIf B 22 Rl SE
shareholder of a subsioliary S - - - - - - - - - - (3,387) (3,387)
At30June 2020and 1 July 2020 R=Z-FEXA=TER
235t A-8 68383 2,221,869 50" 1,366,003  846,860" 8,368 8,096 2,265 (4,504,579 17,305 45419 62,724
Loss for the year EEFA - - - - - - - - (9822)  (59822) 2880 (56942
Remeasurement of defined EERTARFRIVER
benefits pension plans - - - - - - - - 21,852 21,852 16,160 37,012
Exchnge difference arsngon -~ EEISNERREREEZ
tranglation of foreign EXZEE
operations - - - - - - - 13,698 - 13,698 7,59 21,298
Total comprehensiveincome/  EE2EMA/(HR) 2%
(expense) for the year - - - - - - - 13,698 @770 (24272 25,635 1,363
Disposal of an investment HE-HRENE
property - - - - - - (8,096) - 8,09 - - -
Capttal contribution from REMBAT RN
non-controling shareholders ~ TRE#)iTE
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 8 8
- - - - - - (80%) - 8096 - 8 8
At 30 June 2021 R-E--£xAZ1H 68383 2,221,869 50" 1,366,003 846,860 8,358 - 15,963 (4,534,453 (6,967) 71,062 64,09
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated deficit of approximately * NERFEEPBEGAVBMRARZESEBERY

HK$75,350,000 (2020: deficit of approximately HK$51,078,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of investment property

Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on deregistration of a joint venture

Loss on rent concession of finance lease
receivable

Fair value (gain)/loss on investment properties

Gain on extension of promissory note payable

Loss on early redemption of promissory note
payable

(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment losses
recognised for inventories

Impairment losses recognised for trade and other
receivables

Impairment loss recognised for property, plant and
equipment

Finance costs

Interest income

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease in finance lease receivable

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities
Decrease in warranty provision

Net cash generated from/(used in) operation
Income tax (paid)/refunded

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities
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Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Interest received from loan receivables

Interest received

Repayment/(advance) of loan from/(to) third parties

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of an investment property

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment to a director

Repayment of promissory note

Repayment of other borrowing

Repayment of lease liabilities

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Interest paid for promissory note

Interest paid for interest bearing other borrowing

Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of
a subsidiary

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effect on foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 105 to 238 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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1.

—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

GENERAL

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was originally
incorporated in the Cayman Islands but subsequently re-domiciled to
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in notes 43 and
18 respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) has
applied the Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRSs and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA, for the first time, which became mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2020 for the preparation of
the consolidation financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRSs and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND 2. BRHFTET R &AEET
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG HKFRS (&)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs AEEVEEFEABUTERMGERR
that have been issued but are not yet effective: B2 F AT R AR B ET BIHKFRS -
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related HKFRS %17 5% RBRA & K AE
Amendments* Bir!
Amendments to Accounting  Accounting Guideline 5 Merger BAEHRSIEH BAR G ESI R
Guideline 5 Accounting for Common Control (BFTE) # K R 25 A ff
Combinations (Revised)® A= i 7
(f557)°
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual HKFRSE33 (ERTA)  BERERZER
Framework®
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform HKFRSE 95, - BB G5t FIREENFE-
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2' R % 3957 * HKFRS 2 FoRE
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 75% » HKFRSZE 45k I
HKFRS #1657 (15 71 4)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets HKFRSE10F R E R G5t RAEREBELD
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its E Q%285 (BT A) AlgaEREZ
Associate or Joint Venture® RMEEHENR
BAS
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions HKFRSE16%5% (EFTA)  BAR-T=—
beyond 30 June 20212 NA=t+BRZ%
£ Covid-19-8 8
AL ER?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current BEGAEUFIR KEBELIBERRD
or Non-current and related CHES) KIERBULRE
amendments to Hong Kong REREEOT
Interpretation 5 (2020)* (ZEZEH)¢
BRAET
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies” BAGHEANEIRR SR REOBE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 BAMBREERER
W& F2H (BT R)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates® BAGEAZSH GitthatmER’
CHES)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and BEGAEAF125 HE-QHELN
Liabilities arising from a Single CHEN) BERRREH
Transaction” REER R
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment BAGERE 165 ME - BE k&
— Proceeds before Intended Use® CHEY) BB ERGA
ZEBHIE®
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling BREIRALETH BEEH : Bi1E
a Contract® CHES! Kyp s
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs HKFRSs (& 7] ) EEMBREER
2018-2020° —E-N\EEC
ToTEEEY
FENES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
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MEMSBERAEENBEEEAREK

financial statements. FEo
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥ E2: K%

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the HKFRSs (which include all the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“‘HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and defined benefit retirement plan that
are measured at fair value and defined benefit retirement plan. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.
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3.

—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment (“HKFRS 2”), leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories (“HKAS 2”) or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets (“HKAS 36”).

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an
entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE=i HZE @

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set
out below.

The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Investments other than equity investments (Continued)

—  fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

—  fair value at profit or loss (FVTPL) recycling if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity security is classified as financial assets at
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment as financial assets at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuers perspective.
Where such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as financial assets at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue
over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@)  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

(b)  The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

() The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternate use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises revenue
at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the
promised goods or services, it creates a contract based asset on the
amount of consideration earned by the performance. Where the
amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount
of revenue recognised, this gives rise to a contract liability.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods (including cultural
products, leather, gasoil, face mask, surveillance equipment, design
and sale of renewable energy products and solutions and systems and
related software licensing) are based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer and the Group excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The Group satisfies a performance obligation
when it transfers control of the cultural products, leather, gasoil, face
mask, surveillance equipment, design and sale of renewable energy
products and solutions and systems and related software licensing to a
customer. Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point in
time.
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The revenue from provision of installation and maintenance services is
recognised over time.

The revenue from provision of maintenance service is recognised over
time as the customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits from the Group’s performance. Input method is used to
measure the progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from assets under
operating leases, is recognised on a straight- line basis over the
relevant lease term.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services
to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer. When the
Group acts as a principal, it recognises revenue in the gross amount of
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the
specified good or service transferred. The Group is an agent if its
performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

Indicators taken into account by management of the Group to
determine whether the Group acts as a principal or an agent include,
but are not limited to, the following:

(@  whether the entity is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise
to provide the specified good or service;

(b)  whether the entity has inventory risk before the specified good or
service has been transferred to a customer or after transfer of
control to the customer (for example, if the customer has a right
of return);

(c)  whether the entity has discretion in establishing the price for the
specified good or service, indicating that the entity has the ability
to direct the use of that good or service and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits; and

(d)  whether the entity bears the customer’s credit risk for the amount
receivable from the customer.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Buildings on freehold land 50 years
Vessel 3 years

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the relevant
leases or 50 years

Plant and machinery and 10%-50%
communications networks

Furniture and fixtures 20%-33%%

Motor vehicles 25%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as right-of-use assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are being
recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal company is classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal company) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal company) and
its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of
a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of
an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contact are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contact that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the consolidated financial statements would not
differ materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. S E€3HHE @

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE @)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) SEEAEABA @

Right-of-use assets EAREE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRAEEENKABRRE

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; D HEaAENVILE2SE

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, . B 46 B Bl ok 2 AT e 69 4 ] F
less any lease incentives received; BNF - RAERNEWHEEES

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and ° NEBESENTRVIEEERAN

54

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling ° AREBEBRIFHBELBRBHBEE - &
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it REEEEMESsERIEA
is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition BEZHENKERLRIKEHERRE
required by the terms and conditions of the lease. B AR S0 B B AR YRR AN BT

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated FREEERRARETHEZIHEM

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any HMEEBLENSHEETTE  WREMR

remeasurement of lease liabilities. EaBEMNTMNEMT2HETHE-

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain NEEBNRBHE RS EE T EIMERD

ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term HEEEMERENTRAEEEBRKBH

are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life. HeztRAFRAsRAMRTE - &

Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis HMWBERTN ERAEEENEGEINHE

over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. HETE A FHRBERAREE BE)R

FHRITE -

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition KREBREPEATBERIERABE R

of investment property or inventory as a separate line item on the AREMESFETENERAREEES

consolidated statement of financial position. YR EBEREIEE o
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE€: B F w
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) SEEAEBA @
Refundable rental deposit HREHEZEE

Refundable rental deposit paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instrument (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that
are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
values guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest

accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Research expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL”)
on the following items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables) and loan
receivables; and

— finance lease receivable.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for receivables are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECL, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
ECL are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECL: these are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

— lifetime ECL: these are losses that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL on the basis that there are no significant
financing components. ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for loan receivables and finance lease receivable are
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL and assessed individually.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.
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Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instruments external or internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. S E€HHE @

(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECL are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial instruments credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:
— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or

legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE=i HZE @

(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or finance lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as
a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect is material).
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—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of the associate used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
Changes in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long- term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the
Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in, first-out method except for cost of
cultural products, which are assigned by using specific identification
cost method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective interest
method.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised before the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses.
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—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the directors of the Company that made strategic
decisions during the year.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the group entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve). Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposal of.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the MPF Scheme) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-administered and
funded pension scheme in the United Kingdom. The scheme provides
defined pension benefits with reference to the final salary of the
members at retirement and their length of service. The scheme is
closed to new members since 1 January 2003.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. S E€3HHE @
(Continued)
Retirement benefit scheme (Continued) BABRETE @

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in
the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by
function as part of administrative expense. Current service cost is
measured as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in current period. When the
benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion
of the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the
gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss
at the earlier of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and
when related restructuring cost or termination benefit are recognised.
Net interest expense/(income) for the period is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit liability/(asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans are
recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected immediately
in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)).

AEE BT BB AR A
R DEBEHEEBRE A RBE
0 LA 42 4 3R 75 BT B 2 R R R 8
B g EEERERZEFRAT
BN - IR EIEE S AR B
oSt EIma ERBEMTAE
B fir B AT o

EHEBMNAE(BE)FRZRBKK
RABRAZ/RA)FERNBHER
WD ERIITERXHIZRAZ —
Mo BARBUAZANEEEE RS
EEAZEERMAGBRE ZE MG
BofMat B2 BA LR B E KT B4
o NEEREAERBZEN ZEH
MORBEER 2 BEREELER
AR RN R AR EMAK AR
BAME(ARPEELE)RNIBERER A
X HMAMBRA (WA FEEBR
ERTEERENAEB (BE) AR
ZHAXBE -BREXRBERRES
(MR REASERETR T HRMED
RMEBTER 2 WX o

ERRMNERABELZEEREME
R EAERLNERRE RN G R
BB R ERE EEBERE
W kER FEEERS (TEEFA
EHERMNEE (BE)FRZNEFHE
ZEB)REELRIBZEMES (T
BREFATERNAE (EE)FHRZ
NMBFHEZEHE) -

BEMNEREEERAT —2-—-5#% 133



ra M B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. S E€HHE @

(Continued)

Related party

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the Group
or the Group’s parent;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(iii)

(v)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)() has significant influence over the
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personal services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

4. ERAEFRMETAIREE
2 EEZRIR

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying (@) ERAAEEEFHEXZE

the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

Classification of inventories

The Group holds certain cultural products for resale in the
ordinary course of business. Although the value of cultural
products may appreciate over time, it is the Group’s intention to
hold such assets for trading. Accordingly, those items of cultural
products are classified as inventories under current assets.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Group has reviewed its investment property portfolios
and concluded:

In respect of the Group’s investment properties located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the management has
determined that these properties are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time and consequently the sale presumption in HKAS 12 is
rebutted for these properties. As a result, the Group continues to
measure the deferred tax relating to these properties using the
tax rate that would apply as a result of recovering their value
through use.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying

136

the Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Judgement is required in determining the timing of satisfaction of
performance obligation. The Group derives revenue from sale of
gasoil, face mask, surveillance equipment systems and related
software including renewable energy systems, and cultural
products. The Group carefully evaluates the terms and conditions
stipulated in contract and/or sale order with a customer and
assesses when the control of the goods has been transferred to
the customer. In addition, the Group also assessed whether the
Group is acting as the principal (i.e. whether the Group has the
primary responsibility for the sale of goods, bears the risks of loss
and obsolescence, and also has full discretion over the goods).
The directors of the Company have determined that the control is
passed to customer upon the goods are delivered to the agreed
destination. This is also the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, only the passage of time
is required before payment is due.

The directors of the Company assessed and considered that the
sales of systems and installation are one single performance
obligation and to be recognised at a particular point in time (i.e.
when control of the systems and software is transferred to the
customer). The Group delivers products to customers after
installation of customised softwares in the systems. The
installation work is carried out in the Group’s premises or on sites
specified by customers. The Group grants customers the right to
use the software and no update or upgrade of the software is
required to be performed by the Group after sales. The sales of
systems and software and related installation are assessed by
the management to be not distinct in the context of application of
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (‘HKFRS
15”) as what being delivered to the customer is a combined
product with customer specifications.
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTANDKEY 4. EX¥HE RESARETE
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION M2 EERIE@
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying

(a) EE)%ZIKEI EJrBI%Z‘E

the Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group sells large telecommunication equipment and
software that need to be installed at customers’ premises. As
management considered that the hardware installation service is
a very simple procedure the equipment can operate and function
as normal way and the customer can choose to install the
equipment by themselves or by third party service provider. The
installation service and sales of equipment are distinct in the
context of the application of HKFRS 15. Revenue from provision
of installation services is determined by management to be
recognised over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs the installation service. The Group
recognises revenue in relation to the sales of telecommunication
equipment of a particular point in time (i.e. when control is
transferred to the customers).

The Group signed contracts with customers to provide
maintenance over a period of time. The customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs the maintenance service,
therefore, revenue from provision of maintenance service is
recognised over time.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of gasoil. The Group assessed
whether the Group is principal and should recognise revenue on
gross basis based on the requirements in HKFRS 15. The
management concluded that the Group acts as the principal for
such transactions as the Group controls the specified goods
before the goods are transferred to customers after taking into
consideration of indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfiling the promise to provide the gasoil
products, the Group has inventory risk before transferring the
gasoil to customers, the Group has discretion in establishing the
prices for the gasoil in form of a premium over their market prices
and the Group bears the customers’ credit risk for the amount
receivables from the customers. Before transferring the gasoil to
customers, the Group has ability to direct the use of, and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from the gasoil products
by determining the customers and the timing to which the gasoail
products will be sold.

Lease

The Group applies reasonable judgement to determine the lease
term for lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include
renewal option. The assessment of whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease
term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised. The Group considered the
exercise of the renewal option is uncertain, therefore, the lease
term does not include the renewal option.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTANDKEY 4. EX¥HE RESARETE
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION M2 EERIE@
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

(b) & FHEEM 2 EERIR

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties located in PRC (excluded the leasehold
land where hotel property erected) as at 30 June 2021 are stated
at fair value based on valuation reports, issued by Stirling
Appraisals Limited (2020: Stirling Appraisals Limited), by using
direct comparison method.

Investment property included the leasehold land where the hotel
property erected and located in the PRC as at 30 June 2021 are
stated at fair value based on valuation reports, issued by Stirling
Appraisals Limited (2020: Stirling Appraisals Limited), by using
adjusted market comparable method.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based on property
valuation techniques which involve certain estimates including
comparable sales in the relevant market and appropriate discount
rates.

In relying on the valuation reports, management has exercised
their judgement and is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.

The carrying amounts of investment properties as at 30 June
2021 and 2020 were HK$50,022,000 and HK$54,301,000
(included in both investment properties and assets classified as
held for sale) respectively. Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement, are stated in note
41.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

140

Impairment allowances on financial assets (including
trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivable and loan receivables)

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The Group determines the provision of impairment of other
receivables, loan receivable and finance lease receivable based
on ECL. The Group assesses the ECL for each of the other
receivable, loan receivable and finance lease receivable
individually based on the financial position and the economic
environment in which the borrowers operate.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL of the Group’s trade receivables, other
receivables, loan receivables and finance lease receivable are
disclosed in note 5.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTANDKEY 4. EX¥HE RESARETE
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION M2 EERIE@
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) EETTEEMZEERR @)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market price of similar products and historical
experience of distributing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of market condition.
Management assesses the estimations at each reporting date.

At 30 June 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s inventories
was HK$38,564,000 (2020: HK$30,336,000).

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In determining the fair value of an unlisted equity investment
included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
based on discounted cash flow method under income approach
(2020: allocation method under market approach). The
management of the Group estimates are based on cash flow
forecast for the relevant business and requires the adoption of
certain assumptions. Changes in assumptions relating to these
factors could affect the reported fair value of the unlisted equity
investment. As at 30 June 2021, the fair value of unlisted equity
security is HK$nil (2020: HK$975,000).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5.

EMITHA

Categories of financial instruments SR TEER

2021 2020
—E-—% TECTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Financial assets EREE
At fair value through profit or loss BAnBESAER 41,893 68,661
At amortised cost &8 5 K A 238,979 235,793
280,872 304,454

Financial liabilities tRmER
At amortised cost o 4 B AR AN 287,305 300,488
Lease liabilities HEaE 6,046 7,213

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivable, loan receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, interest bearing other borrowing, amount due to a director,
lease liabilities and promissory note payable. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

142 ChampionTechnology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

BHREBREEBEREE

FEBZIESRIABRREAAREE
AABHECZEREE BEEZREAM
R EUEBMAEEERE  BREXR
FR ROEHLERS BHEZRAE
RN FFEREMEE BN —REF
RIE HEARBEARARLEER 252
BMTAZHBHNSHEME  B%E
TRT AR 2 AR L AR R FE
BRZBRBEN TN - EEEEEREE
%R o DARE R LB B 0B ROR BUE
-



—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivable and loan receivables, the
management of the Group will only allow customers with good credit
history to pay on credit. In addition, the management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account future discounted cash flows, to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, no trade receivables have
been written off for both years.

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL on trade
receivables with significant outstanding balances with gross carrying
amounts of HK$26,253,000 as at 30 June 2021 (2020 HK$42,198,000)
were assessed individually. Provision for impairment losses for trade
receivables with significant outstanding balances was HK$1,122,000
(2020: nil). For the remaining debtors, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL on trade receivables based in provision matrix.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk in
low based on the sound collection history of the trade receivables and
the environment the debtors operate. Therefore, the ECL rate is
assessed to be closed to zero and no provision was made as at 30
June 2021.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk on finance lease
receivable and trade receivables, as the trade receivables with gross
carrying amounts of HK$26,253,000 (2020: HK$42,198,000) are mainly
from the largest customer, and the finance lease receivable with gross
carrying amounts of HK$42,975,000 (2020: HK$41,643,000) is due
from a single debtor.

As at 30 June 2021, no provision for expected credit loss on the
finance lease receivable has been made as the debtor is with high
credit rating and has no recent history of default, thus the management
of the Group does not expect any significant loss from the non-
performance by the debtor.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has exposed to credit risk on other
receivables. As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
assessed no ECL for other receivables (2020: HK$2,767,000) was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2021. The
management of the Group considers the probability of default based
on the financial position of the debtors and the economic environment
of the debtors operate.

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of other
receivables during the year is as follows:

TR

(&)
BERREEEERBEK
FEERK &)

FE U E 5 BR A AR T 48 58 & 26,253,000

B (=T = T4 142,198,000/ T ) £

ERERAEFRERMERENRE
48 %8 5429750008 T( = & = T4
41,643,000/ 7T) HE —EBAEEHR
MAEEHERESERREKRBRER
EFE-TMEERBREFRE -

RZFB_—FRXA=1TH AREBKA
EEMARSRE NI ERNCE &
TEAEUBRELESRENEREES
BELEEG REASEEEEYER
HELBERAEERBEBATEITER
BEEMESEX-

R-ZE-—FA=1+H AEBEEAT
EWEMERNEERR - EALEE
FRARRBEEN -9 BRAEHE
EERABEREMERNEREEER
% 5 Z (20204 © 2,767,000) ° It Jh A &
EEEBREGHSANMBARIARE
,@%W&@f&f‘ﬁﬁ*iﬁ HEy AT REME &

AEEREEMBESBEEFNES B
AT

Credit impaired

EEEE

HK$’'000

FHET

At 1 July 2019 R-_ZE—hhFE+A—H 2,916
Impairment losses B E B 2,767
At 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021 R-ZE-_ER-_ZET-_—FXA=+H 5,683
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEREE 100%
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has exposed to credit risk on loan
receivables. The management of the Group considers the probability of
default based on the financial position of the borrowers and guarantors
and the economic environment the borrowers operate. Therefore, the
ECL rate of the non-credit impaired loan receivables are assessed to
be closed to zero and no provision was made as at 30 June 2021. As
at 30 June 2021, the management of the Group considers the loan
receivable with credit impaired in previous years is not recoverable,
accordingly, no reversal of impairment as at 30 June 2021 was made.

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of loan
receivables during the year is as follows:

= = NP
BEREEEERBEE

EERBE @)
RZEBEZ—FXNA=1+H AEEBEAZ
FRERNEERR ANEFBEEER
TJ%F?K/\ﬂFﬁ/\E@Eﬁi‘%ﬁﬁfﬂlﬁ/{&%

AR BIRIF R ZE BIE X Al g
’|$ At FEAZBEZERKERNE
HEEFBXGHERLRZT AUR_-X
Z—FRNAR=THERAREBHE R_Z
Z—FRA=TH XEBEETEERAE
BEFEERAZBZEREREEZR
B AEE-—T-_—F~A=1+HE
BB EFEE -

AEEEKEFREEBOEDER
m -

Credit impaired

EREE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 July 2019 R-—ZZFE—NhLFtAHA—H 5,808
Currency realignment PE 5 A (323)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 R_E_ZFRA=THRZZ_ZTF+H—H 5,485
Currency realignment P& 5 38 & 1,128
At 30 June 2021 R-E-_—FA=+H 6,613
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEX 100%

Other than concentration of credit risk on the largest customer and
finance lease receivable and liquid funds which are deposited with
several banks with high credit ratings, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

BTYEERREPNRERNEP KEKE
EMERERETERRASEENR
ZETRITZEAEPERDERIN
AEBYEIMEBEAEERARSE
PR BRESERBESHR TR
”%&%ﬁ@ﬁZKz@ﬁ nBER
ZEERBAER RAEARXZHFIR
EEREEFARBETREENRZ
RAT -
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Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Groups operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Groups remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that the interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount of interest payment is estimated based on the interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

Effective Within one

interest yearoron Between
rates demand 1-2years
—FARAR
S RBH —ZE=F
%  HK$000 HK$'000
Aotk FER FER
2021 —F=—F
Financial liabilities & @ & f& 1% # &
of amortised cost  F{ Z<
Trade and other ERTE S R EHAM
payables BR 3K - 61,819 -
Amount due to JER—RESERIE
a director - 2,180 —
Interest bearing other &t 8 H & &
borrowing 13.0 24,050 191,523
Promissory note JEECH Z
payable 12.6 - 44,881
Liabilities at BERARWEE
amortised cost
Lease liabilities HEHEERD 2.1-7.6 4,355 1,501
92,404 237,905
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MENE & R
RABECRARERME  FEEEE
mRehReEREEEERAR
FMZKF MERAEEZEZAY
BMERSRKBAERZZE - ERE
ERBECRBERALREREETER
24 -

WA EEGR  TRANAEEZ
ERMABEZRNBRENFHR - JIRDIEA
SEZEAHRERERZERBERRE
HRRAeRIN T - AEME HELEMN
EEGERZB|ITEE TRRTERT
EEENZARERESE St AKT
R HMmIFTEemBEza AN
T EEERRRER -JRBENS
MRS ZIREN

BEBHEFEZHBTIREBERE BT
BRZMNEHERBENSAREE -

Total Carrying

Between undiscounted amount at
2-5 years cash flows 30 June 2021
KRER R=-T=-—F

—EZEF BRERLE K<HA=tH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FER FER

- 61,819 61,819

- 2,180 2,180

- 215,573 185,000

- 44,881 38,306

448 6,304 6,046

448 330,757 293,351
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. TRt T B
Financial risk management objectives and BEEMRESERERBE @
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RENE & E R @)
Effective  Within one Total Carrying
interest yearoron Between Between undiscounted amount at
rates demand 1-2vyears 2-5years cash flows 30 June 2020
—F R KRB RZTZZTF
BIRF = BBHM —E-F —_FEhF BREeRAERE KNA=TH
%  HK$000 HK$O000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aot T  FHET  TERX FHT FHET
2020 —E-EHE

Financial liabilities & &t & & 1% # 84
of amortised cost  E{ Zx
Trade and other EBRESREAM

payables BR X — 47,751 — — 47,751 47,751
Amount due to JER—REERIE

a director — 2,180 — - 2,180 2,180
Interest bearing other &t & E i {& &

borrowing 13.0 12,297 230,559 - 242,856 210,000
Promissory note JE S AOH, =R

payable 17.6 44,660 — — 44,660 40,557
Liabilities at HEREARANAER

amortised cost
Lease liabilities MEBHEERD 1.8-7.6 3,604 3,277 713 7,594 7,213

110,492 233,836 713 345,041 307,701

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for WEEAN Ry SHENRERATEREE
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in FEZHNRGAERE B EXBEBIETE
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates SRHEEYHNXRTITAE ZSHEEEM
determined at the end of the reporting period. BEE) o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank deposits.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to finance
lease receivable, fixed rates other borrowing, promissory note payable
and lease liabilities.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s fixed rate borrowings amounted to
HK$223,306,000 (2020: HK$250,557,000). The Group does not enter
into any arrangement to hedge cash flow interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate deposit and bank balances
at the end of reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming that
the amount of balances outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points (2020: 10 basis
points) increase or decrease represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2020: 10 basis points) higher
or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss
after tax for the year ended 30 June 2021 would decrease or increase
by approximately HK$136,000 (2020: decrease or increase by
approximately HK$107,000).

In the managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. ®8 T B
Financial risk management objectives and HEERETERERBE®@®
policies (Continued)
Equity price risk B% 2 {8 1% B b
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity investments % B A B A E R AR $5 UK T K E R
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the BEEBEHEIMENRAIEZEEAALBE
values of individual securities. The Group was exposed to equity price T FrzEM NERBERERSEE
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as financial BRARBET ABZZEREE (Mt
assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 19). 19) 7 WA IR & M B A B IR AN (B A% &L B o
The Group’s listed equity investments classified as financial assets at REBHDEAEAREBEFABR ZSE
FVTPL are listed on the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted BMEEZ FTRARENBA LT
market prices at the end of the reporting period. WIZshE B R 2 M EGE -
The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the close of MR ERNGEORSARZZSHH
business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of the EEBEAEREZMERAEE UKL
reporting period, and its respective highest and lowest points during BN FAZES N REEEWT
the year were as follows:
30 June 2021 High/Low 1 July 2020
—B-—fF —E-EF
ANAB=1+H e/ &K tA—H
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB —BAEEH 28,828  31,183/23,124 24,564

The Group manages its exposure by closely monitoring the price
movements and the changes in market conditions that may affect the
value of these equity investments.

BENMKEEBERIA —F

AEEZBREYERAETEZSIRA
KREEEBNEREYNMAEHEER
Fr 2 #y [k o
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. £ T A

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

BEEABREEEEREE @

R A {E A% L B ()
TRIFEMEEMEEHRFEAEA
REAEARBFEZBERT  BAKR
BrAAEBEYRABIREDHE YK
BJE - RS R EE o

Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss after (decrease)
amount of Increase/ tax and in other
financial (decrease) accumulated components
investments in price losses of equity
MREREER Hih ez
eMRE BEiEEm, REFER #H B 2
REE GR2) ®m2/0gm #m Cad)
HK$’'000 % HK$’'000 HK$’000
AT Bkt FAET A&
2021 —E-—=F
Equity securities listed EEALEmZ
in Hong Kong: BAFS
Held-for-trading: HEES 41,893 34.85 12,191 —
(34.85) (12,191) -
2020 —E-EHF
Equity securities listed E&FB LW
in Hong Kong: {8 A58 7
Held-for-trading: BIEEE - 67,686 38.01 21,484 —
(38.01) (21,484) —
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. ®8 T B
Financial risk management objectives and BEEMRESERERBE @
policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk s | B
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign INERERIEEEEARNREEBNBEER
currency exchange rate which will affect the Groups financial results EBRSRZINEERSEHER KEEH
and its cash flows. Certain trade receivables and bank balances of the ATHERE ZERRRITES T
Group are denominated in foreign currencies. The Group does not MO E o AN BT K A o] S S 6
engage in any foreign currency hedging instruments. It is the Groups TE - AEEHZ —BEHRXREBE LI
policy to manage foreign currency risk through matching foreign MIWARSTHEEEIERR &8
currency income with expense, and where exposure to foreign DEEINERME  BERASE 2 P
exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will be used. TH-
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency KRB ZEMWERREAENUNIINEE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose the Group CEEEERAG SAEETYEINE
to foreign currency risk. [ B o
The carrying amounts of the group entities foreign currency EEETBRIUININEHECEEKELEEREE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting BEAREABHZE@RBELT -
date are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE & & BE =K
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FEx FAT FAT
Euro BT 21,797 (793) 19,019 (793)
United States dollar ETT 30,878 (15,717) 50,707 (8,246)
IENEEEERAT —2=-F5% 151
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

152

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency risk from
Euro and United States dollars. Under the pegged exchange rate
system, the financial exposure on exchange rate fluctuation between
Hong Kong dollar and United States dollars is considered insignificant
by the directors of the Company and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%)
increase and decrease in Euro against each group entity’s functional
currency. 5% (2020: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents managements assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% (2020: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss
before taxation where Euro strengthens by 5% (2020: 5%) against each
group entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2020: 5%) weakening of
Euro against each group entity’s functional currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit or loss.

@I Aw

MEEABEEBEEREX

SN BB (1)

BURE AT

FEBERISARZNERR RS
BMTRET EREERRST EF
wﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ[ < B) 2 B 5 LIS 1R

B Bt 3 4 AR B U FE AT

TRERFARBEETRBYHBELLES
EEEBRENEEB 2 ER FARTH
5%(ZZTZFTF :5%) 2BKE 5% (=
T F 5% NAEEBERIRES

BIEA B WSS R R B PR 2 U
Fix ERREEEHINEERSIE

‘a&ﬁ@nzma BRESITEBE

SNEFTECARENERIER  XEINE
EREBEN(ZFT T F:5%) HHEF
momHE {’Eﬁm% LATN IE {8 B8 7 fis BR

TRAEREERBDEEEHER(ZF
—ERF 5% RECHRMNAIEE TR
M TS EEERGEERRZES

TR F5%) IGgHERREX
HRARBEZHERTZE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
Euro BT 1,050 911
In the managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative TEBERAE BRESITIT RKEEREK
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does ESNERR DHRELEERR I TR

not reflect the exposure during the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

BR F A [ a2

TRHEERETBMEBZLAN
EE

ARAEERRBEBHRANGAYB
BRIIEZeMEERBBEZREES
LRARBEMRE-



e B RRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. W koEESR
INFORMATION
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for WHEAEERTRINATELEE
goods sold and services provided by the Group to external EmLREEERE 2 WKL ER
customers. FRIE ©
The revenue of the Group comprises the following: REEBZWEFBHETY KA
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET

Revenue from contracts with customers HEHKFRSE 155 5 F & A7 25 &8
within the scope of HKFRS 15 Revenue ANZBP &K
from Contracts with Customers

Sales of cultural products HEEE SR 3,137 190
Technology — Sales of systems including Bl —Z &S (BRE ST E
software licensing ) 68,666 91,542
Technology — Rendering of installation and £l 5 — 42 ft 2 % K 4 E R 1S
maintenance services 43,643 36,108
Technology — Design and sales of BHE Rt RIS BERIRE
renewable energy mEFR
products and solutions 7,230 3,448
Trading for gasoil and related business B ool 2 5 I R B 5 7% 87,403 253,954
210,079 385,242
Technology — Leasing of system products #}—HH & R4 E & 24,194 21,426
Income from vessel charter AR E U A 3,200 4,000
237,473 410,668
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154

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conforming to HKFRSs, which are regularly
reviewed by the directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of allocating resources
to segments and assessing their performance. During the year
ended 30 June 2021, the chief operating decision maker
assessed the performance and allocated the resources to trading
of gasoil and shipping as a whole. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the chief
operating decision maker, the Group has presented the following
six (2020: seven) operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments. Accordingly, there is a change in
the composition of the segment information of trade for gasoil
and related business and shipping business for the year ended
30 June 2020:

e Sales of cultural products — includes income from trading of cultural
products
e Technology: System — includes income from sales of systems

sales including software
licensing and services

including software licensing and
provision of installation and maintenance
services and sale of surveillance

equipment
e Technology: Leasing of  — includes income from leasing of system
system products products
e Technology: Renewable — includes income from design and sales
energy of renewable energy products and
solutions
e Trading for gasoil and — includes income from sales of gasoi,

face mask and income from vessel
charter (shipping business)

related business

e Strategic investments — includes income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Segment results represent the profit or loss before taxation
recognised by each reportable segment, excluding gain on
extension and early redemption of promissory note payable,
interest income, gain or loss on disposal of subsidiaries, fair value
gain or loss on investment properties, loss on deregistration of a
joint venture, finance costs, unallocated income and expenses
such as central administration costs and directors salaries, etc.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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(b)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. KRS EERW®
| N FO R MAT'O N (Continued)
Segment information (Continued) (b) 7B EEF @)
Information regarding the above segments is reported below: B LS BERMZFHROT ¢
Trading of gasoil
Technology and related business
B REHE S RABRY
System sales
including
Sales of software  Leasing Trading of
cultural licensingand of system Renewable  Strategic gasoiland  Shipping
products services  products energy investments others  business ~ Subtotal Consolidated
ARHE
HE (BEEH4 il oAy
X RHAER R UB% REfE  REM WE
Em fR%) ER 2 RE WEZ £% i &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TiER TEx TER FET TEx TR TEx TER FET
Year ended BE-3--%
30 June 2021 AAZTRLEE
REVENUE [
External and total revenue HIMEE RN
Recognised at a point in time RE-BEED 3,137 68,666 - 7,230 - 87,403 - 87,403 166,436
Recognised over time B EER - 43643 24,19 - - - 3,200 3,200 71,037
3,137 112,309 24,194 7,230 - 87408 3,200 90,603 237,473
RESULTS E4
Segment result PEFE 842 16,182 4977 987 (30,493 179 (7,016) (6,837) (14,342)
Gain on extension of promissory ~ EREFALEE
note payable iz 8,191
Interest income Y ON 2,739
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary &N BR A 2 B (726)
Fair value gain on investment RENZEZRAnBE
properties W& 2,270
Finance costs BB A (32,602)
Unallocated expenses, net FARAL-FE (18,283)
Loss before taxation BREBR (52,753)
—
BENBEEEERAT —2-—-£4% 155
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Nz s ~.
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WERDTEERw
| N FO R MAT'O N (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) b) 2 EEH @
Trading of gasoil
Technology and related business
BE RehBsRER%S
System sales
including
Sales of software  Leasing Trading of
cultural licensing and  of system  Renewable Strategic  gasoiland  Shipping
products services  products energy  investments others  business  Subtotal  Consolidated
FoE
HE  (BERM BE FX
X RFER 5 UBE REE REM Mg
Em %) Em B RE  HES % g e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEL Thr Tir Tz TEr FEr  FErx  TiEx ThL
Year ended BE-3-%%
30 June 2020 RAZTHLEE
REVENUE [
External and total revenue HONHE RIBNE
Recognised at a point in time NE-BEED 190 91,542 - 3448 — 253954 — 253954 349,134
Recognised over time Rl R - 36,108 21426 - - - 4000 4,000 61,534
190 127,650 21,426 3,448 - 253954 4,000 257,954 410,668
RESULTS ES
Segment result %A (2,052) 20,069 3,623 239 (2,652) 2,207 (8355 (1,148 18,079
Gain on extension and early ERRRAEEER
redemption of promissory note REEE 7 ME
payable 8,008
Interest income FEmA 4,89
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEN B2 7 2 Wi 5,342
Fair value loss on investrment RENEZ DR BE
properties B (8322)
Loss on deregistration of ajoint ~~ AB M ¥HEHV ER
venture (&
Finance costs B AR (36,291)
Unallocated expenses, net ROBER-28 (32,760)
Loss before taxation BRERSE (41,052)
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WEKDTEERw
| N FOR MAT'O N (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 7 EEF @
Information regarding the above segments is reported below: BB LY EERERUOT :
Trading of gasoil
Technology and related business
L2351 BRAESRABEER
System sales
including
Sales of software  Leasing Trading of
cultural licensingand of system Renewable ~ Strategic gasoiland  Shipping
products services  products energy investments others  business  Subtotal Consolidated
RHE
HE (BREIH HE B
Xt AR 2% TBE KB4 REL  ME
Em RER%) Em BR RE WEZ %% Mt &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR Tén TRz  TER TEn THER FER THExn TR
Year ended BE-B=--F
30 June 2021 AA=Z+HLE
£E
Amounts included in the measure 3 3 5 & 5 48 Vi 7
of segment profit or loss: SEEzEE:
Depreciation of property, plantand  #)% ~ BiE R & &2
equipment neE 9 5,436 1,817 92 305 - 1,302 1,302 8,961
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i & & 7 7 & - 2,494 412 - 1,460 - - - 4,366
Fair value loss on financial assets at % 22 /; (B & :f A48
fair value through profit or loss BIEBEEY
NABER - - - - 14,576 - - - 14,576
Impaiment losses on property, ~ ¥1%¥ - BIE RRE 2
plant and equipment AEER - - - - - - 7,382 7,382 7,382
Reversal of impairment losses REERRRE
recognised for inventories # o 62 - - - - - - - 62

CBENEEEERAT —B-—FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. RS2 EERW®
| N FO R MAT'O N (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 7 EER @
Trading of gasoil
Technology and related business
B RetBsRERES
System sales
including
software
Sales of licensing  Leasing Trading of
cultural and of system  Renewable Strategic  gasoiland  Shipping
products services  products energy  investments others  business  Subtotal  Consolidated
ZHHE(R
HWE  ERERG BE P R
it 1# ES DL REE REH g
ER RRB) ER iR BE  BE5 £% it G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEr Thrn  Thxn TEr  Fi#r  FEr  Thxn THER
Year ended HE-Z-EF
30 June 2020 RAZTHLEE
Amounts included in the measure I EF 8 2 185 F3,
of segment profit or loss: BEzeE:
Depreciation of property, plantand  #1% - BE R &2
equipment E 21 6,774 610 47 598 - 4,244 4,244 12,294
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FRELEZ T E - 1,570 275 - 494 - - - 2,339
Fair value gain on financial assets at &2 5t EEH AB#Z
fair value through profit or loss CREELARE
Bls - - - - 17,39 - - - 17,39
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HE ¥ « HE &3k {&
and equipment ZER - - - - 86 - - - 86
Impairment losses recognised for —~ SLF ERE AR ER B
inventories 230 - - - - - - - 230
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No information about segment assets and liabilities is presented
as such information is not regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker for resource allocation and
performance assessment purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WEKRDTEER @
INFORMATION (continued)
(c) Geographical information (c) wHEEHR
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue AREFBDRMILEEP R EEFFREH
and non-current assets by location of customers and by location oz WHEIERBEEDTEH
of assets respectively: TR TR :
Revenue Non-current assets (Note)
W z= FEREBEE (M)
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BZEZXBE=1+HLEE MRA<BA=+H
2021 2020 2021 2020
B —E-THF B —Z=-FTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
TR FAT FER FAT

The People’s Republic of 1 # A R AN

China (the “PRC”) ([hE]) -
including Hong Kong BIEE B MR
and Macau 101,541 263,724 91,961 116,507
Europe (mainly United BN (EE /%K
Kingdom (“UK”) and (T%#E ) REE)
Germany) 135,932 146,944 38,885 31,809
237,473 410,668 130,846 148,316
Note: Non-current assets exclude the Group’s interest in an associate. Mz ERBEETBIEAEFBR — B
ERA o
(d) Information about major customers d FEEFEFz2ER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing RIBEFEEAEREEHER
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: BI0% 2 BRI ZFNT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Customer A BEA — 166,489
Customer B ZF5B 87,403 84,786
Customer A and B contributed revenue from sales of gasail HE_ZT - —FK T - TFX
during the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. A=+tHIFEE ZEPRPARBH Y

FX R o 36 B W sR fE B K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HMli A - W&Z R B8

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FiET
Interest income F B A 2,739 4,895
Exchange loss, net [T = Do (430) (1,695)
Gain on extension of promissory note payable EREMNELER 2 RS
(note 32) (Mt 3E32) 8,191 8,066
Loss on early redemption of promissory note RATERENEERIEEIE
payable (note 32) (FF5E32) - (58)
Impairment loss for property, plant and equipment ) % -« & &= [ 3% & B B 18 &
(note 15 (i) (H 5% 151i)) (7,382) -
Others EHih 4,344 5,790
7,462 16,998
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. B A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Interest on interest bearing other borrowing HEmMmEEZHE 25,802 27,430
Interest on promissory note payable FEREH BE 2 F B 6,380 8,640
Interest on leases HEZFE 420 221
32,602 36,291
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. RBAIBHE
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT FiET
Loss before taxation has been arrived at MR RTES 1B T &R (5 A)
after charging/(crediting): LATRIE B E R
Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a)) EEM< (MFE10a) 7,898 8,230
Staff costs excluding directors’ remuneration BEERA(TREZEEFHS) 81,038 75,241
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE T ET B R (EERR N
other than directors (note 33) (P 5E33) 3,375 10,763
Total staff costs B Bk AN 42 %E 92,311 94,234
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,  #1% - = LR EZITE Gt A
included in general and administrative — M RITEEHA) (H&E15)
expenses (note 15) 8,961 12,309
Depreciation of right-of-use assets included in FRAEEEZITE GFA—RKRK
general and administrative expenses (note 16) TR ER) (KsE16) 4,366 2,339
Short term leases MHIFHE 2,096 7,072
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMENER 120 —
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BMEEREZWRZE
equipment 518 55 (86)
Auditors remuneration 1% 256D B
— Audit service — ZEED AR5 2,686 2,442
— Other service — B AR 1,092 608
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ERRAZE 2 FEKA 108,403 287,428
Direct operating expenses relating to EICEYMEBB 2 EELERY
investment properties 45 42

BEMNKEEERAE
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10. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS EMOLUMENTS

(a)

162

Directors and chief executive’s
remuneration

Directors emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of Directors) Regulation

are as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2021

10.ESMs ESH AL

REREEEME
Q) EERTHEAZZHE

RIBEE B DA MRPIE 3831 G EA
A(RBEEENEZER)RMF2
HomECEEMENT

BE-Z2--FXA=t1H

Defined
contributions
and
Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
REMAR
Fek RIERR BIREF EEZHe
He HtEd BRo®e sHEfR we
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER
(note (ii))
(B (i)
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Wong Man Winny (note (i) Bt (M)
— the Company YN 3,456 - 202 18 3,676
— Kantone —ER - - - - -
3,456 - 202 18 3,676
Mr. Liu Ka Lim (note () and note (vi)) /2 2 ¥ 5t 4 (i 33 () A0
e
— the Company . VNE] 800 - 67 6 873
— Kantone —ZE8 - - - - -
800 - 67 6 873
Non-executive directors FBTES
Mr. Liu Ka Lim (note () and note (vi) 2 5 35 46 A& (Pl &5 () A1
P 3E ()
— the Company /NG 1,600 - 133 10 1,743
— Kantone - &R - - - - -
1,600 - 133 10 1,743
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

10. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s

10.EE8 &  BeH AL
FEREEEME @

(a) EBERTHARZHE

remuneration (Continued) (%)
Defined
contributions
and
Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
REMAK
FeR RBRIERE BREF EEHe
we HittERN BHz$d FHEIfN we
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER TER TET TER TET
(note (ii))
(P 52 i)
Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica (note ()~ #t #F 3 4 + (B £ (i)
— the Company W] 480 - - - 480
— Kantone —-ZER 480 - - - 480
960 - - - 960
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (note (vii)) PR =13 50 A (P & (vil))
— the Company NG 166 - - - 166
Independent non-executive BUkBTES
directors
Mr. Leung Man Fai (note (i) 2B ()
— the Company A VNE] 120 - - - 120
— Kantone —ZER 120 - - - 120
240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Yik Hei R5% &%
— the Company NG 120 - - - 120
Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand EEXLEE
— the Company e NG 120 - - - 120
7,462 - 402 34 7,898
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10. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

10.EEM & BaH AL
RLEREEEBMNE @

MANAGEMENTS EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s
remuneration (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2020

(@) EERTTHERZHE @

Bz XA=+H8B1Lt

FE
Defined
contributions
and
Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
REMHEKR
Hek RIERR RARER R K
we HMBHN BRc®s BT ek

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TAET TAT

(note (ii))
(P &E (i)
Executive directors HiTES
Ms. Wong Man Winny (note (i) &8+ (M)
— the Company i NG 3,456 — 288 18 3,762
— Kantone —E8 - - - - -
3,456 — 288 18 3,762
Mr. Liu Ka Lim (note () 25y S ()
— the Company . U/NS| 2,400 — 250 18 2,668
— Kantone -8 - - - - -
2,400 — 250 18 2,668
Mr. Gao Hong (note (v)) B7% %% (KEWV)
— the Company /NG| - - — _ _
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. To Yin Fong Cecliica (note (i)~  #F 35 2 + (Pt 35 ()
— the Company —ARA 480 - - - 480
— Kantone - &R 480 — — - 480
960 — — — 960
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

10. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENTS EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s

remuneration (Continued)

10.EEME BaH AL
LEREEEME w

(a) EERTHRARZHME=@

Defined
contributions
and
Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
REEFK
ek BRIERR RN E=Me
e HEMEN BRo®e BELE A ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiEx FET TET FHT
(note (ii))
(P 5% i)
Mr. Chan Sung Wai Y et
— the Company NG 360 - — - 360
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Man Fai RNIERE
— the Company YN 120 - — - 120
— Kantone — &8 120 - - - 120
240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Yik Hel BRo%ERE
— the Company VNG 120 - — — 120
Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand HEXEAE
— the Company NS 120 - - - 120
7,656 - 538 36 8,230
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—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

10. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s
remuneration (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(Vi)

(vii

The director is also a director of Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”),
a listed subsidiary of the Company.

The performance related incentive payment is discretionary as
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company having
regard to the Group’s financial results and performance of the directors
of the Company.

The remuneration for non-executive directors comprises directors fees
and other emoluments which vary with the number of committees in
which they serve.

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or retirement from employment with the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors of the Company
had waived any emoluments in both years.

Mr. Gao Hong retired on 18 December 2019 as executive director of
the Company.

Mr. Liu Ka Lim has been re-designated as a non-executive director of
the Company and Kantone with effect from 23 October 2020. The
remuneration had been approved by the human resources and
remuneration committee of the Company on the same day.

Mr. Chan Sung Wai retired on 17 December 2020 as a non-executive
director of the Company.

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors and non-executive directors are generally
emoluments paid or receivable in respect of those persons other
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

10. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION, 10.EEM & BEeH AL
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EEREEBEME @

EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees with highest emoluments (b)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2020:
two) directors of the Company. Details of the emoluments of
those directors for the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020
during their directorship period are set out above. The aggregate
emoluments of the three (2020: three) highest paid employees of
the Group, not being directors of the Company, are as follows:

EmFES

AEEBREBRRHFATERRE
ME(ZZEZZF MB)ARQAE
E REEEHE T —ER
E-EEXNA=ZF+HILFEELHR
EEHRACZHMeFBEIN LK
SEEBR=-R(ZZE=ZFTF:=4)
EaFRE(WIEARAESE) 2
Bl & EzEm T

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 3,842 3,747
Performance related incentive payments ~ #Z TEXR BB~ 84 872 1,030
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR K78 I 51 2 3% 155 104
4,869 4,881

Emolument of three (2020: three) employees were within the
following band:

=R(CEEF =ZR)EBEZM
N FTIEE:

Number of employees

BEA™
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7£.—2,000,000 % JT 3 3

There were no amounts paid during the year (2020: Nil) to the
five highest paid employees in connection with their retirement
from employment with the Group, or inducement to join.

FAME(CE-Z2F - 8)BL%
EeFHEERETAEERB LM
AR B[R H A IR
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Disposal of (1) Very Happy International Limited; (2)
Happy Union Development Limited; (3) Lucky Success
Development Limited; (4) Lucky Tone Investments
Limited and (5) Chief Champion Limited (the “Disposal
Group A”)

On 22 March 2019, Champion (Cook Islands) Limited and KTT (Cook
Islands) Limited (collectively, the “Vendors A”), direct wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, Gold Trinity International Limited (the
“Purchaser A”), an independent third party and the Company (the
“Vendors Guarantor”), entered into a provisional sale and purchase
agreement (the “Provisional S&P Agreement A”), in which the
Purchaser A would acquire the entire issued share capital of and all
debts owing by the Disposal Group A to each of the Vendors A as at
completion date at a cash consideration of HK$124,872,000. The
consideration was fully settled on 8 July 2019.

The transaction was completed on 8 July 2019, the collective carrying
amount of net assets disposed of amounting to HK$120,594,000,
mainly representing investment properties of HK$120,800,000, other
receivables of HK$15,000 and other payables of HK$221,000. The net
gain on disposal of subsidiaries after deducting the direct cost
amounted to HK$2,921,000. The net inflow arising on disposal of the
Disposal Group A was HK$123,515,000.

Disposal of (1) Crown Zone Development Limited; (2)
Ever Vast Development Limited; and (3) Wise Great
Development Limited (the “Disposal Group B”)

On 8 August 2019, Vast Acute Holdings Limited, Hero King Holdings
Limited and Lucky Edge Holdings Limited (collectively, the “Vendors B”),
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, Sonic Jet Limited (the
“Purchaser B”), an independent third party and the Company (the
“Vendors Guarantor”), entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“S&P Agreement B”), in which the Vendors B agreed to sell and the
Purchaser B agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of the
Disposal Group B and all debts owing by the Disposal Group B to each
of the Vendors B as at completion date at a cash consideration of
HK$37,030,000. The consideration was fully settled on 8 November
2019.
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HEMREBEBRERER A A - (28
BERARLA -QEMKEKRES
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Disposal of (1) Crown Zone Development Limited; (2)
Ever Vast Development Limited; and (3) Wise Great
Development Limited (the “Disposal Group B”) (Continued)
The transaction was completed on 8 November 2019, the collective
carrying amount of net assets disposed of amounting to
HK$34,130,000, mainly representing investment properties of
HK$33,600,000, other receivables of HK$533,000 and other payables
of HK$3,000. The net gain on disposal of subsidiaries after deducting
the direct cost amounted to HK$2,421,000. The net inflow arising on
disposal of the Disposal Group B was HK$36,551,000.

Disposal of Champion Energy Logistics Co Ltd (the
“Disposed Subsidiary”)

On 9 February 2021, Lucky Global Group Limited (the “Vendor C”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Grandway
International Marine Limited (the “Purchaser C”), an independent third
party, entered into a sale and purchase agreement, in which the
Purchaser C would acquire the entire issued share capital of the
Disposed Subsidiary as at completion date at a cash consideration of
HK$20,180,000. The consideration was fully settled on 2 March 2021.

The transaction was completed on 26 February 2021, the collective
carrying amount of net assets disposed of amounting to
HK$20,456,000, mainly representing the vessel included in property,
plant and equipment of HK$20,601,000 and other receivables of
HK$204,000 and other payables of HK$349,000. The net loss on
disposal of a subsidiary after deducting the direct cost amounted to
HK$726,000. The net inflow arising from disposal of the Disposed
Subsidiary was HK$19,730,000.

HEMBEHZEEER AR (Q1E
BRRERERIATARQEEZRESR
BRAB(HEARBI @)
ZRXRGRN_ZE—NEF+—ANHEHRE
K- EHEBEEFENEBDRAES
34,130,000 ;.- £ B A K & M ¥
33,600,000/% 7T+ H f /& U 5 533,000
78 70 I E fth FE 1+ 303,000/ T e B E
BERAE HEMBRARAMNFHR A
2,421,000/ 7T o £ F B EAE FIBE £ /Y
SE A A36,551,00078 7T °

HETSERREYRERAA(H
EMB AR
RZEZ—FZANA RERNKEE
ERAB([ZEEBEARCH (KRN ERE
2EWBRAR) RAIZBEBEMAERA
AIBEACH(—R2BILE=ZH)FINLE
Bk o BIEZ W ZEHCHEURE
BELEMNBRATMEME FHITRA
48 15 4 X {8 /£20,180,00078 7T - R E RN
—E-—F=AZH2HWKME -

RGN _E_—F_A=-+H
THRCEHEFEEMEBEMRAR
20,456,000 7T * £ Z T AWE - K
B I % # #9  #120,601,000/% JT ~ E b
JiE Y7 3% 7B 204,0007% JT I H ftb & 1 30 18

349,000 7T - HEM B R A FE1E ?IJ
B B ¥ K A 1% A726,00008 L o &
E M E QR E SR FE R A A19,730,000
PETT
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—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

12. INCOME TAX 12. FF 8%

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEx FiET
Current tax: BV EAFR IR -
— Germany corporate income tax —EEEMSH 47 329
— Malaysia corporate income tax —ERETEEMEH 68 150
— PRC enterprise income tax —FHBEEMRER 1,399 -
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNER 179 338
2,117 817
Under/(over)-provision in prior years: BEFEZEETRS
(HREER ) -
— UK corporate income tax —REPEMSEH 1,100 (3,244)
Deferred tax: EERIA -
— Charged/(credited) for the year —FRNER (K E) 972 (901)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frsfi it (&) 4,189 (3,328)

UK corporate income tax is calculated at 19% (2020: 19%) on the
estimated assessable profit derived from UK.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Germany, the Group is subject
to corporate income tax at 15% (2020: 15%) on the estimated
assessable profit of the subsidiary which carried on business in
Germany.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Malaysia, the Group is subject
to corporate income tax at 24% (2020: 24%) on the estimated
assessable profit of the subsidiary which carried on business in
Malaysia.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years. For income generated in the PRC
earned by subsidiaries incorporated outside the PRC is subjected to
withholding tax at 10% (2020: 10%),.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong.
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— = —

— =

12 |NCOME TAX (Continued)

13

—% X A=+ H FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

12. R 5 ¥

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation per NREEB7BRBHGAGEZEEME2EIK
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive HRZBEBAEBEYENT
income as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Loss before taxation M FE AT ES 18 (52,753) (41,052)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BREBFSHEI66% (ZTZF
(2020: 16.5%) F :16.5%) T E 2 BIE (8,704) 6,774)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E A EE M R &S 2 F B A R
operating in other jurisdiction ZTEBEZZE 480 524
Tax effect of income exempted or not subject to 7 H b B] A Hb [2 1€ 34 G 40 B =k
taxation in other jurisdiction BERMBAZR BT E (885) (re1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax BB 7'1'% ERR Az 2z
purposes k32 6,970 2,752
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRER %R HEBZMBEE 8,149 4,764
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years HEFHBNEETIRS
(FREEHE) 1,100 (3,244)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised ) f3 i 1 K FE R 2 T TE &5 18 (535) (519)
Others Hb (2,386) (70)
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year FRABRIE(HE) 4,189 (3,328)

DIVIDENDS 13. R &

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 30 June HE

2021 nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of reporting P ,)Eé’éik}i 25K BT ] IR B

period (2020: Nil). TEAE B MR BRI A AR
TE Mmoo

BENMKEEBERIA —F

—FXA=Z+tHLFE I

——FER

F B WSS

a(—T—
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—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. B RE1E
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of the RKATBIHEEANEEZBRERNERB IR
Company is based on the following data: ETRYER:E
2021 2020
—E- -5 —E-EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the KRAalEE ANEBLHAFEERE
Company (59,822) (39,521)
Number of ordinary shares ZHEKRRGEE ’000 ’000
T T &
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 5+ & & I E 7K 518 7 & 38 AL N4
the purpose of basic loss per share SEHE 683,831 683,831
Diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 HREBEE-_ZE-_—F~A=1THEK_-Z
were the same as the basic loss per share as there were no potential TEFERNA=CTHLFEELEE KTE

ordinary shares outstanding during both years.

HERAXEBRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ BERRE

Plant and
machinery
and Furniture
Land and communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures  vehicles Vessel Total
BE BER
THREF BEARZ BARRE RE b} #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
FTET FET TEL FET TFExR TET
(note (i))
k0
Cost BAE
At 1 July 2019 RZZ2-AFtA—-A 14,694 279,367 9,105 2,083 33,309 338,538
Currency realignment S (503) (9,536) (15) - - (10,054)
Additions NE - 8,723 275 - 190 9,188
Disposals/written off HE /M - (2,414) (1,056) (101) - (3,571)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) & W B A 7 (Hi5F11) - - (216) - - (216)
At30 June2020and 1 July 2020 H-ZE-ZTEA=1+H
RZZ2-_ZTF+A-H 14,191 276,140 8,093 1,962 33,499 333,885
Currency realignment B K 55 % 1,412 32,075 312 - - 33,799
Additions NE - 11,554 - - - 11,554
Disposals/written off HE /M - (221) - - - (221)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) & it & 22 &) (Hf 7E11) - - - —  (33499) (33,499
At 30 June 2021 RZE-—%"A=+H 15,603 319,548 8,405 1,962 — 345,518

CBENEEEERAT —B-—FFRK
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—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

15. W% BERRE@

Plant and
machinery
and Furniture
Land and communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures  vehicles Vessel Total
BE-#ER
tHREF BEAZ BAR#E RE bk @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000
FTEL FTAET FTAET TEL FER AT
(note (i)
(FI5EG)
Depreciation and impairment WERRAE
At 1 July 2019 R-E-hF+HA—H 4,081 260,912 8,203 2,012 - 275,208
Currency realignment R (146) (8,886) (13 — — (9,045)
Provided for the year FEREE 410 7,102 583 - 4,214 12,309
Eliminated on disposals/written off & /#f § B #i & - (1,860) (1,021) (50) - (2,931)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11)  HE KB A & (FifzE11) - - (216) - - (216)
At30June2020and 1 July 2020 WH-E-ZTEA=1H
k-—Z-FTF+A—H 4,345 257,268 7,636 1,962 4,214 275,325
Currency realignment EREE 247 29,731 269 - - 30,247
Provided for the year FREE - 7,406 253 - 1,302 8,961
Impairment loss recognised in profit 5 {& & & (i % (i)
or loss (note (i) — — — - 7,382 7,382
Eliminated on disposals/written off & /#f § B #i (& - (76) - - - (76)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) &M B2 7 (F3E11) - - - - (1289  (12,899)
At 30 June 2021 RZE-—FXA=1H 4,592 294,329 8,058 1,962 - 308,941
Carrying values REE
At 30 June 2021 R-ZE-—FXA=1H 11,011 25,219 347 — — 36,577
At 30 June 2020 RZZE-ZTFEXA=1H 9,846 18,872 557 - 29,285 58,560
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

15. W% BERRE@

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
The carrying values of the Group’s property REBZYEEZEMES
interests comprise:
Freehold properties held outside Hong Kong REBUINIRIFTAEKAZERZ
(note (i) ) % (B = (i) 11,011 9,846

Notes: Bt 5

[0) The Group leased equipment to customers on operating leases terms that 0] rEBEECEREFAHERBTER
ranged from 1 year to 6 years . As at 30 June 2021, the carrying value of such H—E2AERE R —FXA=T
equipment, which was included in plant and machinery and communications B B E2REER273,0008 T (=
networks amounted to HK$273,000 (2020: HK$244,000). T =T F 2440008 5T)  BEABE

HEE R BEEEA -

(ii) As at 31 December 2021, the management considered it appropriate to (ii) RZZE-_—FA=+H EEEBRAR
estimate the recoverable amount of the vessel based on the net realisable value BB EMPETFEAERARATED
as assessed by an independent valuer, Stirling Appraisal Limited. As the AIEIFE - ERAET MR A e & 88
carrying amount of the vessel exceeded its recoverable amount, an impairment EEEE - RN M RE(EE R E A KD
loss of approximately HK$7,382,000 was recognised for the year ended 30 ¢ BE_Z-_—FXXA=-THILFE
June 2021 (2020: nil). The vessel was subsequently disposed on 26 February R E R IE 47,382,000 L (ZF =%
2021 (note 11). FoE) ZaMMBERER T =—F=

A=+ BHEE (ME11) -

(iii) As at 30 June 2021, property, plant and equipment of the Group with the (iii) RZEZ—FXRNA=+8 X£EBEERA
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$11,011,000 (2020: HK$9,846,000) have 4 {E A11,011,0008 T( =T = Z F:
been pledged as collaterals for the defined benefit retirement scheme of certain 9,846,000 ) 2 W ¥ BME R KBS &
subsidiaries operated in UK. HHEANERLENETHEARNTE

FEAR MR R ET &I A9 HE 4 o
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—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EFEEE

Land and Motor
buildings vehicles Total
T REF RE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET

Carrying amount FESHE

At 1 July 2019 R=-ZT—-—h&EtA—H 1,886 2,311 4,197
Additions NE 2,790 2,353 5,143
Depreciation expense EEH (1,067) (1,272) (2,339)
Exchange adjustments BE 5 8B (51) (78) (129)

At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 R-E-_ZEFXA=1+H

rE—ZE-_ZEFtH—H 3,558 3,314 6,872
Additions NE — 2,911 2,911
Depreciation expense mEER (2,063) (2,303) (4,366)
Exchange adjustments b X, 30 & 86 322 408
At 30 June 2021 R-ZB=--FxXA=+H 1,581 4,244 5,825

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE-—_Z2—-_—%F§
ANRE=Z+HLEE

Expense relating to short-term leases 2 HiTHE M S HE 121

and other leases with lease term RAZKRNEMEE M
ended within 12 months & A 1,466 630 2,096
Total cash outflow for leases HERS KT AT 3,356 2,944 6,300

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE-_Z_-%F
RA=Z+THLEEE

Expense relating to short-term leases 2 I E LA S A B X

and other leases with lease term & FAHKFRS & 165% 2 B

ended within 12 months of the date HI2E A NE R EAM

of initial application of HKFRS 16 HEHENER 6,471 601 7,072
Total cash outflow for leases HERESRLEE 7,451 1,943 9,394
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 16. E AR E E @)

For both years, the Group lease various offices and motor vehicles for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into fixed term of 1 to 8
years (2020: 1 to 8 years) but may have extension options included.
The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal
option. After the lease commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term if there is significant event or change in circumstances that
in beyond its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise)
the option to renew (e.g. a change in business strategy). As the Group
considered the exercise of the extension option is uncertain, therefore
the lease term does not include the extension option. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of difference
terms and conditions.

As at 30 June 2021, the carrying value of motor vehicles includes an
amount of HK$341,000 (2020: HK$514,000) in respect of assets held
under hire-purchase.

MEHB A*EEHRESERLAEMA
BUBITEE -FHEARMNET HR A1
E8F(ZE-_TF 1E89F) BAfLE
FEHERE AEEETHEREETAEMRE
EFENEEESERAE - b2
HOTCERTMAEAHMNEENEERE
RELESH INABEE X - RHAERB
A% WREEREHHBRELR
HEEFISEYEEHITETITE)
BHRER(PINERREEE) K4
N AEEeENAHHEER - AEH
REITHEENEERL TETE - Bt
HERTREENEEE -HEKRE
BEBENBESRBEEEN  HPBREE
2 B G RAN G -

F*ﬁ*—iﬁﬂi+a'ﬁ$m$
HE B E31,0008 T (Z T 2T F:
514,000 JT.) * /ﬁ&u%ﬂ,ﬁﬁﬁf&hﬁa’a
BEE -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. R EW=E

Properties Properties
located in located in
Hong Kong the PRC Amount
EBWE FEYE o]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FET FAET
Carrying value at 1 July 2019 —hFtA—RAZ
R A 12,700 51,318 64,018
Currency realignment PE 3, 58 2 - (145) (149)
Disposal & (1,250) — (1,250)
Fair value loss on investment properties = &M E 2 2 A BEEHRE (1,359) (6,963) (8,322)
Transfer to assets held for sale EIFIERECEE
(note 25) (P 3E25) (10,091) - (10,091)
Carrying value at 30 June 2020 and R -—ZE-ZHF XA =+H
1 July 2020 ;r—E-_ZFF+HAH—H
ZHRHE — 44,210 44,210
Currency realignment PE 0 2 — 3,542 3,542
Fair value gain on investment WEMEZ AR EBEKS
properties — 2,270 2,270
Carrying value at 30 June 2021 R-E-_—FXA=+H
ZREE - 50,022 50,022
Note: B 5
As of 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group has 2 pieces of leasehold land with REBE_Z-_—Fr_ZTZ_ZTFXA=ZTHLF
contractual lease terms expiring in 2032 and 2043 with a hotel property being erected E ASEEAMBRHAELW(EEAHNAEHERN

CEZHER-TN=FER)  ARERER

on the 2 pieces of leasehold land and with a tenancy agreement with a hotel operator,

the Group receives fixed rental from the hotel operator during the lease term, expiring
near the end of the contractual lease term of one of the leasehold land (i.e. 2033). The
abovementioned leasehold land and hotel property mainly included 2 elements: one
was a finance lease receivable (note 20) representing the right to receive rental from
the hotel operator till the end of lease term (i.e. 2033) and the other was an investment
property representing interest in a leasehold land with the remaining lease term from
the end of the lease term with the hotel operator (i.e. 2033 to 2043). The management
noted that leasehold land in the PRC are commonly treated as operating leases until
the end of the relevant lease term with no assumption that the lease term can be
further extended.
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 17. REWNZE @

Note: (Continued) B aE (88

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the fair value of the investment property element was RZIEZ—FR-ZE-_ZTFA=1+8 &EY

determined by adjusted market comparison approach by a) making reference to EXSNALBEIIEASHBR  MIBHL B EE
=)

comparable sales of bareland with lease term of 40 years; b) adjusted for the term
factor using the valuation technigue to estimate value of bareland with lease term of 10
years as at 2033; and c) take into account the time value of money at discount rate of 6%
from 2033 to 30 June 2021 and 2020 respectively. As at 30 June 2021, the fair value
of related investment properties amounted to HK$5,170,000 (2020: HK$3,840,000).
The fair value as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 was performed by an independent firm of
professional valuers, Stirling Appraisals Limited by using adjusted market comparable
method.

The fair value of other investment properties of the Group amounted to HK$44,852,000

(2020: HK$40,370,000) as of 30 June 2021 have also been valued by Stirling Appraisal
Limited, by using direct comparison method.

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

ECRAEMBHOSERERE EUTEHZE
LB T A 40F £ i 1) & (B ¢ b) R A E BT
REHRAZELABUGAR_ZS==FHHA
10FMEMEE: ko)t heBNRHEEES
= =FE T —FRZZTZZTFRAZ
+ERBA RN H - BEHREMER =T =
—FRNA=THZ2REEAR5170,000% T (=
T T F:3840008 L) RZT_—F R
ToTFENACHAZAAEBERBLEEGE
M EFEERARIKAEABRZMIHLE AL
FHE o

REBR-_ZE-_—F "A=-+EZHMBKRENE
ZRAREED B £H44,852,0008 0 (=T T F -
40,370,000/ 7T) MR ETE AR A RIERAEE
L BUREITEE -

1. R—BHME QR 2 ER

2021 2020

—E-— ZEZTF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHxT FHEIT

Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRAZES  EHEARE 2 2
Share of post-acquisition losses FEAE B2 B8 - -
2 2
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—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. R— R E Nz EEZw

Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2021 and 2020 are as R_E_—FR_E_FFA=+H
follows: AEEBZEERLEZFHBHOT

Proportion of

Principal Class of nominal value of
Place of place of shares issued capital
Name of company incorporation  operation held held by the Group Principal activity
= BE 2 FE R rEBRBEERT
PACIECE it B R gk ball IR A E E 2 Lk B FEEHR
2021 2020

B ZET-FTF

Champion Oriana Power Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 20% 20% Provision of solar
Management Limited energy and
(“Champion Oriana related products
Power”)

BEENERBKAERLA B BE Rl 20% 20% R KIS B LA K
(IBEEHER#F] B EmM

Champion Oriana Power, the only associate in which the Group ITTEEEEBTESTHESGREE ALK

participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price EEW—ZQ2HEJAEEPE EXWEME

is not available. ATiR At o

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interest in REBR—BEE AT I ZHBEE

an associate, which is prepared using accounting policies in conformity PhRERESEARAZETHE IR

with the accounting policies adopted by the Group and accounted for HEAEBERMREAZ SRR 5 WA
using the equity method, is set out below: HRAAR HBEHH 0T :

2021 2020

—E-—F —EFF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET TET

Total assets BEMBE 10 10

Total liabilities BEHER 6) -

4 10

Revenue & - _

Loss and total comprehensive expense AFEBEEEREE X HATE
for the year (6) —
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—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

19. B AREBEFARRZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Unlisted equity investment FEEMRAZE

— Company A (note (i) — 2 alABEEE) — 975
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong (note (i) & 7% £ B A& & (B 5E (i) 41,893 67,686
41,893 68,661

Represented by: LA 3 & I8 57K -
Current assets B B & 17 41,893 67,686
Non-current assets JE BN EA &8 1 —_ 975
41,893 68,661

Notes:

[0] On 29 March 2019, Allied Joy (Hong Kong) Limited (“Allied Joy”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and two other independent third parties
established a company (defined as “Company A”), which was incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability. Allied Joy subscribed for 25
ordinary shares of total US$250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,965,000) of Company A. Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of Company A, it required more than 50% of the voting rights of
shareholders to pass all the resolution (including appointment and removal of
directors of Company A. The other two shareholders, together hold 75% of the
equity interests of Company A, have joint control over Company A and
appointed all directors in Company A. Upon the completion of the subscription,
the Group holds 25% of equity interest in Company A. The Group has not no
right to appoint any director in the board of directors of Company A which is
responsible for making decisions of the relevant activities of Company A. In this
regard, the directors of the Company conclude that the Group does not have
significant influence over Company A and hence conclude that the investment
in Company A is accounted for as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss of the Group.

(ii) The fair values of the listed shares in Hong Kong are determined based on the
quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange. For details,
please refer to securities investments section in Management Discussion and
Analysis in the 2021 annual report of the Group.

0] RIEBE-AF=A-+NLEB XAFHZ
BB RARER(ES)AGRRAA(ERD
HEINNMUBIE=FKRY T RAACGE
ZHIAAA]) ZRAEEBHBRARSE
((KBARREEDAMKLABEREL
ARl ERMARARE 725 T AAL
#2 51250,000% 7T (48 & R #91,965,000 %8
) REBEABANBHKERZREMME -
FrARZF(BEAFTAZEENETGMER)
ERDFAREABBES0%HEZHNKE
THEBB  ZHMEBREREFTHAARA
ZT75% B AR - Bt PR ES T AR
A TERTARANFTEES - T RE
% AEBEFEERAAZ25%H BRAE - A
SEEQARAERZEPURATRES
MAEESEREYATNANEREE#
ARR -HEHEARREEZRALAEE
HARFLRAMBENTZE N TRKBEH
HEmBAEEHARANEEREEAUA
ABEFEEEZYTALHEBEEN SR

(ii) BELEWRG 2 R0 BE TR AFT I
AR ESEE - BAFHAEE B2
MALEE -_ZT-—FFRFPIEEBIH
EAWIRHBEHFZELLNR -
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20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE 20. B R EHE RIE

Present Present

value of value of

Minimum Minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

BREHE REME BEHEENRE SEEEFHE

RIE ;IE ZBE ZB{E

As at As at As at As at

30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
R-ZBZ—F RZZZF RIZBE-Z—F RZT_ZF
ANB=t+8H NA=1+H ANB=tH NA=1+H

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT FET FET
Within one year —F R 4,690 4,064 4,553 3,944
Between one to two years F—F 4 4,690 4,278 4,378 3,994
Between two to three years 8 & =4 4,690 4,278 4,210 3,841
Between three to four years & =Z M4 4,690 4,278 4,048 3,693
Between four to five years ENERF 4,690 4,278 3,892 3,551
Over five years REMN L 30,481 32,090 21,894 22,620
53,931 53,266 42,975 41,643
Less: Unearned finance B ARAERBERA
income (10,956) (11,623)
Present value of minimum =K EW T & o8
lease payment receivables ZRE 42,975 41,643
Represented by PSS =El N
Current portion BN ER &8 4,553 3,944
Non-current portion JEBNEAER &> 38,422 37,699
42,975 41,643
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20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (continveay  20. FE IR @t 35 #1 & 2% 18 ()

The effective interest rate applicable to the finance lease is
approximately 3.96% per annum.

REMEZERERMNERSFHN XL
3.96% °

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the management of the Group HE-_Z-_ZFENA=1THLFE XK
granted a rent concession to the hotel operator for the period from 11 E B E ﬁ B FRELEE S -_ZTF
February 2020 to 10 August 2020, as a result, a loss on rent —At—RBRE-_ZC ?ﬁj\ A+ B8
concession amounting to HK$649,000 was recognised in profit or loss eRE ANEBEE ST _TF A=

for the year ended 30 June 2020. During the year ended 30 June 2021,
no rent concession is granted to the hotel operator.

The hotel operator had made payments in accordance with the
contractual tenancy arrangement and had a good repayment record in
prior years. Accordingly, the management of the Group considered that
the credit risk is low and no provision for impairment loss is considered
necessary.

Eaﬁi&‘-aﬁémﬁqﬂﬁﬁwmﬁﬁzﬁ%
E649,0008 L - HEZT - —F A=
THEFE WELETHEEERTMH
B R &R -

BELSEBRANEP ZHEL N RL
&iﬂ&if‘%ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁ" ESYl A
AEBEEERREERRANK B
//\Edilitf’ﬁﬂj/)ﬁﬁ%?@%ﬁ

21. INVENTORIES 21. 7 &

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Raw materials R 7,797 9,582
Work in progress TR 6,581 2,984
Finished goods (notes) 2IpK m (P 3E) 24,186 17,770
38,564 30,336

Notes: B -

(i) Included in finished goods are gasoil of HK$5,834,000 (2020: Nil) and cultural
products (including precious stones and antiques) of HK$12,758,000 (2020:
HK$11,583,000), which are held for trading and resale in the ordinary course of
business.

(i) As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, all the cultural products of the Group were
stored in a warehouse run by a world-renowned security company, which is an
independent third party to the Group.

BENMKEEBERIA —F

[0} SEREEERNAEEBBRPRFIEFEER
BEZRARBARNEER(RELEER
K #4 ) 5 5l /75,834 oooi%ﬁ(:;?:g
F:F) %12,758,0008 T (Z T — T4 ¢
11,583,000/ 7T) °

(i) RZEZ—FRZZTZZTFAA=1+H"
ZS%.ZFﬁﬁYﬂZEuu B 17 s — Rt 7
HMENRZARMEEZLZERBENA -
HAREEBIE=F -
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21. |NVENTOR|ES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

184

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018, the Group engaged GEM Appraisal Center of Peking
University (1t 24t K28 A 2 F # 0)) (the “Appraisal Center”) to conduct a
scientific examination of 360 pieces of cultural products regarding their grading
and classification. The management of the Group arranged the valuer, 1t 3 ™
FEBERIHERQT (‘(ERHTERE) to reassess the market values
of all 368 pieces of cultural products as at 30 June 2018 based on the finding
of a team of cultural product and jewellery expert (“Experts”) from “China
Cultural Heritage Information and Consulting Center” led by Ms. YANG
Zhen Hua (15 Z %) and the Appraisal Center concerning the grading and
classification of 8 pieces and 360 pieces of the cultural products respectively.
Based on the result of the final authentication report and evaluation report for
the valuation of the cultural products as at 30 June 2018, the management of
the Group determined that their net realisable values were below their costs by
HK$4,222,621,000.

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020, engaged the valuer, 1t 5 71 Bl 72 {5 to assess the current
market values of all 368 pieces of cultural products as at 30 June 2020 based
on the finding of the Experts and the Appraisal Centre concerning the grading
and classification of the cultural products and the current condition of the
cultural products. Based on the valuation of the cultural products as at 30 June
2020 estimated by 1t = 1 & 72 {2, the management of the Group determined
that their net realisable values were below their carrying amounts as of 30 June
2020 and the shortfalls resulted in further impairment loss of HK$230,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2020.

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2021, the Group engaged the valuer, it 5 7 B 72 1= to assess
the current market values of all 368 pieces of cultural products as at 30 June
2021 based on the finding of the Experts and the Appraisal Centre concerning
the grading and classification of the cultural products and the current condition
of the cultural products. Based on the valuation of the cultural products as at
30 June 2021 estimated by 1t T 72 {5, the management of the Group
determined that their net realisable values were above their carrying amounts
as of 30 June 2021 and the surplus resulted in reversal of impairment loss of
HK$62,000 for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The directors of the Company were of the view that, with the detailed exercise
performed by the Appraisal Center, the carrying amount net of impairment
recognised so far, reflected in the consolidated financial statements, was the
best estimate of the recoverable amount of the cultural products.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. EWE 5 R HAMERK

2021 2020

—E-—F —EZEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHExT FHT

Trade receivables (note) JiE U 2 5 BR 3k (B ) 41,531 59,992
Less: provision for impairment losses R ERE (1,122 -
40,409 59,992

Other receivables JRE LS L fh BR X 19,438 16,564

Less: provision for impairment losses R ERE (5,683) (5,683)
13,755 10,881

54,164 70,873

Note:

B 5 -

Bt

AEBHREESRPHITHBZEERK - RIE
BEZER RERERZEE TRRBRED
BEAMETEFPNFIOREIOREEH K
SEREEXLERZEERRAERNHK -

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding its trade customers
depending on their credit worthiness, nature of services and products, industry
practice and condition of the market with credit period ranging from 30 days to 180
days. The Groups credit policy for sales of cultural products is cash on delivery.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of expected credit losses) EWE ZER(HBREBEHEESE) RNR

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period

THEERREEZRAZKEIITZ

is as follows: a0
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
0-60 days 0-60 H 14,919 39,091
61-90 days 61-90 H 12,231 3,438
91-180 days 91-180H 9,071 17,412
181-365 days 181-365 H 4,137 —
Over 365 days B8 365H 51 51
40,409 59,992
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance and sales
management team would assess the potential customers credit
worthiness and define the credit limit accordingly for the customers.
Credit limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with
reference to past settlement history and where appropriate, information
about their current reputation. Details of the credit policy impairment
assessment of trade receivable for the year ended 30 June 2021 and
2020 are set in note 5.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of expected credit losses)
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

22. EWWE 5 & H i BR FX (@)

REMTENHELH AEEBZHBHR
HEEEEFeFMBERRP Z2EE
ErUAEEMRAETRPFPZEERE - B
FTEPZEEESL2EBAERLHK
THENBRLT REEMBEETH
BER - BEZZ - FRZZE_ZTFAX
A=1+HLFENESRRETEER
RREFEFBHAWES -

A5 5t 2 A % 5 8 78 {6 R B 2 FE B
SERCNREBEEER) 2 ER AT
m

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TEF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FHEx FET

Neither past due nor impaired BIL A 80 2R 78 AR R (B 26,842 40,925
Less than 1 month past due wmE LR —EA 302 1,970
1 to 3 months past due mE—Z=EA 13,199 17,046
3to 12 months past due M=+ @A 15 -
Past due over 1 year m AR iR — & 51 51
13,567 19,067

40,409 59,992
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES

23. EIWE ™

2021 2020

—E-—& —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FiET

Loan receivables TEWE R 15,631 23,256

Less: provision for impairment losses R (6,613) (5,485)
9,018 17,771

As at 30 June 2021, loan receivables (net of expected credit losses) of R-ZB-—FXA=1+H"  ElkmozZE
HK$9,018,000 (2020: approximately HK$17,771,000) were due from BRAZEZZEF: RZEFAHER
four borrowers (2020: six borrowers), unsecured and with personal (INBREHEEEE) A 49,018000/%
guarantee. All the loan receivables are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”). T(ZZE T F: 417,771,000 7T )
The loan receivables carry fixed interest rates ranging from 8% to 10% ZEERRBEERBLEBAAER - FIB
(2020: 10% to 16%) per annum with maturity date within 12 months EWEZTHIUARB(TAREDE:
from the loan draw down date. Up to the date of this report, EREFHETETFFNEAE8%E10% (=
approximately HK$6,012,000 was received by the Group. T -TEF 10%E16%) BIHHBAER

ROBHENT —_EAR -BHEARFKE
HE ANEE B WEIFRIE A %6,012,000

I e
Iy (=
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4. REeERBEEEH

(a) The cash and cash equivalents comprise short-term deposits () RerBLeEHEAEINBE A=
with maturity of three months or less and cash held by the MASKAAZEHEFEFREANER
Group. BEZRE -
Certain bank balances and cash of HK$22,719,000 (2020: B822719,0008 L (ZE -_FF ¢
HK$4,167,000) were denominated in RMB, which is not freely 4,167,000 ) 2 & FRITHE B &
convertible currency in the international market. The remittance RETTUARBFE MARKL
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions AR MEERE B zEE -

imposed by the Government of the PRC.

HPBRENZEESEXTERK
T B 1 2 S Y P AR IR
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24. CASH AND CASH EQU'VALENTS (Continued) 24. fﬁ, ﬁ & fﬁ, ﬁ % %E (8)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below shows the detailed changes in the Groups major
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and

b) EREEBFELEREREDN
¥ iR

TEREBINAGSEERELTIIE
EXTRRENEH(BRASRIF

non-cash changes. B BE) S o
Interest
bearing  Promissory Amount
other note due to Lease
borrowing payable  adirector liabilities Total
(note 31) (note 32) (note 30) (note 28)
FE EBARR  EA-F
HitfE & FE ESXE HEEE @t
(Fsr31)  (fEE32)  (MisEso)  (FiEE28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 July 2019 RZE-NE+A-H 230,000 98,762 4,180 4,349 337,291
Financing cash flow: MERERE:
Repayment of other borrowing BEEMEE (20,000) - - - (20,000)
Repayment of promissory note payable (BB EN &K E#& - (58,029) - - (58,029)
Repayment to a director BE-—REENE - - (2,000) - (2,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEERE - - - (2,322) (2,322
Interest paid BERFE (27,430) (808) - - (28,238)
(47,430) (68,837) (2,000 (2,322) (110,589)
Currency realignment X B - - - (140) (140)
Other charges Hitn# g
Gain on extension LRz W& - (8,066) - - (8,066)
Loss on early redemption REREEDZEE - 58 - - 58
New lease entered A - - - 5,105 5,105
Finance costs BI ISR AR 27,430 8,640 - 221 36,291
27,430 632 - 5,326 33,388
At 30 June 2020 R-B-EEXA=1+H 210,000 40,557 2,180 7,213 259,950
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24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 24, EE, ﬁ & ,ILE ﬁ % %E (8)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) ERMETHMELEEEN
financing activities (Continued) R @
Interest
bearing  Promissory Amount
other note due to Lease
borrowing payable  adirector liabilities Total

(note 31) (note 32) (note 30) (note 28)
FERTR  EARE  EN-3F
HitEE EE EZNE HESE @
(Wsk81)  (PI&E32)  (MsEso)  (Fisk2s)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

At 1 July 2020 —E-ZF+tH—-A 210,000 40,557 2,180 7,213 259,950
Financing cash flow: BERESRE
Repayment of other borrowing EBEEMES (25,000) - - - (25,000)
Repayment of lease liabilties BEHEERE - - - (4,881) (4,881)
Interest paid BFE (25,802) (440) - - (26,242)
(50,802 (440) - (4,881) (66,123)
Currency realignment IE 5 A - - - 383 383
Other charges: Hitt 28
Gain on extension TRz - (8,191) - - (8,191)
New lease entered FipitED - - - 2,911 2,911
Finance costs BF B AR 25,802 6,380 - 420 32,602
25,802 (1,811) - 3,331 27,322
At 30 June 2021 R-B--£xXA=1+H 185,000 38,306 2,180 6,046 231,532
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25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED

26

190

AS HELD FOR SALE

Disposal of an investment property

On 23 June 2020, Eternal Huge Development Limited (the “Vendor D”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Bhavana Kowloon
Limited (the “Purchaser D”), an independent third party, entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement (the “Provisional S&P
Agreement D”), in which the Vendor D agreed to sell and the
Purchaser D would acquire the Factory B on 24th floor and balcony
thereof and store room thereof, Kingsford Industrial Building Phase | (the
“Property”), located in Hong Kong, as at completion date at a cash
consideration of HK$10,350,000. As at 30 June 2020, the carrying
amount of the investment property and prepayment for building
refurbishment classified as held for sale amounting to HK$10,091,000
and HK$259,000 respectively. The transaction had been completed on
27 August 2020. The net proceed from the disposal of an investment
property amounted to HK$10,230,000 after deducting the direct cost
and net loss of HK$120,000 from the disposal was recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

N

26. ERNEGZREHE

5.

iﬁ%?ﬂ’ﬁtﬂ’EZﬁF

=R KEBRRE
DJ)(K AfEEEMN
)Eﬁin BEFIFAERQATER
DJ)( HBBLE=ZAF)UEREEA
H((EEEEAHND) - EHDAEHE
&8 HCRE AR £ 810,350,000 T
BEMNREBHASEITERNEEIHY
24@8@(&?ﬁﬁ¢5§m&fﬁ% JH T
¥ME(YED) R_Z_ZF A=
TH SEABELENKREMERE
BEREFEFENRENEREBES A
10,091,000 JT K 259,000/ T ° % X 5
ER_ZE-_ZFNA-t+LtBHTEK &
i_;ﬁ_—ix\ﬁzﬂ—lﬂﬂ:iﬁéuﬂ%
& & W) ¥ 8 FT 15 5B F B2 410,230,000
BT MBEEKRARLEMNFER
120,000/ JL1& HEFR ©

fib B X

2021
—E-—F
HK$°000
FHET

2020
—EERF
HK$’000
FAETT

Trade payables JERTE 5 8RR
Other payables JE < L At BR 3R

20,471
41,348

9,641
38,210

61,819 47,751
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continves) 26. FE{S B 5 & H 1 BR :X )

The aging analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice ENESERRN RSN TEERERE
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AEZEREDITZS T
2021 2020
—E=-—F T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
0-60 days 0-60H 10,042 8,749
61-90 days 61-90 H 9,637 —
91-365 days 91-365H - —
Over 1 year HiE—F 792 792
20,471 9,541
The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from 30 days to 120 BEEEYL SN TFEII0RE120H
days.
Pa
27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. 5 WEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET

Receipts in advance from customers for provision Fhi2 4t RE 2 BN E F 18
of services 25,172 23,654
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 27. 5N B & w
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEEH
2021 2020
—E-—% TECTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FET
At 1 July Rt A—H 23,654 21,587
Currency realignment T 3 % 1,782 (753)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing REBEERRTEMERS L
in advance of provision of service B EE 24,699 24,041
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of RERNERTAFYEHEE
recognising revenue during the year that was Mk mmEsanaBERD
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year (24,963) (21,221)
At 30 June RANA=1+H 25,172 23,654

All the amount of billings in advance of performance as at 30 June
2021 are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, the aggregated amount of the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligations under the Groups
existing contracts is HK$28,614,000 (2020: HK$21,425,000). These
amounts would be recognised as revenue when the service is provided
by the Group over the life of the contracts to the customers, which is
expected to occur over the next three years.
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29

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. fHE&AE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EREEEE
Within one year —F R 4,093 3,701
Within a period of more than one year but not —F LA HET BB F
more than two years 1,508 3,164
Within a period of more than two years but not ~ M4 A F{E R #BiE 7 F
more than five years 445 348
6,046 7,213
Less: Amounts due for settlement within BoonEBBETHI2E AR
12 months shown under current liabilities B HAEE B (4,093) (3,701)
Amounts due for settlement after FEmBamE 12 AE
12 months shown under non-current liabilities FHA B B 8 1,953 3,512
WARRANTY PROVISION 2. RER B
2021 2020
—E-—F TE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
At 1 July KREARA—H 1,230 1,347
Currency realignment T 3, 38 % 129 (19)
Utilised during the year FRER (297) (©8)
At 30 June KANA=1+H 1,062 1,230

The warranty provision represents the managements best estimate of
the Group’s liability under 12-month warranties granted on
manufactured products, based on prior experience and industry

average for defective products.

B 2 RAERTE

BEMNKEEERAE

o

e

REREBHREEZERBBELBLER
HERREMIERML G THRK
mT—EAAREHMEAEEE EA&E
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30. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due to a director of the Company is unsecured, non-
interest bearing, has no fixed term of repayment and is repayable on
demand.

As at 30 June 2021, such director of the Company, who is also a

substantial shareholders of the Company, is deemed to be interested in
16.17% (2020: 13.59%) of the issued share capital of the Company.

31. INTEREST BEARING OTHER

30. BEff —REEME

BNARR—RESFRBEDNELR T
e EEEERMRBAREREER -

RZZE-Z—FXA=1tH ZARFTE
E-MARRRAZEZRE WEAR
RRE617%(Z T T4 : 13.59%) 2
ERITRAREREZ -

BORROWING
2021 2020
—B=—F —E_EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Other borrowing (note) HAnfg & (M &) 185,000 210,000
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
The interest bearing other borrowing is repayable ZB{EiE v it B HEmEEM T :
as follows:
On demand or within one year BBAN—FANEE - 10,000
After one year but within two years —FHREMFEA 185,000 200,000
185,000 210,000
Less: amount due within one year shown R ABEE TR —ER
under current liabilities ES| D Pt - (10,000)
Amount due after one year R—FRIAZ &8 185,000 200,000
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31. INTEREST BEARING OTHER

BORROW' NG (Continued)

Note:

On 12 June 2017, the Company, Mr. Cheng Yang (the “Former Guarantor”) and a
licensed money lender (the “Lender”) in Hong Kong had entered into a facility
agreement which the Lender agreed to lend the Company up to HK$305,000,000 in
aggregate principal amount bearing fixed interest rate at 13% per annum and the
expiry date is 12 months from the date of the first utilisation. The Company had drawn
down a loan with principal amount of HK$203,000,000 on 5 July 2017 and
HK$97,000,000 on 6 July 2017 respectively. Part of the principal amounted to
HK$200,000,000 was used to repay the original loan drawn down in financial year
2017. The maturity date of this borrowing is 4 July 2018. The loan is secured by
640,689,792 shares (128,137,958 shares, after share consolidation of Kantone which
became effective on 10 April 2018) of Kantone (stock listed in HKEX, stock code:
1059) and personal guarantee by Mr. Cheng Yang, a previous director and substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Cheng Yang had resigned as director of the
Company on 15 August 2017 and disposed of 1,766,860,957 shares of the Company
on 17 August 2017. The facility agreement stated that the Former Guarantor should
ensure that he directly and beneficially own not less than 1,766,860,957 shares of the
Company at all times and he should remain as the chairperson of the board of
directors of the Company. No action had been taken by the Lender and waiver from
the Lender was obtained on 28 September 2017 and 2 March 2018 with retrospective
effect. Ms. Wong Man Winny (the “Existing Guarantor”), a director and substantial
shareholder of the Company, has provided a personal guarantee for HK$305,000,000
to secure this borrowing since 10 October 2017.

On 28 September 2017, the Lender granted the Company an option to roll over the
unpaid balance of the loan with the principal amount of HK$305,000,000 for another
12 months from 4 July 2018. Accordingly, the expiry date of the loan was extended to
4 July 2019.

On 1 March 2018, the Group made partial repayment of HK$25,000,000.

On 15 June 2018, a facility extension agreement was signed in which the Lender
agreed to extend the termination date, HK$50,000,000 to be repaid on or before 5
September 2018 and the balance of the loan to be repaid on 4 January 2020. The
Lender discharged and released the Former Guarantor from his obligations and
liabilities under the guarantee. The Company did not have unconditional right to avoid
repayment of HK$50,000,000 to the Lender on or before 5 September 2018, the
borrowings of HK$50,000,000 was classified as current liabilities as at 30 June 2018.
The remaining balance amounted to HK$230,000,000 was classified as non-current
liabilities as at 30 June 2018.

31.
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TAREBER-_Z—+tEHRFERINEE
ER-ZHEsIHEA-_2—\ELANA -
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31. INTEREST BEARING OTHER 1.5 EHMEE @

BORROW'NG (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

On 7 August 2018, the Group made another partial repayment of HK$50,000,000.

On 10 April 2019, the Company, the Existing Guarantor and the Lender entered into a
supplemental agreement, in which the Lender agreed to extend the expiry date of the
loan to 4 January 2021.

On 11 July 2019, the Group made another partial repayment of HK$20,000,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, for the other borrowing of HK$210,000,000 with
interests accrued at the rate of 13% per annum, the Company obtained approval from
the Lender for the extension of repayment date from 4 January 2021 to 7 October
2021. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company committed to a plan to
make partial repayment amounting to HK$10,000,000 within 12 months from the
ended of the reporting period. On 2 September 2020, the Group made another partial
repayment of HK$10,000,000.

On 4 November 2020, the Group entered into a supplemental deed with the Lender,
pursuant to which the Group provided additional collaterals to the Lender, including
the share charge in respect of all issued shares in Disposed Subsidiary, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group which is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the
vessel included in the property, plant and equipment, all issued shares in Champion
Luck International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group which is the sole
legal and beneficial owner of a property included in investment properties, all issued
shares in Champion Million Industries Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
which is the sole legal and beneficial owner of a beneficial owner of a property included
in investment properties, and all issued shares in Champion Pacific Investment Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group which is the sole legal and beneficial owner of
a property included in investment properties.

On 9 February 2021, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose the Disposed Subsidiary (note 11). The Group has repaid HK$15,000,000 to
the Lender to release the share charge on the Disposed Subsidiary. The principal sum
of outstanding indebtedness was reduced to HK$185,000,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, for the other borrowing of HK$185,000,000 with
interests accrued at the rate of 13% per annum, the Company obtained approval from
the Lender for the extension of repayment date from 7 October 2021 to 7 April 2022,
and further extended to 7 October 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

32. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLE

R2.ENERRE

The movements on the promissory note payable is as follows:

ENELERREZESHWT

2021 2020
—E-—f TE T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Promissory note payable ERELER
— issued on 19 July 2017, unsecured —R-ZZE—+tFtAt+HhAET
(note) FEHE A (BT 7E) 38,306 40,557
2021 2020
—E=—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Represented by: A3 &Z 1857 -
— Current — BNERER - 40,557
— Non-current — JERNEAE 38,306 -
38,306 40,557

Note:

On 19 July 2017, the Company issued promissory note with principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 in connection with the acquisition of assets and liabilities through the
acquisition of subsidiaries. The promissory note carries interest at 1% per annum
based on the principal amount then outstanding on a daily basis which shall be due
and payable on the anniversary date of the issue date of the promissory note. The
maturity date of the promissory note is 19 December 2020 or such other date as the
Company and the holder of the promissory note may agree in writing. Neither the
Company nor the holder of the promissory note may assign any of its rights and
obligations without the prior written consent of the other party. The Company may
repay all or part of the principal together with interest accrued thereon at any time prior
to the maturity date by giving 7 days’ prior written notice to the holder of the
promissory note.

On 12 December 2017, the Company early settled part of the promissory note with the
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 by cash of HK$35,950,000 after further
negotiations between the Company and the vendor after the acquisition. The
amortised cost of the said promissory note was approximately HK$39,394,000 at the
date of settlement. As such, gain on early redemption of promissory notes of
approximately HK$3,444,000 was recognised during the year ended 30 June 2018.

Wik -

RZZ—tFLATNA ARABEBK
ERNBARKRBEERBERITASLSH
120,000,000 JT 7 & W 24k o & H ZIE B
REBHREERASERFNR1%E A
e W ERARERETEHNZASA
HANREN - RARBEZEHRA-T
—EE+ AT ARRARTARARLERE
HAEAREERE2EEEMBE K
RAIREGEBEHBAETBERES —
FZRAMEERE TERLTAENRE
FoARRRAFERAALERFBEAEL
7R 42 A0 F A B HI B AT 1 (A 65 (E
R BLACTEREEFS -

CARRRIAEHFRBERETE—PB
A RZT—tF+=ZA+=B" &
2 7] BA 3R 35,950,000 T 1 Al & 1 &
% #850,000,0008 T 2 B DA H R#; o &
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32. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLE (continuea) 32. fE {4 & 5 ZE & ()

Note: (Continued)

On 9 December 2019, a deed of variation was signed in which the Company and the
holder agreed to early settle HK$20,000,000 of the nominal value of the promissory
note and the maturity date of the remaining principal amount of HK$50,000,000 was
extended to 19 January 2021. As such, gain on extension of promissory note of
approximately HK$8,066,000 was recognised during the year ended 30 June 2020.

On 15 January 2020, the Company early settle part of the promissory note with the
principal amount of HK$6,000,000 by cash of HK$5,053,000 after further negotiations
between the Company and the holder. The amortised cost of the said promissory note
was approximately HK$4,995,000, at the date of settlement. As such, loss on early
redemption of promissory note of approximately HK$58,000 was recognised during
the year ended 30 June 2020.

On 14 January 2021, a deed of variation was signed in which the Company and the
holder agreed to extend the maturity date of the remaining principal amount of
HK$44,000,000 to 18 February 2022. As such, gain on extension of promissory note
of approximately HK$5,567,000 was recognised during the year ended 30 June 2021.

On 18 May 2021, the Company and the holder has agreed to extend the maturity date
of the remaining principal amount of HK$44,000,000 to 17 October 2022. As such,
gain on extension of promissory note of approximately HK$2,624,000 was further
recognised during the year ended 30 June 2021 and the promissory note payable is
classified as non-current liability as at 30 June 2021.

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

B & : ()

RZZ—NAF+ZANE  ARRIEEAHZEE
B ANEK W - 12 F 838 ™ (820,000,000 7T 2
A, AR - B B AN & £ 850,000,000 JT B &
ZRIBANESRI T =_—F—F+hB-BA
It HE_E-_ZTFENA=ZTHILEECERX
S IRIE B % 4 498,066,0008 7T ©

R-ZZ-_ZTF—A+HB AQREFAAE—
S REE R AN A AR £5,058,0007% T iR BB
{87 4 %8 /36,000,000 7% 7T B9 88 95 A K, R 4R o A
A bR R =R A # 85 R AR A 494,995,000
BrL -BAE BHEZZTZTFAAA=+HILF
£ MR T IR A BlA K R IR 8 E 18 A 4958,000
FETT

WZZE——F—A+mA - Nzﬂiﬁi%ﬁ)\ﬂ
i T #4 AN & 844,000,000 TR R HALERE
Z__FZ_A+NA-EA- LEJ%EmFE’JW
ﬁ%@ﬁ5,567,000/%71: RBEE2_ZET-_—F A=
TBEIEFEER-

RZZEZ—FHA+NB  AQAREEFARE
1 88 T AN 944,000,000 TR HBIAEREZE =T
ZZF+ATER-BANt REEZTZ—FX
B=+BFE #—PEIARAEBRTHUELD
2,624,000 7T ENAHEZEBR T =—F XA

=tHESEAETHEE-

R K8 A 5T &

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Retirement benefit contributions to MAEEZ FREEFFEZMAZ
the Group’s defined contribution scheme iR PR 1R T 4 5K 1,344 1,487
Retirement benefit contributions to MAEEZ TEEBHFTE M2
the Group’s defined benefit scheme SRR AR I 5K 2,031 9,276
3,375 10,763
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a retirement
benefit scheme covering a portion of their employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of independent trustees.

Commenced from December 2000, the Group enrolled all eligible
employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory provident fund (the
“MPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit cost of the MPF scheme
charged to the profit or loss represents contributions to the MPF
scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
scheme.

The employees of the Groups subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of government-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the respective local government in the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

During the year, the total expense recognised in the profit or loss
amounted to HK$1,344,000 (2020: HK$1,487,000) and
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company in UK operate a
administered and funded pension scheme in the UK. The scheme
provides defined pension benefits with reference to the final
salary of the members at retirement and their length of service.
The scheme was closed to new members since 1 January 2003.

(a)

(b)
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The contributions which are determined by a qualified actuary on
the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit credit
method are charged to the profit or loss. Under the scheme, the
employees are entitled to a pension between 1.67% and 2.50%
of final salary for each year of pensionable service at an age of
65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The most
recent actuarial valuations of scheme assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligations as at 30 June 2021 were
prepared by Buck Consultants Limited, Mrs. Rachel Downs,
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries (“FIA”) (2020: Mrs.
Rachel Downs (FIA)), for accounting reporting purpose. The
assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results
of the valuation are those relating to the rate of return on
investments and the rates of increase in salaries, pensions and
share dividends.

The funded pension scheme exposes the Group to actuarial risks
such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate determined by reference to high quality
corporate bond vyields; if the return on plan asset is below this
rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently the plan has relatively
balanced investment in equity securities, debt instruments and
real estates. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the
trustee of the pension fund considers it appropriate that a
reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in equity
securities and in real estate to leverage the return generated by
the fund.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return
on the plans debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase
in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the
plans liability.
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

iR K48 A 5T &

(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b) EEFEAGFE @
Salary risk FemEk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such,
an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the

ﬁ%E?EﬁJéJriJ“ﬁZEE{EEQE”
’Jriﬂ//\%ZﬂiX%?% - A
AHE2 /\%Z%?%i*bﬂﬂ &0

plans liability. EJr EERE
The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FFEZIERE/REWNT :
At 30 June At 30 June

2021 2020
R-ZB=-—F RZZT-ZTF
ANB=+H ANA=+H

Discount rate Bh IR =X 1.80% 1.50%
Expected rate of salary increase JEHE S TR 2.85% 2.45%
Future pension increases KIREARE iR 3.15% 2.85%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2021 by Mrs. Rachel
Downs (FIA) (2020: Mrs. Rachel Downs (FIA)) showed that the

Rachel Downs A A (2 B 45 & B 17
B XL E)(ZFZEFF : Rachel

market value of the scheme assets was HK$423,163,000 (2020: Downs K K (% B ;F Bt & &R
HK$370,313,000) and that the actuarial value of these assets @ 8))BEHE_— —®FXA=
represented 96% (2020: 88%) of the benefits that had accrued +RZEEGKE ?E\,T\ CEHEIBEZ

to members. T {E A423,163,000/8 L (—E - &
4 :370,313,000/8 7T) » MZHF &
EZHREEEARALHEERESR
FZ296% (=T =T : 88%) °

Under the recovery plan dated 31 May 2016, the Group has WEHBHA-ZT—RXFHRA=T
agreed to contribute GBP340,000 per annum increasing at 4% —HZEE  REBRERZ

on each 1 July from 1 July 2018 into the plan. In addition, the
Scottish Limited Partnership for the plan has been arranged such
that the plan will receive an income stream of GBP400,000 per
annum at 1 July 2018 increasing at 4% on each 1 July thereafter.
As at 30 June 2021, the duration of the plan liability is 15 years
(2020: 15 years).

T-NFtA—B REEAtA
— B A% & #1 )% & 340,000 % £ -
FELMI% - BN B3 Z a8
THBRERBARLE  S%iTdlA
—E-N\F+tA—BAREKBZE
&+ A — B Y B1400,000 & £ Z Uk
AN BFEEMI% - R_F = —F
NAZTH ZAEEC2FHA
THFE(ZZEZZF:+HF) -
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

EBAREBEREE @

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b)

E R A EE )

202

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the defined

REEBHNE

KRt REEER

/|

REMEAKSERTHRIAZELE

benefit pension plans are as follows: mR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Scheme administrative costs FT 1T BB A (1,950) (1,200)
Past service costs B 1 AR 75 A AN - (8,603)
Net interest (expense)/income ME () WA FRE (81) 527
Components of defined benefit costs RERER TR
recognised in profit or loss (included in BRI $ HEKE D
general and administrative expenses) GtA—BETERZH) (2,031) (9,276)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit EFFECERNAEFHE
liability:
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts SFEIEEZRR(TREDEE
included in net interest expense) AF BRI FHE2ELH) 23,040 25,409
Actuarial losses arising from changes in ANAREBEESEE
demographic assumptions BEEE (2,620) (3,482)
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from VEBREREHTEELAZIRE
changes in financial assumptions Wz (E518) 5,504 (41,269)
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from KBRAEMEEZEER
experience adjustments Wz, (&18) 11,088 (1,580)
Components of defined benefit costs REMZERA (LX) #ER
recognised in other comprehensive income/ 2 5F 8 48 H| 5K 2N 48 5K & 5
(expense) 37,012 (20,922)
Total BEE 34,981 (30,198)
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the Groups obligations in respect of its
defined benefit pension plans is as follows:

33. R K& R & & )

(b) EEFEAGFE @

ZNE SIS SR R F AR N [P
EMELZERMOFAREGMNHK
MR - BT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Fair value of scheme assets HEEEZ ARLEBE 423,163 370,313

Present value of funded obligations EBoAEZRE (439,181) (421,053)
Net liability arising from defined benefit FHEBMEAEmRES Y

obligation BEFHE (16,018) (50,740)

The Group expects contribution of GBP354,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,796,000) will be made (2020: GBP367,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,518,000)) to the defined benefit plans during the next
financial year.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
are as follows:

AEEBEABRT—HERFEER
JE %8 18 M &1 &) #f 5 354,000 %K £
(FZE 73,796,008 T) (ZE-F
% : 367,000 # #5 (48 % 743,518,000
EIL)) e

EEBMAEZREZHOT :

2021 2020
—E- —EZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHT
Opening defined benefit obligation F Y] F BB AR B A E 421,053 386,122
Currency realignment & 5% 48,215 (13,907)
Past service costs 81T AR 7% B AN - 8,603
Interest cost B R 6,519 8,564
Remeasurement losses: BN EEE:
Actuarial losses arising from changes in AARZEHAEEZ
demographic assumption BEEE 2,620 3,482
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from BHBREOMEEZRE
changes in financial assumptions (=) &8 (5,504) 41,269
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from KERAEMELECZRE
experience adjustments (W) w8 (11,088) 1,580
Benefits paid BT 1+ 4@ Fl (22,634) (14,660)
Closing defined benefit obligation FRETERBNAE 439,181 421,053

BEMNKEEERAE

—==—55% 203



SETBHRRHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%;XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

RAKE R G B

EBEERANE @
HUBEZARBEZBNT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FHET
Opening fair value of plan assets FNABEEZAAE 370,313 360,821
Currency realignment E 5 A 44,361 (12,591)
Interest income FEWA 6,438 9,091
Scheme administrative costs sHEITTEA R (1,950) (1,200)
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts HEEEZOR(TBED
included in net interest expense) AANBRZ FEzERE) 23,040 25,409
Contribution by employer e 3,595 3,443
Benefits paid i 1+ 1& 1 (22,634) (14,660)
Closing fair value of plan assets FRHTEEEZNS 423,163 370,313

The fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period is
analysed as follows:

HEABERBMEHEER AR
BEITWOT :

Fair value of plan assets

TEEEZAREERE
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E_ZEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEx FHET
Equity instruments (Quoted) T EGRE) 275,893 240,469
Debt instruments (Quoted) BT A GRE) 138,531 112,656
Other assets (Note) Hth & E (M eE) 8,739 17,188
423,163 370,313

The actual return on scheme assets was HK$27,528,000 (2020:
HK$33,300,000).

Note:

The balance mainly represent the cash and cash equivalents.
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

iR K48 A 5T &

E RN 8
EERTECZEABEBRRE

(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the

defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.

If the discount rate is 25 basis points higher/(lower), the defined
benefit obligations would decrease by HK$15,944,000/(increase
by HK$15,944,000) (2020: decrease by HK$16,028,000/(increase
by HK$16,028,000)).

If the expected salary growth increases/(decreases) by 0.25%,
the defined benefit obligations would increase by HK$7,934,000/
(decrease by HK$7,934,000) (2020: increase by HK$8,254,000/
(decrease by HK$8,254,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions
may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating
the defined benefit obligations liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

MRENEHFCER- LA"F@SU@?
EOMBRERRSATERSR
RHBRAEAEEHMEMRR
R TR mEE -

fHALIR R £ /(TN 25 1@ Z 2
TE 28 18 T & 1 #5382 15,944,000 %8
7T /(1% $115,944,0005% 7T ) ( = =
— T F 416,028,000 T (1
Hn16,028,00078 7T)) °

mEEFLERER (T %)
0.25% ' & R f& F & £ 4% & i

7,934,000 Jt (% 4 7,934,000 7%

L) (ZZEZZF : #508,254,000/8
7T/ (O 48,254,000 7T) ) ©

MRBAOREFTREELEREE - 8—
?%_ME“““@UTKTEE BHEE
EINHBREST T —EERRE
%E?E%UEEZE\,T\“@J

BESN - R 2 FIIA EBURE S TR
E%”E%mﬂaﬁziﬁfﬁﬁhtﬁiﬁsﬁ%
R BEUERETE  HE
ﬁHE@ﬁﬁ%maﬂﬁﬁ%Hﬁ(ﬁi‘%WﬁEm\
ZEBRRNEEZIEMER -

BHEBEFEZLHRED
RZITERBERBELS -

B BT
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With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has also joined a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in
the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except for
voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution under the MPF
Scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

For the retirement benefits of the Groups qualifying employees in
the PRC, the Group has participated in the retirement benefits
scheme operated by the local municipal government of
Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme to fund the
benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of services in accordance with the relevant
government regulations. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the scheme. Contributions to the scheme are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the scheme. No forfeited contribution under PRC
retirement benefit scheme is available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years.

For the retirement benefits of the Groups qualifying employees in
the UK, the Group has participated in the retirement benefits
scheme operated by the global human resource benefits and
human resource consulting firm authorised and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority. The employees are entitled to post
retirement cash commutation. Details of the scheme are set out
in note 3 and note 36(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
No forfeited contribution under UK retirement benefit Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

BE-ZEETZTFE+-F—HE A&
ENREAEEERERE S oAt
RESHE((BBELTE]) - BB
e EERERBIEAE S E
TR mEsIERAEETEEER
At REEFECEERAB LT
ARSI ZESREE BAKEEY
BESHARE -REAZRBESTE
EXRHEEESERMAAUTAZ
hEmAESEED MK - AE
EEMsEeitslio—&EHA
EL R EEL 2 30 - Br B R 5K
Sh o BEE A ARTES AT E 2o W
RAIAUIRARRFEERIEL 2

K e

ERAEBEFTBEZAERER
ZERRBHMOE AKECD 20 H
RN T7 T & 2 R AR AR A
A8l NREBAREBBREEFMAX
AZEEBDLLAFTEHK U5
BARHES REBEBRTR
- REAIFHIREKE ZERFH
& MIRBFEMFEZRKEN A
SEEHZAE B ERR
BELFBREEL ZHK - MK
ArEEH 2 HRERNIR B %A E
ZRAEMNE  EHRABRREMD
EEUE KA - BELE T E
ZARARARE N 8 2 08 W ST A
PAFOR AR SR AR AR 2 K o

ERAEBERBZAERER
ZERARBEMNOE AEECZ2A
RESRTREEREERER
ZERANERBHNRANER
AR EERZRKERNEE - B
BERZBRREEATHL - BH
AENFBRNEGS M B RERM
FE3 N Y 5E36(a) o L E A R 2
RAK AR A ET 8 208 WA SRR A A
R R R F R A Z 3R



e B RRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF = —%XxA=+H FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 33. RIKE Rt & )
(Continued)
(c) Forfeited contributions (Continued) (c) 2 WMt @
At 30 June 2021 and 2020, there were no significant forfeited RZEBEZ—FR_ZZBE_ZFLA
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes =+H" $EHE ARENEREEE
before they are fully vested in the contributions and which are BriRtazEstamel el A
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in the UMmAERZ RKREMETZ
future. BB -
34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34. R EBL 18
At 30 June 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately R-ZZE-Z—FXA=1+H AEEAX
HK$779,783,000 (2020: HK$729,256,000) available for offset against B > B IE 5 18 49779,783,0000% 7T (=
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the T~ T4 729,256,000/8 7T) A A 1EIK
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses may be MHEZHM AR REETESTRE 2%
carried forward indefinitely. R 2R - &I 4= RE SRR A FR IR ﬁ B oIt
EHIEEEER AR S
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE
Fair value change of
investment properties
REWMEZ
AREEEE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 July 2019 R-ZT—hE+A—H 9,545
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss B IBR AER (901)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 RZZ_ZFXRA=1THRK
—E-TFELH—H 8,644
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss RIER ER B E T NR 972
At 30 June 2021 RZE-_—FA=1+H 9,616
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 35. R A K f# &

(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Groups consolidated equity is set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out in

(a)

Bafo 285

AEERERARES B ZF
NMEFREHBZEHEINREE
BAEREEHRAN - AABRAZ
18 B 262 A F 9] & F R EE B
BEAMTEE42 ©

note 42.
(b) Share capital (b) B
Number of
shares Amount
R EE -]
‘000 HK$’'000
TR T
Authorised share capital with par value of  FIREE0AB T (ZTE T4 :
HK$0.1 (2020: HK$0.1) each: 018 TT) ZEERA
Balance at 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, RZZE—hFELA—H8"
1 July 2020 and 30 June 2021 —E-FTFXA=+A8H"
—EZEFELA—BR
TR —FRA=THZ&EH 1,500,000 150,000
Number of Share Share Capital
shares capital premium reserve Total
BRHEE R A& I 15 % 8 R A B
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix FTET FET FHT FET
Issued and fully paid share capital FREEABETZ
with par value of HK$0.1 each: BETRERRA
Balance at 1 July 2019, RZZE-AEtA—H"
30 June 2020, 1 July 2020 and ZEZTFR A=1H"
30 June 2021 —E-ZEFtA-BR
—E-—%XA=ZtHZ
=33 683,831 68,383 2,221,869 846,860 3,137,112
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U

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Share premium
The application of share premium account is governed by
section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the amount by
which the Company issued share capital was diminished
on cancellation of ordinary share repurchased.

General reserve

The general reserve represents the reserve arising from the
reduction of the nominal amount of the shares of the
Company (after the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each into 1 share in 2002) of HK$2.5
each by cancelling the paid up capital to the extent of
HK$2.4 on each share of the Company in 2002.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount arising from (a)
a bonus issue of shares of a subsidiary of the Company by
way of capitalising the subsidiary’s retained profits and
deemed capital contribution from a substantial shareholder
and (b) the reduction of the nominal amount of the shares
of the Company (after the consolidation of shares of 20
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each into 1 share in 2017) of
HK$2 each by cancelling the paid up capital to the extent
of HK$1.9 on each share of the Company in 2017.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the
group reorganisation in 1992.

@i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

BEMREEERLF

B 5= E

B aBRsERAXARE
— N\ — F QA A F40K
RE o

BEAXEOFE

BEABOFERETHE DB
EBBRMmIBMARAC #

TRARDZ 2 -

— M fek
~REBEARAR-EE
~F 25 REEO BT
ZE RS G R 1T R
Atk RZBBZFY
RHEMBRAS R RER
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2577 2 R EETEEZ
G -

RN R
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bz ARETOARKLE —EE
BERZERENEE) Rb)
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

(vi) Property revaluation reserve
Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising
from valuation of properties under property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment properties.

(vii) Translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 3.

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Each of the Company and Kantone, a 59.04% (2020: 59.04%) owned
subsidiary of the Company, has a share option scheme under which
eligible persons, including directors of the Company, Kantone or any of
their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares in the Company and Kantone respectively.

(@) The Company

210

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
Champion Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of the Group. Under
the Champion Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to any directors, employees or consultants of
the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid persons
or a company beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as
well as customers, suppliers or advisors of the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. An option granted by the
Company is exercisable at any time for a period determined by
its directors which should not be more than ten years from the
date of grant, where the acceptance date should not be later
than 21 days after the date of offer.
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The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option granted under the Champion Option
Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; and (i) the average closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which the options
may be granted under the Champion Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of Champion at the date
of approval of the Champion Option Scheme. The total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of Champion from time to time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any one
grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of Champion in issue on the last date of such
12-month period, without prior approval from Champions
shareholders. The Champion Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing from 30 November 2012.
No share option has been granted since the adoption of such
scheme.

On 30 November 2012, Kantone adopted a share option scheme
(the “Kantone Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Kantone
Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel and
other persons and to provide them with incentive to contribute to
the business and operation of the Kantone Group. Under the
Kantone Option Scheme, the directors of Kantone may grant
options to any eligible persons of the Kantone Group, including
directors, employees or consultants of Kantone, its subsidiaries
or affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include the aforesaid persons or a company beneficially owned
by the aforesaid persons as well as customers, suppliers or
advisors of the Kantone Group, to subscribe for shares in
Kantone. An option granted by Kantone is exercisable at any
time for a period determined by its directors which should not be
more than ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days after the date
of offer.
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The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option granted under the Kantone Option Scheme
is equal to the highest of () the nominal value of the shares; (i)
the closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be granted under
the Kantone Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of Kantone at the date of approval of the Kantone
Option Scheme. The total maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of Kantone from time to
time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of Kantone in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period, without prior approval from
Kantones shareholders. The Kantone Option Scheme will remain
in force for a period of 10 years commencing from 30 November
2012. No share option has been granted since the adoption of
such scheme.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Groups overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of other borrowings, equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a bi-
annual basis. As part of this review, directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38.EXEH

As at 30 June 2021, the Group pledged certain investment properties
with aggregate carrying values of approximately HK$44,851,000 (2020:
Nil) as collateral in respect of its interest bearing other borrowing
(note 31).

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group’s UK subsidiary
with aggregate carrying amounts of HK$11,011,000 (2020:
HK$9,846,000) have been pledged as collaterals as at 30 June 2021,
for the defined benefit retirement scheme of certain subsidiaries
operated in UK.

RZEZ—FNA=1+H0 AEEHRE
AR EMERERETEERELNR
44,851,000 L (ZE T F : |)WKE
MEAVERIIR G (FFFES1) ©

RZB-—FXNA=1+H "EEXH
FRARZHEIRMEAEA11,011,000%8 7T (=
T4 19,846,000/ TT) 2B T -
V%& SEDHERIEARNEREER

AT M B A R A T 28R R R R AT 81 /) 3K
B e

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS REHERY
The Group as lessor rEBEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted with lessees in RS BN NEBEEAR AR
respect of leasing of premises and certain equipment which is included }% CHE D BEAERTBRIENMENE
in plant and machinery and communications networks, which fall due BEOHREST AR BBHBEHOT
as follows:
2020
—E-—fF —TE T
Plant and Plant and

machinery and
Land and communications

machinery and
Land and communications

buildings networks buildings networks

= = Y

T REF RBERAKZ THERETF RiBlERES

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FER FAT FAET

Within one year —F R - 4,229 112 5,001
In the second to fifth year E-_FERERF

inclusive (BHEEEME) - 4,214 — 4179

- 8,443 112 9,180

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has service and equipment rental NR-_ZTE-—FXAB=+H K&EH

contract with customers amounting to HK$36,187,000 (30 June 2020:

EREFITURBEEXEHEES D

HK$37,010,000). As at 30 June 2021, the future income to be 36,187,000 T (ZE—_ZEF XA =+
generated from these contracts with an aggregate amount of B : 37,010,000 70) e R - T = —F X
HK$43,379,000 (30 June 2020: HK$32,353,000) have been pledged B=1H #%E640BFEENREKI
as securities for the defined benefit retirement scheme of certain A #8%E43,379,000/8 T (ZE T FE ;XA

subsidiaries operated in UK.

BEMNKEEERAE

=+ H : 32,353,000/ 7T) © % & #H - LA
ERARBEZENHETHBARNTEE
BHRRIRET 8 o
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 0.AEANLRS

@

(i

214

The key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including the directors of the Company and the five highest paid
individuals. Key management personnel remuneration are as
follows:

)

HREEABREBRIEEL
s & EEMERAREET
BHBUMNAE  BEARESH
FEERHAB - FTEEBEAEH
B a0 T -

2021 2020

—EBE-—-F —ZEZEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMER 12,504 12,608
Performance related incentive payments BIERRBEHN 2 ES 1,374 1,668
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAEFI T 8 209 160
14,087 14,431

On 12 June 2017, regarding the loan borrowed by the Company
amounting to HK$305,000,000 (note 31), Mr. Cheng Yang who
was the former director and substantial shareholder of the
Company agreed to provide a personal guarantee. Mr. Cheng
Yang had resigned as director of the Company on 15 August
2017 and disposed shares of 1,766,860,957 of the Company on
17 August 2018. On 10 October 2017, Ms. Wong Man Winny (Ms.
Wong), a substantial shareholder and director of the Company,
provided a personal guarantee for the loan. On 5 July 2018, the
lender discharged and released Mr. Cheng Yang from his
obligations and liabilities under the guarantee. During the year
ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, Ms. Wong continued to provide
a personal guarantee regarding the abovementioned loan
borrowed by the Company. The provision of guarantee by Mr.
Cheng and Ms. Wong under the facility agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Main Board Listing Rules. However, this transaction is fully
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Main Board Listing Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security over the assets of the
Company was granted in respect of such financial assistance.
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(i)
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(i)

(v)

On 7 December 2017, the Group (as the borrower) and Ms.
Wong (as the lender), a substantial shareholder and director of
the Company had entered into a facility agreement pursuant to
which Ms. Wong agreed to lend to the Group up to
HK$4,180,000 in aggregate principle amount which was
unsecured, non-interest bearing and had no fixed term of
repayment and was repayable on demand (note 30). During the
year ended 30 June 2020, the Group had settled HK$2,000,000
to Ms. Wong. As at 30 June 2021, the outstanding balance due
to Ms. Wong was HK$2,180,000. The transaction contemplated
under the facility agreement constituted continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Main Board Listing
Rules. However, this transaction is fully exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listings Rules as the transaction was on normal commercial
terms or better and no security over the assets of the Company
was granted in respect of such financial assistance.

On 19 July 2017, the Group (as the borrower) and Mr. Law Shing
Hung (“Mr. Law”) (as the lender), a director of a subsidiary, had
entered into a facility agreement pursuant to which Mr. Law
agreed to lend to the Group up to HK$1,441,000 in aggregate
principle amount which was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
had no fixed term of repayment and was repayable on demand.
As at 30 June 2021, the balance was included in other payables
amounted to HK$1,441,000 (2020: HK$1,441,000). The
transaction contemplated under the facility agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Main Board Listing Rules. However, this transaction is fully
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Main Board Listings Rules as the transaction was on normal
commiercial terms or better and no security over the assets of the
Company was granted in respect of such financial assistance.

(i)

(iv)

BEMREEERLF
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(v  On 19 July 2017, the Group issued promissory note with
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 in connection with the
acquisition of assets and liabilities through the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Upon the completion of the acquisition of
subsidiaries, the holder of the promissory note is a majority-
controlled company held by Mr. Yeung Chi Hang, a director of a
subsidiary. For the details of the promissory note, please refer to
the note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. The
transaction contemplated under the promissory note constituted
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Main Board Listing Rules. However, this transaction is fully
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Main Board Listings Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security over the assets of the
Company was granted in respect of such financial assistance.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments and investment properties measured as at 30 June 2021
and 2020 on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date such as listed stocks, bonds, funds
or any assets that have a regular mark to market mechanism for setting
a fair market value.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Level 2 assets are financial assets that do not
have regular market pricing, but whose fair value can be determined
based on other data values or market prices. For example, valuers
adopt valuation model for assessing the market value of the properties,
such as comparing with similar assets surrounding the properties,
hence, the fair values are quoted prices for similar assets and not for
identical assets.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable
inputs.
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) M. AAREEFTEm

Assets measured at fair value ZANREBEEFEZEE

Fair value Level 1 Level 3
AREE F-EBEHR F=ZER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHERT FET

As at 30 June 2021 R-ZEBE-_—FXA=+H
Assets EBE
Investment properties "EME 50,022 — 50,022
Financial assets at FVTPL BEArhBEFAEBGZEREE
— listed equity securities — FTRAES 41,893 41,893 -
— unlisted equity securities —EETMRAES - - -
Fair value Level 1 Level 3
AREE F-EH FZER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT FHET
As at 30 June 2020 RZEZZEFA=+AH
Assets EBE
Investment properties "EWE 44,210 — 44,210
Investment property included in assets RN EABELE Y
classified as held for sale BENREME 10,091 — 10,091
Financial assets at FVTPL EBEAhBEFAEBGZEREE
— listed equity securities — F R AE S 67,686 67,686 —
— unlisted equity securities — I EMRAES 975 — 975
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 1. » REETEw

BEAREBEEFEZEE@

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair FRNZEFZEBRALBEFEZ &
value measurements are as follows: ZEBEY T
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Investment properties including those KEMENEWNEDFEAFIE
classified as held for sales HEZEENREWE
At 1 July Rt A—H 54,301 218,418
Currency realignment PE 53 2 3,542 (145)
Fair value adjustment on investment properties &YW AR EBEFEE 2,270 (8,322)
Disposals EEME WEREBLE (10,091) (155,650)
At 30 June RANA=+H 50,022 54,301
2021 2020
—E- -5 —E-EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHET
Unlisted equity securities JEETRAE S
At 1 July n+HA—H 975 1,965
Fair value loss on financial assets at BARBEFABRZEREE
fair value through profit or loss NRBERE (975) (990)
At 30 June RANA=1+H - 975
218 ChampionTechnology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

Currency realignment is recognised in other comprehensive income in
exchange reserve.

All the gains or loss recognised in profit or loss for the year arise from
the properties and listed equity securities held during the reporting
period.

There were no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during both years.

The fair value of all investment properties located in PRC (excluded the
leasehold land where the hotel property erected) (see note 17) were
derived using the market comparable approach based on price per
square feet or square metre observed in recent market prices and
adjusted for certain unobservable inputs including the adjustment of the
building age, location, fair value market rent and floor level to reflect
different locations and conditions. The fair value of the leasehold land
where the hotel property erected was derived using adjusted market
comparable approach by (a) making reference to comparable sales of
bare-land with lease term of 40 years; (b) adjusted for the term factor
using the valuation technique to estimate value of bare-land with lease
term of 10 years (2020: 10 years) at 2033; and (c) take into account the
time value of money.

As at 30 June 2021, the fair value of unlisted equity securities at FVTPL
amounting to HK$nil (2020: HK$975,000) is assessed by the
management of the Group by using income approach with discounted
cash flow method (2020: market approach with allocation method).

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) M. AAEBEETEw

PE 4 AR B 0 Ho At 2 W R 2 51 BE R £
FHER

A 45 [ R 36 R VA T R4 AR
kAR BE BB ER E MR
AES o

KRREFEN F—EBER F_EAK
E-ERzBLEmEE-

ERURPERZEENE(TIBEREE
MERBYL2EE L) (RBT17) 2
AREBEDIRENIHTERRMAEZ
BEFHRHEF T RKERRATIZLEX
BhH YRETIAEEBAZE &
w0 ArREBEETSEERE
Bz ARMmELTE  ARKRTEMDE
Rk BEMEMBL 2 EE T2
AABEDEAEABRTSLEEES
@Z2RHEHR/IOFNEMA AL HE
BO)FEBEERMRFRERELA
EUGBAR_ZE==FHH/I0FN=E
WEE(ZZE_ZF:10F) : ROt
REEHBBHEEMSSE -

BE_Z-_ZFXNA=1TH U2AE
BFfERHEHRAEHBENIFLD
BABLBRBARTAETL(ZT_FTF:
975,000/ 7T) - A AN B EIEE £ AWK
BEMRERTRE(CE_ZF - H5%
TERDBEETRM)
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) M. RAAEBEEFEmw

e
Assets measured at fair value (Continued) BRAARBEISAEZEE@
Investment properties/
financial assets Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group Valuation techniques & key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TUBEGAYEHE
FEERFANREVE MHERNRIEGAHE BEAFTAHEERAEE ARBEEZBRE
Investment properties Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market A slight increase in the price per
located in the PRC BEELEX direct comparable and taking into square metre will increase
(excluded the leasehold account the location and other significantly with fair value
land where hotel The key input is price per square metre  individual factors such as age of the & F F K BIREM - FHi#5%
property erected) TEQABBEAT L RER property, which is ranged from AR BEKEEM
R FPENEEDE HK$17,900 (equivalent to
(MefEBEDER RMB14,900) to HK$31,700
B ZHETH) (equivalent to RMB26,400) (2020:

HK$15,907 (equivalent to
RMB14,500) to HK$28,522
(equivalent to RMB26,000)).

FAMGIEELRYEL R
b B DA e M A2 B 5 H b {E B
AEHERBEZETHKEREN
F17,900 BT (BERARE
14,9007T) 31,700 78 7t (HHE R
AR#E26,4007T) (Z 2 =25 :
15,907 7% 7t (%5 A R # 14,500
T0)E 28,522 B (IHER AR
26,000 70)) °
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

Investment properties/
financial assets
held by the Group Valuation techniques & key inputs

AEERENRENE HERMRIERABE

41. A R EBEFTEw

BRAREBEFTEZCEE @

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUBEGAHE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABRBAYESR
DMRAEBEEZRR

Investment property Adjusted market comparable method

included the leasehold ERABRTS LB A
land where the hotel
property erected and
located in the PRC

REMERBEBED %
&y BMRFPEAN
HE L

The key input in price per square metre
FTEHAHBREBTHKRER

Unlisted equity securities

FLMBRAKE

Income approach with discounted
cash flow method (2020: market
approach with allocation method)

WRERReRTBE(ZEZT
F:mHFERDEE)

Price per square metre, using adjusted
market comparable approach by a)
making reference to comparable
sales of bare land with lease term of
40 years; b) adjusted for the term
factor using the valuation technique
to estimate value of bare land with
lease term of 10 years (2020: 10
years) as at 2033; and c) take into
account the time value of money at
discount rate of 6% (2020: 6%) from
2033 to 30 June 2021, which is
approximately HK$430 (equivalent
to RMB350) (2020: HK$320
(equivalent to RMB290)).

FAEABTSLEE S Ba) LR
HERIOFNEMOEE b)&F
REERTRFRERELAE
DR ZZE==FRHAE10
FREWEBE(CT-ZTF 10
F) o Ro) Bt ke BMERHE
EB-Z==FFZ_T_—-FRX
A=+ HRUEREE%(ZE_F
F 6% it EBHZBTHKRE
1B4)430 8 T (SR AR 350
T(ZEZTF : 41320 % 7t (H
ZRARB2907T))

N/A (2020: expected volatility of equity
value)

TER(CE-TF  AYEREE
(K E)

BEMNKEEERAE

A slight increase in the price
square metre will increase
significantly with fair value

BEFIAREBREMLEABS
DR BEKREZM

N/A (2020: an increase in the
volatility of equity value will
increase fair value)

TEA(CE-ZF - #%EE
BN ML IR A B
(=)
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. & D T B 4R R &

OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RIBRE 2 = 82,572 146,627
Current assets REEE
Other receivables JiE s L Ath BR 3R 784 473
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBEFABRZZ
profit or loss EREE 31,131 50,533
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL T B A Al I8 25,297 43,035
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEFR 1,680 2,874
58,892 96,915
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A REMS H MR 7,487 6,864
Amounts due to shareholders JES R R 518 20 20
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGRS 184,314 150,568
Promissory note payable FEA A R R - 40,557
Interest bearing other borrowing AREMEER
— amount due within one year —R—F KRNI - 10,000
191,821 208,009
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (132,929) (111,094
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Promissory note payable FE O R E 38,306 —
Interest bearing other borrowing FEEMEER
— amount due after one year — RN —F 12| H 185,000 200,000
223,306 200,000
Net liabilities EEFE (273,663) (164,467)
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital % A< 68,383 68,383
Deficit (note) &5 18 (P 31) (342,046) (232,850)
Total deficit BRAE (273,663) (164,467)

KRR ZHBERRARERZZE=_—F 1
AZ+ N \NBHESSHEREETE
W THESRESES:

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 September 2021
and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG MAN WINNY LIU KA LIM
=2H BEER
Chairperson Director
FE BFE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. & A T) Bf # AR R &R &)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the prior years e : ARAFARNAEERBTEEE 2 EEEE
are as follows: m
Capital
Share redemption General Capital Accumulated

premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
=&

RHEE WEREE —REE BELHE B i &ast

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 July 2019 RZT—hhFEA—AH 2,221,869 50 1,366,008 829,771 (4,629,451)  (211,758)

Loss and total comprehensive A4 EEE R 2 E < H

expense for the year Rt - — — — (21,092)  (21,092)
At 30 June 2020 and NZTE=ZFFA=1H
1 July 2020 R-E-THLH—H 2221869 50 1,366,003 829,771  (4,650,543) (232,850)

Loss and total comprehensive 7&K E 518 K 2 E < H
expense for the year k) — — — — (109,196)  (109,196)

At 30 June 2021 R-Z-—FXA=+8 2221869 50 1,366,008 829,771  (4,759,739) (342,046)
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. MBATBE
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2021 and 2020 are NZEZ—FR_E-_ZFTEFA=+
as follows: A ARBEHMBRARZFBNT
Nominal value of
issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WEAR R EMAL/EEw% ERTRARE/ZMES/E5RE ARARLCRARAEERS ITEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f ZZ-%E CZBZ-§  -ZCZE
100BESTSHOPS.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-shopping and
BB EER2ET EER2ET internet-based activities
REEREFENREHAEN
MR %
Alied Joy (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ER(ER)ERRA £ EER1ETR EBRIEL REER
Ample Splendid Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERRRERAA ABEBREE EERI0ER  ZBERI00ET REER
Aspire Management Limited BVI Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
LEEARES US$2,636,320 US$2,636,320 REER
EER TRk
2,636,320 % 7T 2,636,320% T
Big Charm Holdings Limited* BVI Ordinary US$10,000 Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
SEBRERRE" EEEARES BBER10,000FT EBR10,000%T REER
Bingo Profits Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
AEEBRES EER1ZT ERRIER REER
Bliss Ease Limited* BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEBRRAG" EEEARES EER50,000% 7w EiER50,000% T REER
Bright Creation Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Trading of cultural and other
REBEEERAT BE EER10,0008 T EiEKE10000ETT products
YEREMERES
Champion (Cook Islands) Limited* Cook Islands Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERHE EER1ER ERRIEL REER
Champion Culture Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEXEEERRRA Bk EER10000 T EEKR10000ETT REER
Champion Energy Logistics Co Limited BV - Ordinary US$100 - 100%  Investment holding & shipping
BEERNRBERAE LEEARES BERI0ER  EEMRI0EL business
REBBRRMERT
Champion Energy Resources Co Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BERRERERLRA AEEBRES BERI0ER  TBRI00ET REER
Champion Energy Trading Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Trading (Gasoi)
Company Limited ik EER1AR ERR1IET 25 (Hmk)
BEEREFERLA
Champion Luck International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
RERRBRAA B LER2ER LRkoAET NERE
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. [ B A B B E )

Nominal value of

issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WELRER EMAL/EEw% ERTRAEE/DZMES/E5RE ARARLCRORAEERS ITEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
-B--% 2% ZBZ-§  C_Z_%ZF
Champion Million Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
HEEXERAA BB LER2ER L@R2AET NERE
Champion Pacific Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BITREBERAA i EER2E L@RAT NERE
Champion Solana Energy Group Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 60% 60% Inactive
BEAGHEEERAT i EER100008 T EEK10000ET LEXHK
Chempion Sports Development Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1,000  Ordinary US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEREERERLA ABEBREE BER1000%T  EBR1000%T REER
Champion Renewable Energy Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Design and sales of renewable
Engineering Company Limited ¥ EER10,0008 8 LiEAR10,000ET energy products and solutions
BEREREIRERAA ABERRERNBALRE
RiHHE
Champion Renewable Energy Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Design and sales of renewable
Company Limited 0 EER100008 T LBAE10,000% T energy products and solutions
BEBLRRERAHA BRERRERNBRAL RN
Rithge
Champnet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Inactive
BEREERAT BE LER2AR LER2AT TEEH
Chosen Vantage Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
EETES EER1ZR EBRIET TEEHR
Cosmic Ocean Global Limited" BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
LRRIRERAR" EREBRES EER50,000% 7w % i#k50000% T RERR
Cutture Landmark Authentication Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Inactive
And Valuation Centre (HK) Limted &8 EER10,0008 T EiEAE10,000% T EREY
X REER L (FE) BRAR
Culture Landmark Investment BVI Ordinary US$1,000  Ordinary US$1,000 - 59.04%  Inactive
Limited (note v) RELARES EER1,000Ex  L@1000%TT TmEf
W EREERARF (M)
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
BEGES EER1ZETR EERIET TEXY
Diamond Edge Enterprises Limited* BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US§50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRRXBERAR" EREBRES EER50,000% EHR50,000% T REBRR
d-Key Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
BE LER1BR EBRIAT TEEHR
d-Key Inc. Samoa Ordinary USS Ordinary US$ 100% 100%  Inactive
BEGES EER1ZET EERIEL TEEH
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. i B A B B E )

Nominal value of

226

issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WEAR R EMAL/EEw% ERTRARE/ZMES/E5RE ARARGCRARAEENRS ITEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f Z“Z-%E CZBZ-§  -ZCZE
Dongguan Golden Field Yijing PRC Registered capital  Registered capital 48.5% 48.5%  Leasing of property
Hotel Limited (note if i RMB21,500,000  RMB21,500,000 BENE
REMEHERERE ZMEAARY HMELARE
BRAF (FrE) 21,500,000 7T 21,500,0007C
ESP Intenational Group Limited ESP Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Advertising and recruitment
ESPEIREEREERA 5% ERR2ET LER2ET agency
EERABRERA
Eternal Huge Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100  Ordinary HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
KERRERAT Bk EERI10ET  EEMRI0ET REBRR
Financial Vantage Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
EETES EERIER LRR1ER TExk
Gleaming Developments Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
KRERBRAF ABEBREE EER50,000% 7 50,0005 T REER
Happy Commercial Company Limited Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of documentation
EXERDA ®F MOP25,000 MOP25,000 services and arrangement and
ERRAMY LRRAFIE business consultant
25,0007 25,0007 REXHBRRBEAZER
AEEMA
Harlela Kantone Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 55.0% 55.0%  Inactive
Telecommunications Limited b EER100008 T LBEAHE10,000% T LEXH
High Win Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding and strategic
ABEARES EERIZR EBRIET investment
REBRRKXRURE
Hero King Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Property investment
BEUERERAT ABRBRES EERI00ZR  EBRI00ET nERE
Honest City Enterprises Limited* BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RACKBERA ABEBRES EBR50,000% T EBR50,000% T REBRR
Hong Kong T Alliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Inactive
EEEMMBHEERAT B0 EER2ER LEkAET TEEH
Golden Field Property Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 51% 51%  Investment holding
MEEBERRRA i HK$10,000,000  HK$10,000,000 REER
EER ERER
10,000,000% 7T 10,000,000 7T
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. [ B A B B E )

Nominal value of

issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WELRER HMARYL/EES BRORAEE/HMEL/EARE AQABLCRARAEMELRS FTEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f ZZ-%E CZBZ-§  C-ZCZE
i-key (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
i EER1BR ERRIAT R
i-key Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
BEGHS EER1ZTR LRRIER UEEH
Infopage Limited UK Ordinary £1,000 Ordinary £1,000 59.04% 59.04%  Dormant
%E BER1000%E LHR10005E BRIEER
Kannet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Inactive
ERBZBRAF i LER2E R ERR2AT TEEY
Kantone* Cayman Islands/ Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
E@ Hong Kong HK$21,703,850.6  HK$21,703,850.6 REER
MeRs/ gk EBR EER
21,703850.6 L 21,703,850.6/5 7T
Kantone Energy Trading Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
EREREFBRAT 0 EER10,0008 T E@KE10000% T RERR
Kantone Logistics Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
BERNMRERERAA BE EER1AR ERRIET REER
Kantone Paging Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 ~ Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%  Trading of pagers and provision of
ERPXETARAR 0 Deferred Deferred messaging services
HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 BEETRRREBERS
EBER10008  EEK1000ET
3133 BER
2,000,000 7T 2,000,000 7
Multitone (UK) Limited UK Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
& £6,500,000 £5,500,000 REER
EER LRk
5,500,000 & 5,500,000% 8
Keen Pacific Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
BEEGHS EER1ER LERRIER TEXK
Kontone Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
BRERARAT BB EER2E R ERR2AEL HEEY
Kontone International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRERERAT EiE LER2E T ERR2ET REZR
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited* Cook Islands Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERHE EER10000T EER10000ET REER
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value of

43. i B~ B A&

issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WEAR R EMAL/EEw% ERTRARE/ZMES/E5RE ARARGCRARAEENRS ITEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f Z“Z-%E CZBZ-§  -ZCZE
Luckiest Trading (Macao Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services,
Commercial) Limited 2 MOP100,000 MOP100,000 research and development,
ENES(RFEE)-ABBRAH Efbe skl LTRERRMAE and trading of cultural
100,000 100,000 products
REERRE HEREE
WREEX I Em
Luchy Edge Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Property investment
A ERERAT AEEBRES BERI0ER  TBRI0ET ESE
Lucky Global Group Limited* BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
VERREEERAA EEEARES EERI0ET  BERI0ET REER
Magic Elite Investments Limited* BVI Ordinary US$850,000 Ordinary US§50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
PEREBRAR" AEEARES EER50,000% 7 EiEK50,000% T REER
M.C. Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
i £5,500,002 £5,500,002 REER
EER LRk
550000258 5500002 %
Multitone Communications Limited UK Ordinary £100 Ordinary £100 59.04% 59.04%  Dormant
B EERI0KE  LEMRI0EE BEILER
Muttitone Communication Systems UK Ordinary £25,000  Ordinary £25,000 59.04% 59.04%  Dormant
Limited &H EER2B,000%HE EBR25,000% 5 ERILERE
Multitone General Partner Limited UK Ordinary £100 Ordinary £100 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
B EERI0KE  ZBRI005EE RERR
Multitone Rentals Limited UK Ordinary £100 Ordinary £100 59.04% 59.04%  Dormant
e EERI00KE  BEMRI0£E BEILEHK
Multitone Retirement Benefits Plan UK Ordinary £1 Ordinary £1 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
Trustee Limited -3 ERERIES ERRIAE REER
Marcotte Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEDHS EERIER EBRIET RERR
Muttitone Electronics PLC UK Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding, design and
L £3,830,107 £3,830,107 manufacture of communication
EBR Lak systems and equipment
383010758 38301075 REAR RAREEBER
SREE
Multitone Electronics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Manufacture of communication
SRAD MR285,000 MR285,000 systems and equipment
LER LER EEBERARR
2850005 RAEE 2850005 RE S
A+ A+
<A E4=]
Multiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Distribution of communication
= £1,022,584 £1,022,584 systems and equipment
EER LRk PERERRERER
1,022,584 % 4 1,022,584 5 4%
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. [ B A B B E )

Nominal value of

issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WELRER HMARYL/EES BRORAEE/HMEL/EARE AQABLCRARAEMELRS FTEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f ZZ-%E CZBZ-§  C-ZCZE
Muttitone Scottish Limited Partnership UK Capital Capital 59.04% 50.04%  Investment holding
i contribution contribution REER
£300 £300
EXRE EARE
300 & 3005 &
New Envirotech Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 Ordinary HK$20 100% 100%  Inactive
MEERAERAT iR EER20ER ERR0ET TEXY
New Telecomm Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Inactive
MEERERAT ) HK$6,000,000 HK$6,000,000 LEXHK
LER BBk
6,000,0007% T 6,000,000/ 7.
Paging Systems Limited UK Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
LG £1,100,100 £1,100,100 TEXK
LAR Ordinary
1,100,100%8  1100,100%4
Pearl Delta Inc. Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
BEGES/ RN EER1ZR LRR1ER TEEH
Power Favour Holdings Limited™ BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRERERAF ERARRES BERI0%ET  LEKI0ET REER
QQKK.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Inactive
o LER2E R ERRoAET TEXH
Roc Castle Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US§50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Be2RERAA EREBRES EER50,000% T % i@k50,000% T RERR
Shenzhen Hengyu Science and PRC Registered/ Registered/ 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited w capital capital REER
(noteii* RMB24,000,000  RMB24,000,000
BEMZ R ERAT (KT EMEAARY HMEXARE
24,000,000 24,000,000
Skill King Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
LRERERAT AREBREE EER50,000% T & i#R50000% T REER
Siiver Edge Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RHNERERAT ABEBREE EER50,000% T & EM50,000% T REZK
Sky Sign Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
REERERAT ABARRES EER50,000% 7 & EM50,000% T REZR
Silverstrand Investments Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
BEGHS EER1ZET LRRIER REER
Solar Rise Enterprises Limited* BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
AGCEERAR" RBARRES EERI0ER  EBRI0ET REER
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. it B A 5] B E @)
Nominal value of
issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WEAR R HMARYL/BEwS BRORAEE/HMEL/EARE AQARLCRARAEELS TTEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f Z“Z-%E CZBZ-§  -ZCZE
Abundant Success Trading (Macao Macau Ordinary Ordinary 59.04% 59.04%  Provision of consulting services,
Commercial) Limited B MOP100,000 MOP100,000 research and development
KBS (RHEE) - AGRAR EER L@k and trading of cultural
AF%100000  RFI%100,000 products
RUBRRYE HERFAEN
Sure Beauty Investments Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US§50,000 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
EXRABRAA ABARREE EERUSS50,000 iR USS50,000 REER
Vast Success (Hong Kong) Finance Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Money lending
Company Linited o HK$100,000 HK$100,000 HEES
B (BB EERBERAT EBR EER
100,000 7 100,000 7T
Vast Acute Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Property investment
BAERBERAA AERBRESR EERI0ER  EEKI0ET nERE
Wollaston Limited Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Investment holding
EREBRES/RM EERIET LERIET REER
Y28.00M Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
HHEERAR 3 LER2ET ERRET m-commerce and internet
based activities
REEREFHE RIHE
REBANRE
Zonal Care Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary US$2 Ordinary US$2 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
Islands/Macau LER2ETR Lakoxn TEEN
RELBARES/ RN
Champion Telecommunication PRC Registered Registered 100% 100%  Sales of general system products
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (note i i capital capital and provision of services and
Sm @My ORI AR 2 A (Maki) HK$2,450,000 HK$2,450,000 software licensing
ZMEE HMER HE-REZRERRRERSK
2,450,000 Tt 2,450,0007% 70 REMRTE
Digital HongKong.com Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Telecommunication service and
HEERERAT 0 LER2ER ERROETL strategic investment
EMRBRERRE
Earnest Century Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
EETES EERIER ERR1ER R
Eight Converge Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
NEBRAF BEGHS EER1ZT RRiER TEEY
Golden Opportunity Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 59.04% 59.04%  Inactive
ERERRA BEGHS EER1ZETR LERIET TEEY
Manning International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Management service
YHERBERAT i EBER10,000% T EBR10,000E T EBRH%
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. it B A 5] B E )
Nominal value of
issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations Capital contribution held by the Company Principal activities
WELRER EMAL/EEw% ERTRAEE/DZMES/E5RE ARARLCRORAEERS ITEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f ZZ-%E CZBZ-§  C-ZCZE

Multitone (Asia) Smart Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Trading in telecommunication

Communication Technology HE EER1ET LTRERIAT system and products

Company Limited BHRZHRERE S
ATB@EMEEZRANBERAT
United Software Alliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Inactive
AHBEERAT BE LER2ETR ERR2ET TEXY
Y28 Innovations* Cayman Islands Ordinary HK$0.1 Ordinary HK$0.1 100% 100%  Investment holding

FERS LEROER  ERROVETL REER

Champion OTS Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 N/A 60% N/A Sales of general system products

(Incorporated on 27 July 2020) A LER 10,0008 T TR TER -RELERMHEE
BERRPAZHERDA ‘

(R=B=FFtA-+tBRY)

Champion Widex Solar Energy Intemational Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 N/A 60% N/A Inactive

Limited (Incorporated on 6 July 2020) &% LER10,0008 T TEH TER EREE
BEERABGEERERAR

(R=Z=THELARARY)

Art Lead International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
SERRERAR) &R EER1ETR ERRIAT TEXH
Notes: Bt 5 -
0] Partially foreign owned enterprise for a term from 1 July 2000 to 19 June 2050. 0] INEEELE FHHA-ZTTTFLA—

HE-ZRAZFATNB-

(ii) Wholly foreign owned enterprise for a term of 20 years commencing from 17 (ii) NEBELE FHA-ZT=F+A+
October 20083. tHEFZTF-

(iii) Wholly foreign owned enterprise for a term of 30 years commencing from 27 (i) INEHBELE  FHEAE—ANAEAZ
June 1995. THHRRF=TF-

(iv) The company had been struck off on 1 May 2021. (iv) ZAREBER-ZEZ—FRA—BHEH-

* Directly held by the Company * HARBIEERSE

# For identification purposes only # E R
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary, Kantone Paging Company Limited entitled the
holders thereof to:

(@  afixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for
any financial year of the company in question in respect of which
the net profits of such company exceed HK$100,000,000,000;
and

(b)  on a winding-up, a return of the capital paid up on such shares
out of the surplus assets of the company in question after a total
sum of HK$100,000,000,000 has been distributed in such
winding up in respect of each of the ordinary shares of such
company.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 30 June 2021 and 2020 or at any time during the year.
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. M B A~ 7] & E )
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEERFEZERBREEZZ
have material non-controlling interests ErEMB AT ZF1E
The table below provides details of a non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TRIEHEESERIFIERBEERS 2K
the Group that has material non-controlling interests: EEIFTEWNBRARZFHE

Proportion of
ownership interests and
voting rights held by Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Place of incorporation and non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests

Name of subsidiaries principal place of business as at 30 June for the year ended 30 June as at 30 June
RRA=tH HERA=THLEE
MR B R FERRRESEERE PWFFERRR RAB=+THE&FH
o) INETE=E TEEEBY BEREERREELH BE2EE FERRRER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

“E--f ZE-%F ZB--f —T-TF ZB--§5 —Z-%F

Kantone and its Cayman Islands/Hong Kong 41.0% 41.0% 2,330 1,378 44,099 21,636
subsidiaries HeHs /A%

BERRAME AT

Golden Field and its Hong Kong/PRC 49% 49% 554 423 26,988 23,812
subsidiaries &,/

M RANBAR

Individually immaterial (4) (@) (25) (29
subsidiaries with

non-controlling interest

B JF ¥ 5 1 9 25 A0 (Rl

FEEUMERR
2,880 1,797 71,062 45,419
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries EEARIELERBEAEZZAETENEB
that have material non-controlling interests is set out below. The NBIZHBERBEEINWOT - 58
summarised financial information below represents amounts before BERNBMEREMBER RN S A2
elimination of intra-group transactions. &5
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

43. B AT BE w

BEERFEEZERREERE >
k2EMRBRARZHE @

Kantone and its subsidiaries EBEREWE AT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAETT
Non-current assets IERBEE 38,885 31,811
Current assets MEBEE 177,795 154,432
Current liabilities mEAG (91,246) (80,789)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (17,771) (62,633)
Equity s
— Equity attributable to owners of the Company —ARRNBHAE ANEEEDS 63,564 31,185
— Non-controlling interests —FE P AR AR SR A 2 44,099 21,636
107,663 52,821
Revenue W &= 139,069 146,944
Profit for the year N 5 5 A
— Attributable to owners of the Company . WNGIE ¥ =N ) 3,359 2,497
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests — JE % A% A% BEOME S RN 2,330 1,378
5,689 3,875
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. i B A R B E &
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BMEEARFEEZERRFRE é pd
have material non-controlling interests (Continued) 2EMBRARZF1E @
Kantone and its subsidiaries (Continued) ERREME QR @)
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year N & B2 E I A (X H)
— Attributable to owners of the Company — KRR HEB AEN 29,020 (15,620)
— Attributable to non-controlling interests — JE AR AR B RE S E R 20,133 (8,616)
49,153 (24,236)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year RNEE 2 E WA (K H) 258 54,842 (20,361)
Net cash inflow from operating activities MEEERAZIR S FE 13,661 28,578
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEERHRHZREFHE (3,302) (21,027)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activites ~ B &E® (R ),/ HAZ RS
b (818) 6,803
Net increase in deposits, bank balances and cash T3 - RIT7E&#H MRS 2
R 9,541 14,354
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. B AT BE w
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEAFERRRERZZ
have material non-controlling interests (Continued) E2ENBRTZFHE @
Golden Field and its subsidiary FeEREKE QA
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THxT FHET
Non-current assets IERBEE 43,592 41,538
Current assets MEBEE 18,803 12,881
Current liabilities mEAG (7,319) (5,825)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - -
Equity s
— Equity attributable to owners of the Company —ARRNBHAE ANEEEDS 28,088 24,782
— Non controlling interests —JEIE R RS 26,988 23,812
55,076 48,594
Profit for the year N [E i A
— Attributable to owners of the Company . WNEIE 2N el 577 441
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests —IE P AR AR TR A S PR 554 423
1,131 864

Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year ARFE H 2 mE WA (ZH)

— Attributable to owners of the Company L WNGIE X =N 2,729 (953)
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests — FE 1 AR A% R s FE A 2,622 (915)
5,351 (1,868)
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43. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. [t B A 7] B E @)

BEERFERREAERZ

M

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests (Continued) k2EMB AT ZHEE @
Golden Field and its subsidiary (Continued) FEEMREKE DT @
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 7R E 2 E U A (X H) 458 6,482 (1,004)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities & %% (R ),/ RAZE S
HEE (5,213) 1,996
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEETHRAZRSFH - -
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEETHREZIREFE 120 (1,845)
Net (decrease)/increase in deposits, TR RITEBEREZ
bank balances and cash CRLA), /38 5 58 (5,093) 151
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On 18 May 2021, the board of directors of the Company announced
that the Company proposed to raise approximately HK$205 million
before expenses by issuing 2,051,492,544 rights shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.10 per rights share by way of rights issue,
on the basis of three rights share for every one existing share held on
the record date. Up to the date of these consolidated financial
statements are authorised to issue, the rights issue has not yet been
completed. Upon the completion of the rights issue, net proceeds of
approximately HK$198 million would be raised by the Company. The
number of issued ordinary shares of the Company would be increased
to 2,735,3283,392 shares and the share capital of the Company would
be increased from approximately HK$68,383,000 to HK$273,532,000
and share premium would be decreased from approximately
HK$2,221,869,000 to HK$2,214,720,000. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 18 May 2021, 22 June
2021 and 15 September 2021.

On 31 May 2021, the Company as the seller and Innovative City
Investment Limited, an independent third party, as purchaser (the
“Offeror”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which the Offeror has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Company
has conditionally agreed to sell the 128,137,958 Kantone shares (the
“Sale Shares”), representing approximately 59.04% of the entire issued
share capital of Kantone. The consideration of the Sale Shares is
approximately HK$59,072,000, equivalent to HK$0.461 per Sale Share.
Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements are
authorised to issue, the transaction has not yet been completed, as
additional time is required for the fulfillment of the conditions precedent
in the sale and purchase agreement (such as the convening of the
special general meeting to obtain the Company’s shareholders approval
for the disposal). For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 25 August 2021 and 15 September 2021.

On 10 September 2021, the Group obtained a written consent to
substantiate his earlier verbal consent from the holder of the promissory
note, pursuant to which the holder of the promissory note agreed and
accepted that the Group could early repay the remaining balance of the
promissory note which would be made after the completion of both the
disposal of the Kantone shares and the completion of the rights issue
at the discount rate of 8.5% p.a..
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RESULTS E

Year ended 30 June
BEXA=Z=THLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEZ—F ZE-E2F ZEFE-NEF ZE-)N\F Z=—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FER FET FET FET FET

Revenue Iz 237,473 410,668 385,664 142,754 194,544

Loss from ordinary activites  FiA1 B EF BB %
before taxation

Loss from operating activities wETEEBATEE

excluding other operating items ~ E {th &% & 18 B (52,753) (41,052 (71,123)  (4,476,510) (4,754,184)
Other operating items Hibie &1l e - — — _ (49,199)
Loss before taxation BRFL AT BT 18 (52,753) (41,052) (71,123)  (4,476,510)  (4,803,383)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fre® () KR (4,189) 3,328 348 790 613)
Loss for the year EEEER (56,942) (37,724) (70,775)  (4,475,720)  (4,803,996)
Attributable to: FEAf

Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ R =N (59,822) (39,521) (72,177) (3,811,905) (4,188,139)

Non-controlling interests JE %2 IR AR 3R R 25 2,880 1,797 1,402 (663,815) (615,857)
Dividends - g=N - — — — —
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p: ==

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

At 30 June

KAA=+AH
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--f —T-FF —_T-hF —FT-N\F —FT—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FHET T FHET
Total assets BESE 414,892 458,766 644,070 552,770 4,516,973
Total liabilities BEGE 350,797 396,042 520,626 451,578 363,883
Shareholders’ funds BERES 64,095 62,724 123,444 101,192 4,153,090
(Deficit)/equity attributable to ZiN/NETEZ F =N

owners of the Company RE1L (B518) HE 2% (6,957) 17,305 72,208 48,234 3,565,065
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AR R A = 71,052 45,419 51,236 52,958 588,025
64,095 62,724 123,444 101,192 4,153,090
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